
Agenda Item  Time Pages

ROLL CALL, INTRODUCTIONS, AND TELECONFERENCE ETIQUETTE 9:00 AM

PUBLIC COMMENT Guidelines 9:03 AM

CONSIDERATION TO TAKE AGENDA ITEMS OUT OF ORDER 9:04 AM

CONSENT CALENDAR 9:05 AM

1 October 16, 2020 BACWA Executive Board Meeting Minutes 3-9

2 October 26 Special BACWA Executive Board Meeting Minutes 10-11

3 September 2020 Treasurer's Reports 12-21

APPROVALS AND AUTHORIZATIONS 9:12 AM

4 Approval: BACWA Annual Report 22-32

5 Approval: Audit Report 33-55

9:30 AM
6 Discussion:  Region 2 PFAS Study Update 56-113

7 Discussion:  PFAS Pollution Prevention
8 Discussion:  Nutrients

a. Regulatory
i. Next steps with Water Board
ii. NST agenda 12/3 114

b. Technical Work
i. Changing nitrogen inputs to the northern San Francisco Estuary report  Link to Report
ii. Update on RFP
iii. NTT formation

c. Governance Structure
i. December 17  meeting to discuss nutrient BPA and permitting - BACWA participation

BREAK 10:45 AM
9 Discussion:  Debrief from Chlorine Residual Basin Plan Amendment adoption Link to 11/18 RWG agenda

10 Discussion:  Vulnerability Asessments for Climate Change - update 115-119
11 Discussion: Toxicity update - comments at adoption and NPDES implementation SWB Toxicity Page 120-121
12 Discussion: Nov 30 Draft agenda for Joint meeting with RWB 122
13 Discussion: Draft agenda for meeting with BAAQMD Managers 123
14 Discussion: Emergency management Roundtable (fires, PSPS, COVID)
15 Informational: Support for BABC proposal for Prop 68 OPC grant 124-125

12:00 PM
16 Discussion:  Draft Strategic Plan 126-132
17 Discussion: BACWA Power Supply Reliability Infoshare draft agenda 133
18 Discussion:  Website Policy 134-135
19 Discussion:  Committee leadership appreciation
20 Discussion:  Annual Meeting Planning - agenda and technical support 136

REPORTS 12:15 PM
21 Committee Reports 137-139
22 Member Highlights
23 Executive Director Report 140-141
24 Board Calendar and Action Items 142-143
25 Regulatory Program Manager Report 144

POLICY/STRATEGIC

OPERATIONAL

Executive Board Meeting
AGENDA

Fri, November 20, 2020 9:00 AM - 12:30 PM (PDT) 
https://zoom.us/j/97636415436?

pwd=WEJoM0paaGdla0hNcWFBL3Yrd015dz09

You can also dial in with your phone +1 669 900 9128 US 
Meeting ID: 976 3641 5436 

Passcode: 516216 

https://bacwa.org/general/bacwa-public-comments-guidelines/
https://bacwa.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/11/2020_Delta_Nutrient_Reduction_Responses.pdf
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/sanfranciscobay/board_info/agendas/2020/November/11-18-2020.pdf
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/state_implementation_policy/tx_ass_cntrl.html
https://zoom.us/j/97636415436?pwd=WEJoM0paaGdla0hNcWFBL3Yrd015dz09


26 Other BACWA Representative Reports 145-149

a. RMP Technical Committee
Mary Lou Esparza, Yuyun Shang, Samantha 
Engelage

b. RMP Steering Committee Karin North; Robert Wilson; Eric Dunlavey
c. Summit Partners Lorien Fono; Lori Schectel
d. ASC/SFEI Lorien Fono; Eileen White
e. Nutrient Governance Steering Committee Eric Dunlavey; Eileen White; Lori Schectel

e.i  Nutrient Planning Subgroup Eric Dunlavey
e.ii NMS Technical Workgroup Eric Dunlavey

f. SWRCB Nutrient SAG Lorien Fono
g. NACWA Taskforce on Dental Amalgam Tim Potter
h. BAIRWMP Cheryl Munoz; Linda Hu; Lorien Fono
i. NACWA Emerging Contaminants Karin North; Melody LaBella
j. CASA State Legislative Committee Lori Schectel
k. CASA Regulatory Workgroup Lorien Fono
l. ReNUWIt Jackie Zipkin; Karin North
m. ReNUWIt One Water Jackie Zipkin, Eric Hansen
n. RMP Microplastics Liaison Artem Dyachenko
o. Bay Area Regional Reliability Project Eileen White
p. WateReuse Working Group Cheryl Munoz
q. San Francisco Estuary Partnership Eileen White; Lorien Fono
r. CPSC Policy Education Advisory Committee Colleen Henry
s. California Ocean Protection Council Lorien Fono
t. Countywide Water Reuse Master Plan Karin North, Pedro Hernandez
u. CHARG - Coastal Hazards Adampation Resiliancy Group Jackie Zipkin

27 SUGGESTIONS FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 12:25 PM

NEXT MEETING 12:29 PM

ADJOURNMENT 12:30 PM

The next  meeting of the Board is scheduled for December 18, 2020

2



Executive Board Meeting Minutes 
October 16, 2020 

1 

ROLL CALL AND INTRODUCTIONS 

Executive Board Representatives: Lori Schectel (Central Contra Costa Sanitary District); Amit 
Mutsuddy (City of San Jose); Eileen White (East Bay Municipal Utility District); Amy Chastain 
(San Francisco Public Utilities Commission); Jackie Zipkin (EBDA).   

Other Attendees: 

Name Agency/Company 

Eric Dunlavey City of San Jose 

Lorien Fono BACWA 

Alina Constantinescu LWA 

Jennifer Dyment BACWA 

Tom Hall EOA 

Amanda Roa Delta Diablo 

Karin North City of Palo Alto 

Mary Cousins Woodard & Curran 

David Richardson Woodard & Curran 

Jennie Pang SFPUC 

Kevin Cesar City of Millbrae 

Talyon Sortor Fairfield-Suisun Sewer District (FSSD) 

Steve Moore Ross Valley Sanitary District 

Jared Voskuhl CASA 

Wynn Morgan City of Burlingame WWTP 

Ba Tran City of Millbrae 

Amit Mutsuddy started meeting at 9:01 

ROLL CALL - taken  

PUBLIC COMMENT – None 

CONSIDERATION TO TAKE AGENDA ITEMS OUT OF ORDER 
Agenda Item 4 was pulled from meeting.  

CONSENT CALENDAR 

1 August 21, 2020 BACWA Executive Board Meeting Minutes 

2 September 17-18 Special BACWA Executive Board Meeting Minutes 

3



October 16, 2020 Executive Board Meeting Minutes 

 

2 

 

3 August 2020 Treasurer's Reports    

Consent Calendar Items 1, 2 and 3: A motion to approve was made by EBDA, Jackie Zipkin and 
seconded by CCCSD, Lori Schectel. The motion was approved unanimously.  
   

APPROVALS AND AUTHORIZATIONS   

4 Approval: SGS AXYS Contract for $60,932, PFAS Phase I study analytical costs  

Item 4: Pulled.  

5 Authorization: EOA Contract for FY21 ($3,600) Chlorine BPA support   

BACWA Executive Director reviewed contract briefly. The contract was to provide support for 

responding to the draft Chlorine Residual BPA through comments to the Regional Water Board. No 

approval necessary.    

POLICY/STRATEGIC    

6 Discussion: Debrief from Online Pardee meeting   

 BACWA ED discussed AIR issues and reported that Sarah Deslauriers gave an update and 

strategies presentation on second day of Pardee Online meeting in September 2020. Sarah Deslauriers is 

scheduling a meeting with upper management at AIR Board in December and the agenda will be 

available in November meeting packet. Group discussed board attendance and mentioned it becomes a 

public meeting if more than 2 board members attend the meeting in December. BACWA ED mentioned 

in January 2021 there is a regular BACWA AIR Committee meeting. 

BACWA ED discussed CEC monitoring studies and fair & equitable funding for research. Ongoing 

discussion to develop sampling plan. More details at November meeting.  

BACWA ED discussed Biosolids. Significant biosolids land application in region with little 

oversight from the Regional Water Board. BACWA RPM summarized presentation – safety, quality, and 

public support of expansion. Discussion followed.  

BACWA ED discussed power supply reliability and their strategy on communicating this issue 

with regulators. Lengthy group discussion on power supply plans and communication from power 

entities.  

7 Discussion:  Nutrients   

 a.  Regulatory   

 i.  Outcomes from Online Pardee NST meeting 

4



October 16, 2020 Executive Board Meeting Minutes 

 

3 

 

 BACWA ED summarized discussion at Pardee Online meeting regarding load caps based on 

science or antidegradation approach. BACWA ED wanted to know how discussion influenced members’ 

thoughts on the subject. Lengthy general discussion on load caps; members discussed whether they 

were better off agreeing to antidegradation approach to give us time to research the science. Some 

questions on the long-term sustainability of BACWA funding the science program were raised. Timing 

and flexibility of implementing load caps were discussed. Two key issues highlighted were the 

importance of implementing the caps on a subembayment basis to allow trading, and the importance of 

defining protection for early adopters for nutrient removal. NST group will meet to discuss & strategize 

more before end of year.  

Action item – BACWA ED to send out doodle poll to schedule next NST meeting  

 ii.  Communicating Competing Priorities relative to nutrient reduction 

BACWA ED discussed nutrient reduction in the context of competing and balancing priorities as well as 

stable rate increases. Lengthy group discussion followed about regulatory oversight, their facilities and 

seismic, flood, and sea rise priorities. Taking a leadership role in this area is important. Group would like 

to present individual agency challenges at State Water Board meetings to educate them on their 

different issues. Group felt this should this be a standing item in the meetings or presented during 

permit negotiations, in the context of requesting appropriate implementation time frames. Consensus 

was that presentations should be issue specific vs. agency specific those be tied to negotiation points. 

This issue will be an ongoing discussion.  

BREAK 10:50-11:05 

 b.  Technical Work   

 i.  Draft RFP for technical review support - final review  

BACWA ED shared RFP document. This will be an ongoing as-needed contract, and the document has 

been updated with comments from members. Group discussed level of financial effort is $50,000 for 

FY21, and proposed evaluation criteria. BACWA ED also asked for selection committee volunteers and 

reviewed project schedule. Board member requested that final selection be brought to November board 

meeting and approval of contract will happen at December board meeting.   

 ii. Formation of BACWA Nutrient Technical Team - mission and timing  

BACWA ED summarized other groups where Nutrients are discussed. Discussed the idea of forming a 

group to have in-depth discussion about implications and science around NMS documents. Group 

agreed to support group with their staff.  

Action item: BACWA ED to move forward with creating group. 

 iii. Support for Hazen & Sawyer Proposal: Linking Nutrient Reductions to Receiving Water 

Responses (RFP 5078)  

5



October 16, 2020 Executive Board Meeting Minutes 

 

4 

 

BACWA ED stated BACWA will participate, but will not be exclusive to this proposal team. BACWA is 

listed as an interested utility/association on the RFP.   

 c. Governance Structure 

The planning subcommittee is planning a special meeting to discuss the relationship between a standard 

action (Basin Plan Amendment), the permitting approach, and scientific findings. 

Action item: BACWA ED to share meeting date with board once it’s scheduled.   

 i. September 11 Steering Committee meeting summary   

 ii. September 2 PSC meeting notes   

 iii. October 7 PSC meeting notes   

8 Discussion:  Region 2 PFAS Study Update  

BACWA RPM shared there was a BACWA Lab Committee & SFEI call to talk through the proposed 

sampling plan. The 13 agencies that are participating have been identified. Samples will be collected in 

November. There will be an additional conference call with SFEI regarding sampling process and review 

of phase 1 contract. State Water Board does want recycled water samples so it is TBD if this will be done 

now or in phase 2.   

9 Discussion:  Comments on Chlorine Residual Basin Plan Amendment  

BACWA RPM submitted comment letter on October 2, 2020. Results will be known in November. RPM 

did share that ML will likely not be changed and ask group if they wanted to push this point more in our 

testimony or not. Group agreed to only express support during oral comments and to ask for a regional 

blanket permit amendment to incorporate BPA into existing permits.   

10 Discussion:  Vulnerability Assessments for Climate Change  

BACWA ED said State Water Board would like more information on facility vulnerability due to climate 

change. Shared State Water Board’s draft 13267 info request in packet and reviewed draft Regional 

Water Board questionnaire in meeting. Regional Water Board questionnaire is more in-depth and 

includes sea level, ground water rise, changing climate and weather, power outage and wildfires. 

Lengthy group discussion followed on the methods of gathering information to answer questions. Group 

agreed that individual agencies, not BACWA staff, will be responsible for responding to the Regional 

Water Board’s survey. 

Action item – BACWA staff to work with Regional Water Board to develop template to gather 

information on vulnerability to climate change and summarize regional adaptation efforts. 

11 Discussion: BACWA Power Supply Reliability Infoshare  

6



October 16, 2020 Executive Board Meeting Minutes 

 

5 

 

BACWA ED asked which POTW staff should answer questions about power supply reliability? Group 

discussed and felt individual agencies should decide because they are all structured differently.    

12 Discussion: Toxicity engagement with the State Water Board   

BACWA ED mentioned that different stakeholders see different purposes in the proposed Ceriodaphnia 

study. Group discussed study timing, costs, and how to finance the Ceriodaphnia study. Next draft 

toxicity policy will be released October 31, 2020 and there are plans for it to be adopted on December 1, 

2020.   

13 Discussion: Emergency management Roundtable (fires, PSPS, COVID)  

BACWA ED brought up that we were running out of time. Board agreed to just discuss COVID. EBMUD 

allowing staff to work remotely through end of year and is concerned about COVID in winter season. 

City of San Jose engineering is working onsite, others are at home, and the agency is doing inspections. 

CCCSD staff  who can telework are still working remotely, the lab is rotating, and pretreatment is 

conducting inspections on rotation.  General discussion on the possibility of working remotely 

permanently to meet green goals, save money on rent, better traffic. Group also discussed staff working 

remotely out of the area temporarily and how they are handling those requests.    

OPERATIONAL   

14 Discussion: BACWA Succession Plan  

BACWA ED reviewed recently alternates and new members. Referred to document in packet. Need a 

new vice-chair for Collection Systems Committee.  

15 Discussion: Annual Meeting Planning   

BACWA ED discussed preliminary agenda for annual meeting. Annual meeting is in February 2021. 

Topics & timing can be refined at next meeting. Group agreed on topics.  

 

REPORTS    

16 Committee Reports  

BACWA ED referred to committee reports in the packet.   

17 Member Highlights  

CCCSD settled with Riverwatch and suggested visiting their website to watch board meeting.   

18 Executive Director Report  

BACWA ED referred to report in the packet.  

7



October 16, 2020 Executive Board Meeting Minutes 

 

6 

 

19 Regulatory Program Manager Report  

BACWA RPM referred to report in the packet.  

20 Other BACWA Representative Reports   

 a. RMP Technical Committee Mary Lou Esparza, Yuyun Shang, Samantha Engelage  

 b. RMP Steering Committee Karin North; Robert Wilson; Eric Dunlavey  

 c. Summit Partners Lorien Fono; Lori Schectel  

 d. ASC/SFEI Lorien Fono; Eileen White  

 e. Nutrient Governance Steering Committee Eric Dunlavey; Eileen White; Lori Schectel  

 e.i  Nutrient Planning Subgroup Eric Dunlavey  

 e.ii NMS Technical Workgroup Eric Dunlavey  

 f. SWRCB Nutrient SAG Lorien Fono  

 g. NACWA Taskforce on Dental Amalgam Tim Potter  

 h. BAIRWMP Cheryl Munoz; Linda Hu; Lorien Fono  

 i. NACWA Emerging Contaminants Karin North; Melody LaBella  

 j. CASA State Legislative Committee Lori Schectel  

 k. CASA Regulatory Workgroup Lorien Fono  

 l. ReNUWIt  Jackie Zipkin; Karin North  

 m. ReNUWIt One Water  Jackie Zipkin, Eric Hansen  

 n. RMP Microplastics Liaison Artem Dyachenko  

 o. Bay Area Regional Reliability Project Eileen White  

 p. WateReuse Working Group Cheryl Munoz  

 q. San Francisco Estuary Partnership Eileen White; Lorien Fono  

 r. CPSC Policy Education Advisory Committee Colleen Henry  

 s. California Ocean Protection Council Lorien Fono  

 t. Countywide Water Reuse Master Plan Karin North, Pedro Hernandez  

8



October 16, 2020 Executive Board Meeting Minutes 

 

7 

 

 u. CHARG - Coastal Hazards Adaptation Resiliency GroupJackie Zipkin  

    

19 SUGGESTIONS FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS   

NEXT MEETING   

The next meeting of the Board is scheduled for November 20, 2020    

    

ADJOURNMENT   12:49 PM 

 

9



 

BACWA Executive Board Meeting – Special Meeting 

Monday, October 26 10:30-11am 

Amit Mutsuddy started meeting at 10:30 am 
 
Agenda 

1) Introductions/roll call –10:30am 

 
Amit Mutsuddy announced Zoom participants 
 
Executive Board Representatives: Lori Schectel (Central Contra Costa Sanitary District); Eileen 
White (EBMUD); Amit Mutsuddy (City of San Jose); Amy Chastain (San Francisco Public Utilities 
Commission); Jacqueline Zipkin (East Bay Dischargers Authority)   
 
Other Attendees:   

Name Agency/Company 
Ryan Batjiaka SFPUC 
Jennie Pang SFPUC 
Sarah Deslauriers  Carollo Engineers  
Lorien Fono BACWA 
Jennifer Dyment  BACWA 

 
2) Instructions and etiquette 
3) Approvals and Authorizations 

a) Approval: SGS AXYS Contract for $60,932, PFAS Phase I study analytical costs. 
BACWA ED explained contract. This is the same contract that was presented at BACWA 
Executive Board Meeting on October 16, 2020 but was pulled due to a delay in legal review 
by SGS AXYS. BACWA ED asked if there were any questions. Questions about cost of sample 
shipping and schedule of project. No other questions.  
 
Item 3a: A motion to approve was made by CCCSD, Lori Schectel and seconded by 
EBDA, Jaclyn Zipkin. The motion was approved unanimously. 
 

b) Approval: UC Davis contract on behalf of BABC for $64,500 Study of plant Uptake of PFAS 
Grown in Biosolid-Amended Soils. 
BACWA ED explained scope of project. SFPUC staff and Carollo Engineers explained project 
in more depth and the schedule.  

10



 
Item 3b: A motion to approve was made by EBMUD, Eileen White and seconded by 
SFPUC, Jennie Pang. The motion was approved unanimously. 
 

4) Adjournment 10:40 am 
 

 

 

 

11



Central Contra Costa Sanitary District  •  East Bay Dischargers Authority  •  City of San Jose  
East Bay Municipal Utility District  •  City & County of San Francisco  

Bay Area Clean Water Agencies • PO Box 24055, MS702 • Oakland, CA  94623 

October 19th, 2020 

MEMO TO:   Bay Area Clean Water Agencies Executive Board 

MEMO FROM:  Damien Charléty, Treasurer, East Bay Municipal Utility District 

SUBJECT:   Third Month FY 2021 Treasurer’s Report  

As required by section eight of the Joint Powers Agreement establishing the Bay Area Clean 

Water Agencies (BACWA) and California Government Code Sections 6500 et seq., attached is 

the BACWA Treasurer’s Report for the period covering July 1, 2020 through September 30, 

2020 (Three months of Fiscal Year 2021).  This report covers expenditures, cash receipts, and 

cash transfers for the following BACWA funds   

 Bay Area Clean Water Agencies (BACWA),

 BACWA Legal Reserve Fund (Legal Rsrv),

 Water Quality Attainment Strategy (WQA CBC),

 Bay Area Biosolids Coalition (BABC),

 Bay Area Chemical Consortium (BACC),

 Water/Wastewater Operator Training (WOT),

 Prop84 Bay Area Integrated Regional Water Mgmt (PRP84)

12



1

Houck, Matt

From: Charléty, Damien
Sent: Thursday, October 22, 2020 9:45 AM
To: Houck, Matt
Subject: RE: BACWA - September 2020 Treasurer's Report

Approved. 
 

From: Houck, Matt  
Sent: Wednesday, October 21, 2020 9:02 AM 
To: Charléty, Damien 
Subject: BACWA - September 2020 Treasurer's Report 
 

Hi Damien, 
 
Please approve BACWA - September 2020 Treasurer’s Report for distribution. 
 
Thanks, 
 

Matt Houck 
Accountant I 
East Bay Municipal Utility District 
375 11TH St, MS 402, Oakland, CA 94607 
P 510-287-0238 
 
 

13



MONTHLY FINANCIAL SUMMARY REPORT 

 September 2020 

 
 

Fund Balances 
In FY21 BACWA has three operating funds (BACWA, Legal, and CBC) and two pass‐through funds for 
which BACWA provides only contract administration services (WOT, BABC & BACC). 

 
BACWA Fund: This fund provides the resources for BACWA staff, its committees, and other 
administrative needs. The ending fund balance on September 30, 2020 was $1,576,953 which is 
significantly higher than the target reserve of $209,430 which is intended to cover 3 months of 
normal operating expenses based on the BACWA FY21 budget. $559,790 of the ending fund balance 
is shown on the BACWA Fund & Investments Balance Report September 30, 2020 as encumbered to 
meet ongoing operating line item expenses for BAPPG Committee Support, Legal services, IT services, 
Board meeting expenses, accounting services and BACWA staff support. This leaves actual 
unencumbered excess funds of $807,733 (i.e., actual fund balance of $1,017,163 less target reserves) 
as of September 30, 2020. As the details of the costs of the various regulatory requirements included 
in the 2nd Nutrient Watershed Permit become better defined, these excess funds may be transferred 
to the CBC fund and used to offset potential Nutrient Surcharge increases to the BACWA members. 

 
CBC Fund: This fund provides the resources for completing special investigations as well as meeting 
regulatory requirements. The ending fund balance on September 30, 2020 was $1,919,383 which is 
significantly higher than the target reserve of $1,000,000. $755,877 of the ending fund balance is 
encumbered to meet line item expenses for completion of the Group Annual Report contract, 
completion of the NBS Study and Recycled Water Evaluation. This leaves an actual unencumbered 
fund balance of $163,506 (i.e., actual fund balance of $1,163,506 less $1,000,000 target reserves) as 
of September 30, 2020. Disbursements for FY21 from the CBC fund include $2.8m fund the nutrient 
scientific investigations as required by Nutrient Watershed Permit.  

 
Legal Fund: This fund provides for needed legal services. The ending balance was $300,000 which is at 
the target reserve of $300,000. 

 
Budget to Actual 
The BACWA Annual Budget includes all expected revenues as well as budgeted expenses. Transfers 
are made from the BACWA Fund and/or the CBC Fund to balance the Annual Budget if expenses 
exceed revenues and vice versa. It is therefore important to achieve the anticipated revenues and not 
exceed the budgeted expenses on an annual basis to maintain the BACWA and CBC Fund balances at 
the levels projected in the 5 Year Plan.  
 
Revenues as of September 30, 2020 (25% of the FY) are at 54%.   
 
Expenses as of September 30, 2020 (25% of the FY) are at 29%  

14



FY 2021 
BACWA BUDGET to ACTUAL

BACWA FY21 BUDGET Line Item Description FY 2021 Budget 
Actual Sept  

2020

 Actual % 
of Budget 
Sept  2020

Variance  NOTES

REVENUES & FUNDING
Dues Principals' Contributions $516,909 $516,910 100% $1  5 @ $103,382

Associate & Affiliate Contributions $187,793 $1,675 1% -$186,118  13 Assoc @ $8,531; 45 Affiliate @ $1,708. 
Fees Clean Bay Collaborative $675,000 $360,750 53% -$314,250 Prin: $450,000; Assoc/Affil: $225,000

Nutrient Surcharge $1,700,000 $821,955 48% -$878,045 See Nutrient Surcharge Spreadsheet
Voluntary Nutrient Contributions $0 $0 0% $0

Other Receipts AIR Non-Member $7,075 $0 0% -$7,075 Santa Rosa
BAPPG Non-Members $3,954 $0 0% -$3,954 Stanta Rosa, Sac Reg'l, Vacaville; $1,317/each

 Other $0 $0 0% $0
Fund Transfer Special Program Admin Fees (WOT) $5,202 $0 0% -$5,202 Flat fee

Special Program Admin Fees (BACC) $20,010 $0 0% -$20,010 300 hours of AED support, based on hours billed
Special Program Admin Fees (BABC) $6,000 $0 0% -$6,000 AED and RPM support, hours billed

Interest Income LAIF $20,000 $8,265 41% -$11,735 BACWA, Legal, & CBC Funds invested in LAIF
Higher Yield Investments $18,000 $0 0% -$18,000 Alternative Investment Interest (Legal & CBC Funds invested in AltInv) 

Total Revenue $3,159,943 $1,709,555 54.10% -$1,450,388

BACWA FY21 BUDGET Line Item Description FY 2021 Budget 
Actual Sept  

2020

 Actual % 
of Budget 
Sept  2020

Variance  NOTES

EXPENSES
Labor

Executive Director $190,000 $31,667 17% -$158,333 No change from FY20 contract
Assistant Executive Director $102,551 $26,191 26% -$76,360 $66.7/hour; Reflects 1500 hours
Regulatory Program Manager $141,170 $40,155 28% -$101,015 $100.16/hour; Reflects 1375 hours/yr - Contract TBD

Total $433,721 $98,013 23% -$335,708

Administration
EBMUD Financial Services $42,448 $0 0% -$42,448
Auditing Services $5,345 $0 0% -$5,345 Financial Audit Services through EBMUD
Administrative Expenses $7,959 $0 0% -$7,959 Travel, Supplies, Parking, Mileage, Tolls, Misc. 
Insurance $4,776 $4,971 104% $195 SLIP Insurance. Alliant Insurance.
Total $60,528 $4,971 8% -$55,557

Meetings
EB Meetings $2,653 $0 0% -$2,653 Catering, Venue, other expenses
Annual Meeting $14,369 $0 0% -$14,369 Catering, Venue, other expenses
Pardee $6,367 $0 0% -$6,367 Catering, Venue, other expenses
Misc. Meetings $5,306 $125 2% -$5,181 Hol & Comm Chair Lunch, Staff Mtgs, Fin Comm, Summit Ptnrs, CASA, NACWA Tech WS, Low Flow WS
Total $28,695 $125 0% -$28,570

Communication
Website Hosting $612 $0 0% -$612 Computer Courage
File Storage $765 $0 0% -$765 Box.com
Website Development/Maintenance $1,530 $0 0% -$1,530 Domain registrations, website changes
IT Support $2,652 $0 0% -$2,652 As needed
Other Commun $1,785 $370 21% -$1,415 MS Exchange, Survey Monkey, Carbonite, Doodle Polls, PollEv, GoToMtg, HelloSign, Zoom 

Total $7,344 $370 5% -$6,974

15



FY 2021 
BACWA BUDGET to ACTUAL

EXPENSES
Legal

Regulatory Support $2,706 $0 0% -$2,706 Downey Brand LLP
Executive Board Support $2,176 $0 0% -$2,176 Day Carter & Murphy LLP
Total $4,882 $0 0% -$4,882

Committees
AIR $76,000 $3,905 5% -$72,095 $75k consulting support, $1k misc expenses. Carollo Engineers
BAPPG $130,000 $31,161 24% -$98,839 Includes CPSC @ $10,000, OWOW @ $10,000, and Pest. Reg Spt. @ $60,000. S.Hughes, TDC and SGA
Biosolids Committee $1,000 $0 0% -$1,000
Collections System $1,000 $0 0% -$1,000
InfoShare Groups $1,750 $0 0% -$1,750 Funds for 2 workgroups ($750 for Asset Mgmt - new in FY21; $1,000 for O&M)
Laboratory Committee $1,000 $0 0% -$1,000
Permits Committee $1,300 $0 0% -$1,300 All meetings moved to include lunch hour for commuting purposes
Pretreatment $1,000 $0 0% -$1,000
Recycled Water Committee $1,000 $0 0% -$1,000
Misc Committee Support $45,000 $0 0% -$45,000
Manager's Roundtable $1,000 $0 0% -$1,000
Total $260,050 $35,066 13% -$224,984

Collaboratives
Collaboratives
State of the Estuary (SFEP-biennial) $20,000 $0 0% -$20,000 Biennial in Odd Fiscal Years. (Paid bienniely in odd years for even year conference)
Arleen Navarret Award $0 $0 0% $0 Biennial in Even Fiscal Years. Award amount increased in FY20
FWQC (Fred Andes) $7,500 $0 0% -$7,500
Stanford ERC (ReNUWIt) $10,000 $0 0% -$10,000
Misc $5,000 $0 0% -$5,000 BayCAN, NBWA
Total $42,500 $0 0% -$42,500

Other
Unbudgeted Items
Other $0 $0 0% $0

$0 $0 0% $0

Tech Support
Technical Support
Nutrients

Watershed $2,800,000 $1,000,000 36% -$1,800,000 Advance funding for 2nd Watershed Permit Science Studies. SFEI
NMS Voluntary Contributions $0 $30,000 0% $30,000 SFEI \ City of Palo Alto 2017 Lower South Bay modeling
Additional work under permit $100,000 $0 0% -$100,000 Includes HDR PO for $225k spread out over FY20-24.
Regional Study on Nature based sysemts $200,000 $62,702 31% -$137,298 New Line item in FY20. SFEI
Regional Recycling Evaluation $60,000 $6,176 10% -$53,824 HDR PO for $154K FY20-24
Nutrient Workshop(s) $0 $0 0% $0 Pilot Studies/Plant Review/Innovative Technologies

General Tech Support $250,000 $0 0% -$250,000 AB617 emission factors, nutrient technical review, other nutrient support, PFAS
CEC Investigations $50,000 $0 0% -$50,000 Support for studies through RMP (PFAS in FY21). SFEI
Risk Reduction $7,500 $0 0% -$7,500 $50,000 over 5 years (FY19-FY23) 2 Contracts for $25,000 each over FY19, 20, & 21
Total $3,467,500 $1,098,878 32% -$2,368,622

TOTAL EXPENSES $4,305,220 $1,237,423 28.74% -$3,067,797

NET INCOME BEFORE TRANSFERS -$1,145,277

TRANSFERS FROM RESERVES $1,145,277 aligns with strategy of drawing down reserves to lessen impact of Nutrient Surcharge

NET INCOME AFTER TRANSFERS $0

TOTAL OPERATING BUDGET $837,720

OPERATING RESERVE $209,430

16



DEPTID DESCRIPTION
FISCAL YEAR 

BEGINNING FUND 
BALANCE

TOTAL RECEIPTS 
TO-DATE

TOTAL 
DISBURSEMENTS 

TO-DATE

MONTH-ENDING 
FUND BALANCE

OUTSTANDING 
ENCUMBRANCES

MONTH-END 
UNOBLIGATED 
FUND BALANCE

800 BACWA 1,195,233               520,265                  138,545                  1,576,953                559,790                  1,017,163               Top Chart: Reflects CASH on the Books Includes Encumbrances
804 LEGAL RSRV 300,000                  -                           -                           300,000                   -                           300,000                  Bottom Chart: Reflects CASH in the Bank Includes Payables (bills received but not paid)
805 CBC 1,772,881               1,245,380               1,098,878               1,919,383                755,877                  1,163,506               Allocations: Priority for non-liquid investments

SUBTOTAL 1 3,268,114              1,765,645              1,237,423              3,796,336               1,315,667              2,480,669                                  
802 BABC 216,514                 36,750                    12,332                    240,932                   78,793                    162,139                  
806 BACC (1,563)                     -                          -                          (1,563)                       -                          (1,563)                     
810 WOT 276,164                  -                           -                           276,164                   -                           276,164                  

SUBTOTAL 2 491,115                 36,750                    12,332                    515,533                   78,793                    436,740                                                                      
*811 PRP84 196,806                  -                           -                           196,806                   -                           196,806                  

SUBTOTAL 3 196,806                 -                          -                          196,806                   -                          196,806                 
GRAND TOTAL 3,956,035              1,802,395              1,249,755              4,508,675                1,394,460              3,114,215              

DEPTID DESCRIPTION
FISCAL YEAR 

BEGINNING FUND 
BALANCE

TOTAL RECEIPTS 
TO-DATE

TOTAL 
DISBURSEMENTS 

TO-DATE

MONTH-ENDING 
FUND BALANCE

RECONCILIATION 
TO FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

MONTH-END 
RECONCILED 

FUND BALANCE

UNINVESTED 
CASH BALANCES

LAIF 
INVESTMENTS 

AMOUNTS

LAIF 
INVESTMENTS 
PERCENTAGE

ALTERNATIVE 
INVESTMENTS 

AMOUNTS

ALTERNATIVE 
INVESTMENTS 

IDENTIFIERS

ALTERNATIVE INVESTMENT 
INSTRUCTIONS AND NOTES

800 BACWA 1,195,233               520,265                  138,545                  1,576,953                116,879                  1,693,832               1,650,615            43,217                  2% -                        priority # 3 for allocation
804 LEGAL RSRV 300,000                  -                           -                           300,000                   -                           300,000                  -                        300,000                13% -                        priority # 1 for allocation
805 CBC 1,772,881               1,245,380               1,098,878               1,919,383                -                           1,919,383               -                        1,919,383            85% -                        priority # 2 for allocation

SUBTOTAL 1 3,268,114               1,765,645               1,237,423               3,796,336                116,879                  3,913,215               1,650,615            2,262,600            100% -                        

802 BABC 216,514                  36,750                    12,332                    240,932                   -                           240,932                  240,932                -                        0% -                        pass-through funds, no allocation
806 BACC (1,563)                     -                           -                           (1,563)                       -                           (1,563)                     (1,563)                   -                        0% -                        
810 WOT 276,164                  -                           -                           276,164                   -                           276,164                  276,164                -                        0% -                        pass-through funds, no allocation

SUBTOTAL 2 491,115                  36,750                    12,332                    515,533                   -                           515,533                  515,533                -                        0% -                        
811 PRP84 196,806                  -                           -                           196,806                   -                           196,806                  196,806                -                        0% -                        pass-through funds, no allocation

SUBTOTAL 3 196,806                  -                           -                           196,806                   -                           196,806                  196,806                -                        0% -                        
GRAND TOTAL 3,956,035              1,802,395              1,249,755              4,508,675                116,879                  4,625,554              2,362,954            2,262,600            -                        

*Org 811 beg balance adjusted to reflect disbursement (147.7K) accrued after June 2020 TR published. -                           -                        -                        -                        
To be used to cover Reconciliation to Financial Statements ($0) 

Reconciliation to Trial Balance - accrual basis
Per Report above: STB           1493 2,262,600            
General 1,765,645            STB           1505 2,362,954            
WOT 36,750                 4,625,554            -                     
PROP -                           STB            2135 (116,879)              
   subtotal 1,802,395            4,508,675            -                     

Billings-Pending Receipts
4686 Mem Contrib 89,250                 
4687 Transfer -                           
4690 Assoc Contrib (1,675)                  
4696 Other 294,964               
4731 State Grant -                           
4732 Grant Retention -                           
  subtotal 382,539               

Trial Balance Revenue Accounts
4411 Interest (8,265)                  
4686 Mem Contrib (1,003,660)           
4687 Transfer -                       
4690 Assoc Contrib -                       
4696 Other (1,173,009)           
4731 State Grant -                       
4732 Grant Retention -                       
  subtotal (2,184,934)           
  Difference (0)                         

BACWA FUND BALANCES - DATA PROVIDED BY ACCOUNTING DEPT.

BACWA INVESTMENTS BALANCES - DATA PROVIDED BY TREASURY DEPT.

BACWA Fund Report as of September 30, 2020

17



JOB
 Admin & 
General  Contributons 

 Interest, 
Transfers,Ot

hers 
 Admin & 
General  Contributons 

 Interest, 
Transfers,Ot

hers  ACTUAL 
800 Bay Area Clean Water Agencies 0408511 Administrative & General -                -             -                -            -                -                 -            -              -                     
800 Bay Area Clean Water Agencies 1011099 BDO Member Contributions 516,909         -             206,764         -            -                516,910          -            516,910       (1)                       
800 Bay Area Clean Water Agencies 1011108 BDO Other Receipts -                -             -                -            -                -                 -            -              -                     
800 Bay Area Clean Water Agencies 1011109 BDO Fund Transfers 5,202            -             -                -            -                -                 -            -              5,202                  
800 Bay Area Clean Water Agencies 1011117 BDO- Interest Income from LAIF 20,000           -             -                -            -                -                 1,680         1,680           18,320                
800 Bay Area Clean Water Agencies 1011133 BDO Assoc.&Affiliate Contr 187,793         -             -                -            -                -                 -            -              187,793              
800 Bay Area Clean Water Agencies 1014251 BDO Non-Member Contr BAPPG 3,954            -             -                -            -                -                 -            -              3,954                  
800 Bay Area Clean Water Agencies 1014252 BDO Non-Member Contr AIR 7,075            -             -                -            -                -                 -            -              7,075                  
800 Bay Area Clean Water Agencies 1014511 BDO-Alternative Investment Inc 18,000           -             -                -            -                -                 -            -              18,000                
800 Bay Area Clean Water Agencies 1015567 BACC - AED Support 20,010           -             -                -            -                -                 -            -              20,010                
800 Bay Area Clean Water Agencies 1015568 BABC - AED and RPM Support 6,000            -             -                -            -                -                 -            -              6,000                  
800 Bay Area Clean Water Agencies 1015265 BDO Other Receipts (Misc) -                -             -                -            -                -                 -            -              -                     
800 Bay Area Clean Water Agencies 1015266 BDO Affiliate/Associate Dues -                -             -                -            -                -                 -            -              -                     
800 Bay Area Clean Water Agencies 1015267 BDO Affil/CS/Assoc Dues -                -             -                -            -                1,675             -            1,675           (1,675)                 

               BACWA TOTAL 784,943        -             206,764        -            -                518,585         1,680        520,265       264,678             
805 WQA-CBC 1011099 BDO Member Contributions 675,000         -             180,000         -            -                360,750          -            360,750       314,250              
805 WQA-CBC 1011108 BDO Other Receipts 1,700,000      -             293,173         -                878,045          -            878,045       821,955              
805 WQA-CBC 1011117 BDO- Interest Income from LAIF -                -             -                -            -                -                 6,585         6,585           (6,585)                 
805 WQA-CBC 1014528 BDO-Voluntary Nutrient Contrib -                -             -                -            -                -                 -            -              -                     

               WQA CBC TOTAL 2,375,000     -             473,173        -            -                1,238,795      6,585        1,245,380    1,129,620          

 TOTAL 3,159,943     -             679,937        -            -                1,757,380      8,265        1,765,645    1,394,298          

JOB
 Admin & 
General 

 
Contributons 

 Interest, 
Transfers,

Others 
 Admin & 
General  Contributons 

 Interest, 
Transfers,

Others  ACTUAL 
802 BABC 1011099 BDO Member Contributions -                -             12,250           -            -                36,750            -            36,750         (36,750)               
802 BABC 1011109 BDO Fund Transfers -                -             -                -            -                -                 -            -              -                     

BABC TOTAL -                -             12,250          -            -                36,750           -            36,750         (36,750)              

810 WOT 1011117 BDO- Interest Income from LAIF -                -             -                -            -                -                 -            -              -                     
  WOT TOTAL -                -             -                -            -                -                 -            -              -                     

JOB
 Admin & 
General 

 
Contributons 

 Interest, 
Transfers,

Others 
 Admin & 
General  Contributons 

 Interest, 
Transfers,

Others  ACTUAL 
811 PROP 84 1011142 Administrative Support -                -             -                -            -                -                 -            -              -                     

  PROP TOTAL -                -             -                -            -                -                 -            -              -                     

Grand Total 3,159,943     -             692,187        -            -                1,794,130      8,265        1,802,395    1,357,548          

BACWA Revenue Report as of September 30, 2020

FUND 
# DEPARTMENT REVENUE TYPE

 AMENDED 
BUDGET 

CURRENT PERIOD YEAR TO DATE 

 UNOBLIGATED 

DEPARTMENT REVENUE TYPE
 AMENDED 

BUDGET 

CURRENT PERIOD YEAR TO DATE 

 UNOBLIGATED 

DEPARTMENT REVENUE TYPE
 AMENDED 

BUDGET 

CURRENT PERIOD YEAR TO DATE 

 UNOBLIGATED 

18



JOB  ENC PV  DA JV ENC PV  DA JV
LABOR -          
AS-Executive Director 1011123 190,000                           (31,667)              31,667            -                  -              158,333             31,667                -                         -                   190,000                 -                            
AS-Assistant Executive Directo 1011124 102,551                           (9,071)                 9,071              -                  -              76,360               26,191                -                         -                   102,551                 -                            
AS-Regulatory Program Manager 1011149 141,170                           (27,619)              27,619            -                  -              140,966             40,155                -                   181,121                 (39,951)                    
ADMINISTRATION
AS-EBMUD Financial Services 1011125 42,448                             -                      -                  -                  -              42,448               -                       -                         -                   42,448                   -                            
AS-Audit Services 1014512 5,345                                (5,240)                 5,240              -                  -              5,240                  5,240                  -                         (5,240)             5,240                     105                           
AS-BACWA Admin Expense 1011118 7,959                                -                      -                  -                  -              -                      -                       -                         -                   -                         7,959                        
AS-Insurance 1011126 4,776                                -                      -                  4,971              -              -                      -                       4,971                     -                   4,971                     (195)                          
MEETINGS
GBS-Meeting Support-Annual 1014514 14,369                             -                      -                  -                  -              -                      -                       -                         -                   -                         14,369                     
GBS-Meeting Support-Exec Bd 1014513 2,653                                -                      -                  -                  -              2,653                  -                       -                         -                   2,653                     -                            
GBS-Meeting Support-Misc 1014516 5,306                                -                      -                  125                 -              -                      -                       125                         -                   125                         5,181                        
GBS-Meeting Support-Pardee 1014515 6,367                                -                      -                  -                  -              -                      -                       -                         -                   -                         6,367                        
COMMUNICATION
CAR-BACWA File Storage 1014518 765                                   -                      -                  -                  -              -                      -                       -                         -                   -                         765                           
CAR-BACWA IT Software 1014520 1,785                                -                      -                  64                    -              -                      -                       370                         -                   370                         1,415                        
CAR-BACWA IT Support 1014519 2,652                                -                      -                  -                  -              2,652                  -                       -                         -                   2,652                     -                            
CAR-BACWA Website Dev/Maint 1011116 612                                   -                      -                  -                  -              -                      -                       -                         -                   -                         612                           
CAR-BACWA Website Hosting 1014517 1,530                                -                      -                  -                  -              -                      -                       -                         -                   -                         1,530                        
LEGAL
LS-Executive Board Support 1011110 2,176                                -                      -                  -                  -              2,176                  -                       -                         -                   2,176                     -                            
LS-Regulatory Support 1011107 2,706                                -                      -                  -                  -              2,706                  -                       -                         -                   2,706                     -                            
COMMITTEES
AIR-Air Issues&Regulation Grp 1014253 76,000                             -                      -                  -                  -              71,095               3,905                  -                         -                   75,000                   1,000                        
BC-BAPPG 1011147 130,000                           (4,257)                 6,520              168                 -              55,161               23,101                10,085                   (2,025)             86,322                   43,678                     
BC-Biosolids Committee 1011101 1,000                                -                      -                  -                  -              -                      -                       -                         -                   -                         1,000                        
BC-Collections System 1011097 1,000                                -                      -                  -                  -              -                      -                       -                         -                   -                         1,000                        
BC-InfoShare Groups 1011102 1,750                                -                      -                  -                  -              -                      -                       -                         -                   -                         1,750                        
BC-Laboratory Committee 1011103 1,000                                -                      -                  -                  -              -                      -                       -                         -                   -                         1,000                        
BC-Permit Committee 1011098 1,300                                -                      -                  -                  -              -                      -                       -                         -                   -                         1,300                        
BC-Pretreatment Committee 1011146 1,000                                -                      -                  -                  -              -                      -                       -                         -                   -                         1,000                        
BC-Water Recycling Committee 1011100 1,000                                -                      -                  -                  -              -                      -                       -                         -                   -                         1,000                        
BC-Manager's Roundtable 1014777 1,000                                -                      -                  -                  -              -                      -                       -                         -                   -                         1,000                        
BC-Miscellaneous Committee Sup 1011104 45,000                     -                      -                  -                  -              -                      -                       -                         -                   -                         45,000                     
COLLABORATIVES
CAS-Arleen Navaret Award 1012201 -                                    -                      -                  -                  -              -                      -                       -                         -                   -                         -                            
CAS-FWQC 1012202 7,500                                -                      -                  -                  -              -                      -                       -                         -                   -                         7,500                        
CAS-Misc Collaborative Sup 1014521 5,000                                -                      -                  -                  -              -                      -                       -                         -                   -                         5,000                        
CAS-PSSEP 1011112 20,000                             -                      -                  -                  -              -                      -                       -                         -                   -                         20,000                     
CAS-Stanford ERC 1011969 10,000                             -                      -                  -                  -              -                      -                       -                         -                   -                         10,000                     
BACWA TOTAL 837,720                    (77,854)              80,117            5,328              -              559,790             130,259              15,551                   (7,265)             698,335                139,385                   

TECH SUPPORT
WQA-CE-Technical Support 1011127 250,000                           -                      -                  -                  -              -                      -                       3,548                     (3,548)             -                         250,000                   
WQA-CE-Nutrient WS Permit Comm 1014021 2,800,000                        -                      -                  -                  -              -                      -                       1,000,000             -                   1,000,000             1,800,000                
WQA-CE Risk Reduction 1014023 7,500                                -                      -                  -                  -              -                      -                       -                         -                   -                         7,500                        
WQA-CE Addl Work Under Permit 1014254 100,000                           -                      -                  -                  -              182,000             -                       -                         -                   182,000                 (82,000)                    
WQA-CE Voluntary Nutr Contrib 1014529 -                                    -                      -                  -                  -              -                      -                       30,000                   -                   30,000                   (30,000)                    
Nutrient Workshops 1015015 -                                    -                      -                  -                  -              -                      -                       -                         -                   -                         -                            
WQA-CE-Nature Based Solutions 1015367 200,000                           (62,703)              62,703        -             -          373,218             62,702           -                   -              435,920           (235,920)            
Recycled Water Evaluation 1015566 60,000                             -                      -                  -                  -              135,659             6,176                  -                         -                   141,835                 (81,835)                    
WQA - CEC Investigations 1015569 50,000                             65,000                -                  -                  -              65,000               -                       -                         -                   65,000                   (15,000)                    
TECH SUPPORT (CBC) TOTAL 3,467,500                 2,297             62,703        -             -          755,877         68,878           1,033,548         (3,548)         1,854,755         1,612,745          
GRAND TOTAL 4,305,220                 (75,557)          142,820      5,328          -          1,315,667      199,137         1,049,099         (10,813)       2,553,090         1,752,130          

BABC
AS-Assistant Executive Directo 1011124 -                                    -                      -                  -                  -              -                      -                       -                         -                   -                         -                            
Administrative Support 1011142 -                                    -                      -                  -                  -              -                      -                       -                         -                   -                         -                            
BDO Contract Expenses 1011143 -                                    -                      -                  -                  -              -                      -                       -                         -                   -                         -                            
AS-Regulatory Program Manager 1011149 -                                    -                      -                  -                  -              -                      -                       -                         -                   -                         -                            
Collateral Development 1015374 -                                    -                      -                  -                  -              1,125                  -                       -                         -                   1,125                     (1,125)                      
Program Manager Expense 1015376 -                                    (5,919)                 5,919              -                  -              77,668               12,332                -                         -                   90,000                   (90,000)                    
BABC TOTAL -                           (5,919)            5,919          -             -          78,793           12,332           -                   -              91,125             (91,125)              

BACC
Administrative Support 1011142 -                           -                 -             -             -          -                -                 -                   -              -                   -                     
BACC TOTAL -                           -                 -             -             -          -                -                 -                   -              -                   -                     

WOT
Administrative Support 1011142 -                                    -                      -                  -                  -              -                      -                       -                         -                   -                         -                            
BDO Contract Expenses 1011143 -                           -                 -             -             -          -                -                 -                         -                   -                         -                     

-                           -                 -             -             -          -                -                 -                   -              -                   -                     

GRAND TOTAL (BDO, CBC, BABC, BACC, WOT) 4,305,220                 (81,476)          148,739      5,328          -          1,394,460      211,469         1,049,099         (10,813)       2,644,215         1,661,005          

BACWA Expense Detail Report for September 30, 2020

EXPENSE TYPE AMENDED BUDGET
CURRENT PERIOD YEAR TO DATE

OBLIGATED UNOBLIGATED

19



 ENC PV  DA JV ENC PV  DA JV
811 Prop84BayAreaIntegRegnlWtrMgmt BDO Fund Transfers -                  -                -              -               -              -                 -                 -                    -               -                   -                     
811 Prop84BayAreaIntegRegnlWtrMgmt Administrative Support -                 -               -             5,840         (5,840)       -                -                5,840               (5,840)        -                   -                     
811 Prop84BayAreaIntegRegnlWtrMgmt BDO Contract Expenses -                  -                -              -               -              -                 -                 -                    -               -                   -                     
811 Prop84BayAreaIntegRegnlWtrMgmt Regional Green Infrastructure -                  -                -              118,045       (118,045)    -                 -                 118,045            (118,045)      -                   -                     
811 Prop84BayAreaIntegRegnlWtrMgmt Hacienda Ave Green St Improvem -                  -                -              -               -              -                 -                 -                    -               -                   -                     
811 Prop84BayAreaIntegRegnlWtrMgmt Sears Point Wtlnd & Wtrshd Res -                  -                -              -               -              -                 -                 -                    -               -                   -                     
811 Prop84BayAreaIntegRegnlWtrMgmt Bay Friendly Landscape TP -                  -                -              -               -              -                 -                 -                    -               -                   -                     
811 Prop84BayAreaIntegRegnlWtrMgmt Weather Based Irrigation Cntrl -                  -                -              -               -              -                 -                 -                    -               -                   -                     
811 Prop84BayAreaIntegRegnlWtrMgmt High Efficiency Toilet & UR -                  -                -              -               -              -                 -                 -                    -               -                   -                     
811 Prop84BayAreaIntegRegnlWtrMgmt High Efficiency Toilet & UI -                  -                -              -               -              -                 -                 -                    -               -                   -                     
811 Prop84BayAreaIntegRegnlWtrMgmt High Efficiency Clothes Washrs -                  -                -              -               -              -                 -                 -                    -               -                   -                     
811 Prop84BayAreaIntegRegnlWtrMgmt Napa Co. Rainwater HP -                  -                -              -               -              -                 -                 -                    -               -                   -                     
811 Prop84BayAreaIntegRegnlWtrMgmt Conservation Program Admin -                  -                -              -               -              -                 -                 -                    -               -                   -                     
811 Prop84BayAreaIntegRegnlWtrMgmt Flood Infrastructure Mapping T -                  -                -              -               -              -                 -                 -                    -               -                   -                     
811 Prop84BayAreaIntegRegnlWtrMgmt Stormwater Improvements & PBP -                  -                -              -               -              -                 -                 -                    -               -                   -                     
811 Prop84BayAreaIntegRegnlWtrMgmt Richmond Shoreline & San PFP -                  -                -              -               -              -                 -                 -                    -               -                   -                     
811 Prop84BayAreaIntegRegnlWtrMgmt Pescadero Integrated FRAH -                  -                -              -               -              -                 -                 -                    -               -                   -                     
811 Prop84BayAreaIntegRegnlWtrMgmt Restoration Guidance, San FC -                  -                -              15,353         (15,353)      -                 -                 15,353              (15,353)        -                   -                     
811 Prop84BayAreaIntegRegnlWtrMgmt SF Estuary Steelhead MP -                  -                -              -               -              -                 -                 -                    -               -                   -                     
811 Prop84BayAreaIntegRegnlWtrMgmt Stream Restoration in North BD -                  -                -              -               -              -                 -                 -                    -               -                   -                     
811 Prop84BayAreaIntegRegnlWtrMgmt Watershed Program Admnstrtn -                  -                -              8,463           (8,463)         -                 -                 8,463                (8,463)          -                   -                     

PRP84 TOTAL -                  -                -              147,701       (147,701)    -                 -                 147,701            (147,701)      -                   -                     

BACWA Expense Detail Report for September 30, 2020

DEPTID DEPARTMENT EXPENSE TYPE
AMENDED 
BUDGET

CURRENT PERIOD YEAR TO DATE
OBLIGATED UNOBLIGATED

20



JOB
 Admin & 
General  Contributons 

 Interest, 
Transfers,Ot

hers 
 Admin & 
General  Contributons 

 Interest, 
Transfers,O

thers  ACTUAL 
811 Prop84BayAreaIntegRegnlWtrMgmt 1011117 BDO- Interest Income from LAIF -                           -                  -                   -             -                 -                 -            -                  -                     
811 Prop84BayAreaIntegRegnlWtrMgmt 1011142 Administrative Support -                           -                  -                   -             -                 -                 -            -                  -                     
811 Prop84BayAreaIntegRegnlWtrMgmt 1011691 Water Efficient Landscape Reba -                           -                  -                   -             -                 -                 -            -                  -                     
811 Prop84BayAreaIntegRegnlWtrMgmt 1011702 Sears Point Wtlnd & Wtrshd Res -                           -                  -                   -             -                 -                 -            -                  -                     
811 Prop84BayAreaIntegRegnlWtrMgmt 1011705 Regional Green Infrastructure -                           -                  -                   -             -                 -                 -            -                  -                     
811 Prop84BayAreaIntegRegnlWtrMgmt 1011706 Hacienda Ave Green St Improvem -                           -                  -                   -             -                 -                 -            -                  -                     
811 Prop84BayAreaIntegRegnlWtrMgmt 1011707 WQ Improve Flood Mgmt & EP -                           -                  -                   -             -                 -                 -            -                  -                     
811 Prop84BayAreaIntegRegnlWtrMgmt 1011911 Stream Restoration w/Schools i -                           -                  -                   -             -                 -                 -            -                  -                     
811 Prop84BayAreaIntegRegnlWtrMgmt 1011912 Flood Infrastructure Mapping -                           -                  -                   -             -                 -                 -            -                  -                     
811 Prop84BayAreaIntegRegnlWtrMgmt 1012209 Water Efficient LRP -                           -                  -                   -             -                 -                 -            -                  -                     
811 Prop84BayAreaIntegRegnlWtrMgmt 1012210 Bay Friendly Landscape TP -                           -                  -                   -             -                 -                 -            -                  -                     
811 Prop84BayAreaIntegRegnlWtrMgmt 1012211 Weather Based Irrigation Cntrl -                           -                  -                   -             -                 -                 -            -                  -                     
811 Prop84BayAreaIntegRegnlWtrMgmt 1012212 High Efficiency Toilet & UR -                           -                  -                   -             -                 -                 -            -                  -                     
811 Prop84BayAreaIntegRegnlWtrMgmt 1012213 High Efficiency Toilet & UI -                           -                  -                   -             -                 -                 -            -                  -                     
811 Prop84BayAreaIntegRegnlWtrMgmt 1012214 High Efficiency Clothes Washrs -                           -                  -                   -             -                 -                 -            -                  -                     
811 Prop84BayAreaIntegRegnlWtrMgmt 1012215 Napa Co. Rainwater HP -                           -                  -                   -             -                 -                 -            -                  -                     
811 Prop84BayAreaIntegRegnlWtrMgmt 1012216 Conservation Program Admin -                           -                  -                   -             -                 -                 -            -                  -                     
811 Prop84BayAreaIntegRegnlWtrMgmt 1012218 Stream Restoration in North BD -                           -                  -                   -             -                 -                 -            -                  -                     
811 Prop84BayAreaIntegRegnlWtrMgmt 1012219 Flood Infrastructure Mapping T -                           -                  -                   -             -                 -                 -            -                  -                     
811 Prop84BayAreaIntegRegnlWtrMgmt 1012220 Stormwater Improvements & PBP -                           -                  -                   -             -                 -                 -            -                  -                     
811 Prop84BayAreaIntegRegnlWtrMgmt 1012221 Richmond Shoreline & San PFP -                           -                  -                   -             -                 -                 -            -                  -                     
811 Prop84BayAreaIntegRegnlWtrMgmt 1012222 Pescadero Integrated FRAH -                           -                  -                   -             -                 -                 -            -                  -                     
811 Prop84BayAreaIntegRegnlWtrMgmt 1012223 Restoration Guidance, San FC -                           -                  -                   -             -                 -                 -            -                  -                     
811 Prop84BayAreaIntegRegnlWtrMgmt 1012224 SF Estuary Steelhead MP -                           -                  -                   -             -                 -                 -            -                  -                     
811 Prop84BayAreaIntegRegnlWtrMgmt 1012225 Watershed Program Admnstrtn -                           -                  -                   -             -                 -                 -            -                  -                     

               PROP 84 TOTAL -                           -                  -                   -             -                 -                 -            -                  -                     

BACWA Revenue Report as of September 30, 2020

DEPTID DEPARTMENT REVENUE TYPE
 AMENDED 
BUDGET 

CURRENT PERIOD YEAR TO DATE 

 UNOBLIGATED 

21



BACWA EXECUTIVE BOARD AUTHORIZATION REQUEST 

AGENDA NO.:       4   ______________ 

FILE NO.:  _20-21__________ 

MEETING DATE:     November 20, 2020 

TITLE: Approval of the BACWA Annual Report to its Members for FY2020. 

☐ RECEIPT ☐ DISCUSSION ☐ RESOLUTION ☒ APPROVAL

RECOMMENDED ACTION 
Approve the BACWA Annual Report to its membership for FY2020. 

SUMMARY 
At the end of each fiscal year BACWA is required to prepare and Annual Report to its membership which 
describes the technical and financial activities of the Association for the preceding year. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
The Annual Report to its members is prepared by BACWA staff. 

ALTERNATIVES 
Do not approve the Annual Report to the membership. This is not recommended as the Annual Report is 
required by the BACWA JPA.  

Attachment:  
BACWA FY2020 Annual Report to Members 

Approved: 

Date: _________________________ _______________________________ 
Amit Mutsuddy, BACWA Chair 

22



 
 

1 
 

BACWA Annual Report  

Fiscal Year 2019/2020 
As water quality regulation becomes increasingly complex and stringent, BACWA provides 
technical expertise and a venue for collaboration to its membership, and a public utility 
perspective to negotiations and partnerships with regulators. With over forty Publicly Owned 
Treatment Works (POTWs) and more than a hundred collection systems in the San Francisco 
Bay (SF Bay) region, BACWA provides a needed forum for effective coordination to ensure 
good science-based regulations and continued water quality improvements throughout the Bay 
Area.  

The clean water community’s focus has shifted rapidly from industrial pollutant reduction to 
renewable resource generation, climate change mitigation and adaptation, and understanding the 
potential impacts of emerging contaminants on the aquatic ecosystem. Concurrently, tightening, 
and sometimes conflicting, air quality and biosolids management regulations are increasing 
cross-media challenges. Nutrient science and policy continue to be a major focus for BACWA. 
Member dues and fees support BACWA’s goal of ensuring that nutrient regulations are well-
supported by science and that any necessary reductions in nutrient loading will be equitable and 
lead to quantifiable improvements in water quality. Even as the issues change, BACWA 
continues to offer the services to our members and the public that have garnered the organization 
much respect and success.   

Below is a list of BACWA’s accomplishments over the previous fiscal year. 

List of Accomplishments 

Nutrient Activities – see BACWA Nutrient Webpage 
• Submitted Scoping and Evaluation Plans for the Nature Based Systems Studies, and the 

Recycled Water Evaluation required by the 2nd Watershed Permit, adopted on May 8, 
2019. 

• Worked with HDR and SFEI to complete a ‘Request for Information’ for the Nature 
Based Systems Studies and the Recycled Water Evaluation.   

• Submitted the Annual Update to the Nutrient Management Strategy Science Plan. 
• Submitted the Group Nutrient Annual Report, using the new water year reporting period 

(October 1 through September 30), in compliance with the 2nd Nutrient Watershed 
Permit.  

• Committed to accelerated science funding and funded $2.4M in scientific studies and 
program coordination overseen by the Steering Committee for the Nutrient Management 
Strategy (NMS).  

• Participated in the Nutrient Management Strategy Steering Committee and Planning 
Subcommittee governing the scientific studies. 

• Participated in the Nutrient Technical Workgroup.  

23

https://bacwa.org/nutrients/
https://bacwa.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/12/Final-NBS-Draft-Scoping-and-Evaluation-Plan-med.pdf
https://bacwa.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/12/BACWA_RW_ScopingEvalPlan_20191126.pdf
https://bacwa.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/02/Group-Annual-Report-2020_FINAL.pdf


 
 

2 
 

 
Permit Compliance Activities 

• Continue funding risk reduction work via a grant program in compliance with the 2017 
Mercury and PCB Watershed Permit. 

• Prepared a letter to the Regional Water Board, on behalf of our members demonstrating 
compliance with special studies required by NPDES permits.  

• Reported participation in the Alternate Monitoring Plan, and contributions to the 
Regional Monitoring Program to the Regional Water Board. 

• Worked with members to submit the Land Application of Biosolids Annual Report to the 
Solano County Board of Supervisors. 

Regulatory Advocacy 
• Conducted regular bimonthly meetings with Regional Water Board staff to discuss 

regulatory issues of interest to the BACWA community. 
• Worked with the Regional Water Board to revise the instantaneous chlorine residual 

effluent limit in the Basin Plan. 
• Kept in communication with the Regional Water Board and Bay Area Air Quality 

Management District regarding operational, compliance, and enforcement challenges 
related to the COVID-19 public health emergency.  

• Secured legal review of enforcement provisions for State Water Board’s proposed ELAP 
regulations. 

• Worked with POTWs statewide to respond to common issues, such as the State Water 
Board’s proposed Toxicity Provisions, newly adopted ELAP Regulations, CECs science 
and regulation, proposed mandate to eliminate costal discharges, sewer exfiltration, and 
the Sanitary Sewer Systems Waste Discharge Requirements reissuance. 

• Worked with Regional Water Board and State Water Board staff to ensure a smooth 
transition of the R2-1996-011 recycled water permittees to the State General Order; the 
transition was completed in April 2020. 

• Collaborated with SFEI to measure background enterococcus levels in the SF Bay to be 
used in effluent limit calculations in members’ permits. The report was finalized in June 
2020. 

• Worked with Regional Water Board, SFEI, and members to develop Regional POTW 
jurisdictional map. 

• Worked to strengthen relationship with the Bay Area Air Quality Management District 
and collaborate in Rule development impacting POTWs. 

• Provided the following comment letters, including letters submitted jointly with other 
Associations: 

 
o Letters to State Water Board 

 Comments on California Water Resilience Portfolio Initiative – 9-30-19 
 Comments on the Proposed Environmental Laboratory Accreditation 

Program (ELAP) Regulations – 12-20-19 

24

https://bacwa.org/mercurypcb-risk-reduction-materials/
https://bacwa.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/01/BACWA-NPDES-Permit-Letter-2020-submitted.pdf
https://bacwa.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/08/BACWA-2020_Enterococci-report_final.pdf
https://bacwa.org/document-category/comment-letters/


 
 

3 
 

 Comments on Appendices J and K to the Draft Staff Report of the Draft  
Toxicity Provisions – 02-10-20 

 Comments on Draft Supplemental Guidance: Screening and Evaluating 
Vapor Intrusion – 06-01-20 

o Letters to BAAQMD 
 Feedback to inform the development of Regulation 13, and Rules 2, 3, and 

4. – 10-24-19 
 Letter on the Revised Proposed Rule 13-2 (Organic Material Handling 

Operations) – 03-06-2020 
o Letters to EPA 

 Comments on Endangered Species Risk Assessment Process for Biological 
Evaluations of Pesticides – 08-15-19 

 Zinc and Zinc Salts Registration Review – Proposed Interim Decision 
(antimicrobials used in pools, spas, and hot tubs) – 09-30-19 

 Comments on the Draft National Water Reuse Action Plan (with CVCWA) 
– 12-16-19 

 Comment on the Preliminary Registration Review Work Plan for 
Methoprene – 03-24-20 

o Letters to Other Legislative Bodies and Regulatory Entities: 
 US Senate and House of Representatives: Support Letter for Federal Wipes 

Legislation (Coalition Letter) – 11-21-19 
 California Ocean Protection Council: Comments on Strategic Plan to 

Protect California’s Coast and Ocean 2020-2025 (Coalition Letter) – 12-13-
19 

 California Department of Toxic Substances Control: Letter of Support for 
Listing Carpets and Rugs Containing Perfluoroalkyl or Polyfluoroalkyl 
Substance as a Priority Product (Coalition Letter) – 05-15-20 

Member communication and educational opportunities 

• Conducted routine communication with our membership through the Annual Meeting and 
Monthly Board meetings. 

• Published the monthly BACWA Bulletin. 
• Maintained BACWA website to improve usability and access to documents. 
• Provided three updates to the BACWA Regulatory Issues summary matrix. 
• Provided support to the informal group, Managers Roundtable, to help provide an 

ongoing forum for Bay Area general managers and directors to convene and discuss 
issues of mutual concern as well as share information and experiences. 

• Maintained continuity through the COVID-19 public health emergency, by switching to 
teleconference only meetings. 

• Provided coordination between POTWs and researchers for Wastewater Epidemiology 
related to SARS-CoV-2 monitoring. 

25

https://bacwa.org/bacwa-bulletins/
https://bacwa.org/
https://bacwa.org/regulatory-issues-summaries/


 
 

4 
 

• Kept members appraised on COVID-19 resources for wastewater professionals through 
regular updates on available webinars, published research, collaboration opportunities, 
and updates from CWEA, CASA, WEF, CDC, and other regional and national 
organizations. 

• Collaborated with CWEA to issue Continuing Education Units (CEUs) to members who 
attend committee meetings with a strong education component (mostly through technical 
presentations at BAPPG, Collection Systems, and Laboratory Committee meetings). 

Support Educational, Research, Advocacy Efforts, and Programs of Special Benefit 
• Conducted regional outreach campaigns related to flushable wipes, pharmaceutical 

disposal, pesticides in toxic flea and tick control, and Fats, Oils, and Grease (FOG). 
Flushable wipes campaign was especially important in Spring 2020 at the onset of the 
COVID-19 public health emergency. A community advisory notice on this topic was 
issued in April 2020 and the campaign was also featured in the Mercury News. 

• Provided funding for the California Product Stewardship Council and the Product 
Stewardship Institute. 

• Provided funding for the Reinventing the Nation’s Urban Water Infrastructure 
(ReNUWIt), an interdisciplinary, multi-institution research center whose goal is to 
change the ways in which we manage urban water. 

• Provided funding for the EPA’s Water Reuse Action Plan to “Support Local and 
Regional Reuse Projects by Identifying Challenges, Opportunities, and Models for 
interagency Collaboration” (Action Item 2.2.16). 

• Provided administrative assistance for member agency funding of Wastewater Operator 
Training courses offered through Solano Community College. 

• Provided administrative and contract support for the Bay Area Biosolids Coalition 
 

External Representation and Collaboration  
• Provided representation at external groups such as: 

o Risk Management Plan (RMP) Technical Review Committee 
o RMP Steering Committee 
o Aquatic Science Center (ASC)/SFEI Governing Board 
o San Francisco Bay Nutrient Governance Steering Committee 
o San Francisco Bay Nutrient Technical Workgroup 
o State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) Nutrient Stakeholder advisory 

group 
o SWRCB Bacterial Objectives stakeholder group 
o SWRCB Mercury Amendments to the State Plan stakeholder group 
o Summit Partners 
o Bay Area Integrated Regional Water Management Plan (BAIRWMP) 
o National Association of Clean Water Agencies (NACWA) Emerging Contaminants 
o California Association of Sanitation Agencies (CASA) State Legislative Committee 
o CASA Regulatory Workgroup 

26



 
 

5 
 

o ReNUWIt  
o RMP Microplastics Workgroup 
o Bay Area Regional Reliability Task Force 
o Association of Water Technologies (AWT) Certification Committee  
o WateReuse Workgroup on Recycled Water Policy 
o San Francisco Estuary Partnership 
o California Product Stewardship Coalition 
o Ocean Protection Council 
o Bay Area Climate Adaptation Network 
o One Water Network 
o Coastal Hazards Adaptation Resiliency Group 

 
Grant Efforts 

• Managed Administration of Proposition 84, Round 1, grant funds. 
• Supported member agencies and partner organizations in grant applications for nutrient 

and biosolids treatment projects, and wetlands projects. 

BACWA Staffing 

In FY20, BACWA completed recruitments for the Executive Director and Assisstant Exective Director 
positions upon the retirement of David Williams and Lorrie O’Neill. BACWA welcomed Lorien Fono 
and Jennifer Dyment as they fill those respective roles and work with the BACWA Executive Board to 
envision BACWA’s role as we move into the next decade. 

BACWA Committees 

Support for BACWA’s committees is a key means for BACWA to ensure communication 
between our members and to formulate positions on emerging issues that accurately reflect the 
needs of our membership. BACWA maintains the following active committees: 

• Air Issues and Regulations (AIR) 
• Bay Area Pollution Prevention Group – see BAPPG 2019 Annual Report 
• Collection Systems 
• Laboratory 
• Operations/Maintenance Infoshare 
• Permits 
• Pretreatment  
• Recycled Water 

27

https://bacwa.org/document/bappg-2018-annual-report/


 
 

6 
 

 

Financial Report 

BACWA FY20 
BUDGET Line Item Description FY 2020 

Budget  
Actuals 

June 2020 

Actual % 
of Budget 
June 2020 

Variance 

REVENUES & 
FUNDING 

     

 Dues   Principals' Contributions  $506,774 $506,775 100.00% $1 

  
 Associate & Affiliate 
Contributions  $184,111 $185,712 101% $1601 

 Fees   Clean Bay Collaborative  $675,000 $674,250 100% -$750 
   Nutrient Surcharge  $1,700,000 $1,700,00 100% $0 

  
 Member Voluntary 
Nutrient Contributions  $0 $0   $0 

 Other Receipts   AIR Non-Member  $6,936 $6,936 100% $0 
   BAPPG Non-Members  $3,876 $3,876 100% $0 
   Other $0 $2,500   $2,500 

 Fund Transfer  
 Special Program Admin 
Fees  $5,100 $9,117 179% $4017 

 Interest 
Income   LAIF   $20,000 $52,827 264% 32,827 
   Higher Yield Investments  $18,000 $1,588 9% -$16,413 
  Total Revenue $3,119,797 $3,143,631 100.76% $23,834 

 

  

28



 
 

7 
 

 

BACWA FY20 
BUDGET Line Item Description FY 2020 

Budget  
Actuals 

June 2020 

Actual % 
of Budget 
June 2020 

Variance 

EXPENSES      

Labor  
    

  Executive Director $207,531 $200,226 96% -$7,305 

  
Assistant Executive 
Director $100,907 $62,140 62% -$38,767 

  
Regulatory Program 
Manager $137,727 $131,857 96% -$5,870 

 Total $446,165 $394,223 88% -$51,942 
           

Administration           
  EBMUD Financial Services $41,616 $29,028 70% -$12,588 
  Auditing Services  $5,240 $8,740 167% $3,500 
  Administrative Expenses $7,803 $3,490 45% -$4,313 
  Insurance $4,682 $4,696 100% $14 
  Total $59,341 $45,954 77% -$13,387 
           

Meetings           
  EB Meetings $2,601 $1,552 60% -$1,049 
  Annual Meeting $12,000 $13,928 116% $1,928 
  Pardee  $6,242 $5,835 93% -$407 
  Misc. Meetings $5,202 $765 15% -$4,437 
  Total $26,045 $22,080 85% -$3,965 
           
Communication           
  Website Hosting $600 $600 100% $0 
  File Storage $750 $720 96% -$30 

  
Website 
Development/Maintenance $1,500 $618 41% -$882 

  IT Support (As Needed) $2,600 $637 25% -$1,963 
  Other Communication $1,750 $680 39% -$1,070 
  Total $7,200 $3,255 45% -$3,945 

      
      

29



 
 

8 
 

Legal           
  Regulatory Support $2,653 $3,652 138% $999 
  Executive Board Support $2,133 $6,518 306% $4,385 
  Total $4,786 $10,170 212% $5,384 
           

Committees           
  AIR $76,000 $61,681 81% -$14,319 
  BAPPG $100,000 $118,719 119% $18,719 
  Biosolids Committee $1,000 $0 0% -$1,000 
  Collections System $1,000 $0 0% -$1,000 
  InfoShare Groups $1,000 $1,110 110% $100 
  Laboratory Committee $1000 $0 0% -$1000 
  Permits Committee $1,300 $569 44% -$731 
  Pretreatment $2,00 $3,402 170% $1,402 
  Recycled Water Committee $1,000 $0 0% -$1000 
  Misc Committee Support $45,000 $13,327 30% -$31,673 
  Manager's Roundtable $1,000 $372 37% -$628 
  Total $230,300 $199,170 86% -$31,130 
            
Collaboratives           

  
State of the Estuary (SFEP-
biennial) $0 $0 0% $0 

  Arleen Navarret Award $2,500 $1,923 77% -$577 
  FWQC (Fred Andes) $7,500 $0 0% -$7,500 
  Stanford ERC (ReNUWIt) $10,000 $10,000 100% $0 
  Misc $5,000 $3,100 62% -$1,900 
  Total $25,000 $15,023 60% -$9,977 
            
Other           
  Unbudgeted Items         
  Other $0 $25,000   $25,000 
  Total $0 $25,000   $25,000 

 

  

30



 
 

9 
 

 

Technical 
Support           
  Nutrients         
  Watershed  $2,000,000 $2,400,000 120% $400,000 

  
NMS Voluntary 
Contributions $0 $0 0% $0 

  
Additional work under 
permit $100,000 $50,298 50% -$49,702 

  
Regional Study on Non-
Gray Scape $500,000 $64,080 13% -$435,920 

  
Member Voluntary 
Nutrient Contributions $0 $0   $0 

  Nutrient Workshop(s) $0 $0 0% $0 
  General Tech Support $52,020 $45,950 88% -$6,070 
  Risk Reduction $20,000 $12,500 63% -$7,500 
  Total $2,672,020 $2,572,828 96% -$99,192 
           
  TOTAL EXPENSES $3,470,857 $3,287,703 94.72% -$183,154 

            

  
NET INCOME BEFORE 
TRANSFERS -$351,060 -$144,072     

  
TRANSFERS FROM 
RESERVES $351,060 $144,072      

  
NET INCOME AFTER 
TRANSFERS $0 $0      

      

List of BACWA Members as of June 30, 2020 
Principals 
East Bay Municipal Utility District 
East Bay Dischargers Authority  
- Castro Valley Sanitary District 
- City of Hayward 
- City of San Leandro 
- Oro Loma Sanitary District 
- Union Sanitary District  
San Francisco Public Utilities Commission 
Central Contra Costa Sanitary District 
City of San Jose 

31



 
 

10 
 

 
Associates 
Central Marin Sanitation Agency 
City of Livermore 
City of Palo Alto 
City of Sunnyvale 
Delta Diablo  
Dublin-San Ramon Services District 
Fairfield Suisun Sewer District 
Napa Sanitation District 
Silicon Valley Clean Water 
San Mateo Wastewater Treatment Plant 
South San Francisco 
Vallejo Flood & Wastewater 
West County Agency 
 
Affiliates 
City of Alameda 
City American Canyon 
City of Albany 
City of Antioch 
City of Belmont 
City of Benicia 
City of Berkeley 
City of Brisbane  
City of Burlingame  
City of Calistoga 
City of Crockett 
City of Fairfield 
City of Millbrae 
City of Milpitas 
City of Mountain View 
City of Petaluma 
City of Piedmont 
City of Pleasanton 
City of Redwood City 
City of Richmond  
City of San Bruno 
City of San Carlos 
City of St. Helena 
Cupertino Sanitary District 

  
Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 
Mt. View Sanitary District  
North San Mateo Sanitation District  
Novato Sanitary District 
City of Pacifica 
Pinole/ Hercules Wastewater Treatment 
Plant 
Rodeo Sanitary District 
San Francisco International Airport  
San Mateo County, Department of Public 
Works 
Sanitary District of Marin County No. 1  
Sanitary District of Marin No. 2  
Sanitary District of Marin No. 5  
Sausalito/Marin City Sanitary District  
Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside  
Sewerage Agency of Southern Marin  
Sonoma County Water Agency  
Stege Sanitary District  
Tamalpais Community Services District 
Treasure Island  
West Bay Sanitary District  
West Valley Sanitation District  
Yountville 

 

32



BACWA EXECUTIVE BOARD AUTHORIZATION REQUEST 

AGENDA NO.:        5______________ 

FILE NO.:  __20-22_________ 

MEETING DATE:     November 20, 2020 

TITLE: Approval of Audited Financial Reports for the Year Ended June 30, 2020 

☐ RECEIPT ☐ DISCUSSION ☐ RESOLUTION ☒ APPROVAL

RECOMMENDED ACTION 
Approve the Audited Financial Report for Fiscal Year 2020 (BACWA Audit Communication Letter and 
BACWA Basic Financial Statement provided by EBMUD acting as Treasurer of BACWA. 

SUMMARY 
At the end of each fiscal year EBMUD requests an audit of the BACWA financials and provides the 
reports to BACWA. The audit are provided for Board approval. There were no significant issues found in 
the audit.  

FISCAL IMPACT 
Audits are prepared by Auditors engaged by EBMUD and paid for under the budgeted Audit Fees. 

ALTERNATIVES 
Do not approve the audited financial reports. This is not recommended as the audits are required by the 
BACWA JPA.  

Attachments:  
BACWA Audit Communication Letter 
BACWA Financial Statement  

Approved: 

Date: ________________________ _______________________________ 
Amit Mutsuddy, BACWA Chair 

33



September 2, 2020 
 
To the Board of Directors  
Bay Area Clean Water Agencies 
Oakland, California 
 
We have audited the financial statements of the Bay Area Clean Water Agencies (BACWA) for the year 
ended June 30, 2020. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our 
responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards and the 
Uniform Guidance, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We 
have communicated such information in our letter to you dated September 2, 2020. Professional 
standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit. 
 
Significant Audit Findings 
 
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 
 
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant 
accounting policies used by BACWA are described in the notes to the financial statements. No new 
accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during fiscal 
year 2019-2020.  
 
We noted no transactions entered into by BACWA during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative 
guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in 
the proper period. 
 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are 
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions 
about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance 
to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ 
significantly from those expected. 
 
The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 
 
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 
 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our 
audit. 
 
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 
 
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the 
audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. No 
misstatements were found.  
 

 
 
 

  
 

 

 
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2151 River Plaza Dr., Suite 150 Sacramento , CA 95833 Phone: 916.503.9691 Lance, Soll & Lunghard, LLP 
34



 
To the Board of Directors 
Bay Area Clean Water Agencies 
Oakland, California 
 
Disagreements with Management 
 
For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or 
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial 
statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the 
course of our audit. 
 
Management Representations 
 
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated September 2, 2020. 
 
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 
 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application 
of an accounting principle to BACWA’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s 
opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting 
accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, 
there were no such consultations with other accountants. 
 
Other Audit Findings or Issues 
 
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as BACWA’s auditors. However, these 
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a 
condition to our retention. 
 
Other Matters 
 
We applied certain limited procedures to management discussion and analysis which is required 
supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures 
consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing 
the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did 
not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.   
 
New Accounting Standards 
 
The following new Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements were effective 
for fiscal year 2019-2020 audit: 
 

GASB Statement No. 95, Postponement of Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance – 
The following pronouncements have been postponed as a temporary relieve to governments and 
other stakeholders in light of the COVID-19 pandemic and the new effective date are reflected in 
the following fiscal years. 
 
GASB Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosure Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowing and 
Direct Placements. 
 

35



 
To the Board of Directors 
Bay Area Clean Water Agencies 
Oakland, California 
 
The following Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements are effective in the 
following fiscal year audit and should be reviewed for proper implementation by management: 

 
Fiscal year 2021 

 
GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. 
 
GASB Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests - an Amendment of GASB Statement Nos. 14 
and 61. 
 

Fiscal year 2022 
 
GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. 
 
GASB Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction 
Period. 
 

Fiscal year 2023 
 
GASB Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations. 
 

Restriction on Use 
 
This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and management of the Bay Area 
Clean Water Agencies and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these 
specified parties. 
 
Very truly yours, 
 

 
Sacramento, California 
 

36



 

BAY AREA CLEAN WATER AGENCIES 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,2020 AND 2019 BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37



Independent Auditors’ Report

Management’s Discussion and Analysis ..................................................................................... 

Basic Financial Statements 

Government Auditing Standards

38



 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

 
Auditor’s Responsibility 

Government Auditing Standards,

 
 
 

  
 

 

 
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2151 River Plaza Dr., Suite 150 Sacramento , CA 95833 Phone: 916.503.9691 Lance, Soll & Lunghard, LLP 
39



Opinions 

 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 

Government Auditing Standards 

Government Auditing Standards,

Government Auditing Standards 

240



statement of net position statement of revenues, expenses, and 
changes in net position, a statement of cash flows, notes to the financial statements.  

statement of net position

341



statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position 
net position 

statement of cash flows

notes to basic financial statements 

442



543



644



745



846



A. Description of Reporting Entity

State Proposition 84 (Prop84)

The Water Quality Attainment Strategies (WQAS) 

Water/Wastewater Operator Training (WOT) 

Bay Area Biosolids Coalition (BABC) - 

947



 
B. Basis of Accounting and Presentation 

operating nonoperating 

Statement of Net Position – 

Net Investment in Capital Assets 

  Restricted 

  
Unrestricted

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

1048



 
C. Use of Estimates

D. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 
Fair Value Measurements 

E. Allocation of Costs 

1149



A. Composition 

B. Collateralization of Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 

 
C. Credit Risk 

 

1250



D. Fair Value Hierarchy 

1351



E. Interest Rate Risk
 

 
F. Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 
 

1452



1553



GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Government Auditing Standards

deficiency in internal control

material weakness

significant 
deficiency

16

 
 
 

  
 

 

 
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2151 River Plaza Dr., Suite 150 Sacramento , CA 95833 Phone: 916.503.9691 Lance, Soll & Lunghard, LLP 
54



Government Auditing Standards

Government Auditing Standards

1755



56



257



358



459



560



661



762



863



9

64



10

65



1166



1267



13

68



14

69



1570



1671



1772



1873



19

74



2075



2176



2277



2378



2479



2580



2681



2782



2883



2984



3085



3186



3
2

87



33

88



In
flu

en
t 

Pu
m

ps
 (5

)

Co
ar

se
 

Sc
re

en
s 

(5
)

Fi
ne

 
Sc

re
en

s (
5)

Ae
ra

te
d 

G
rit

 
Ch

am
be

rs
 (8

)

Pr
im

ar
y

Se
di

m
en

ta
tio

n 
Ta

nk
s 

(1
6)

G
rit

 D
ew

at
er

in
g 

(6
)

Pr
im

ar
y 

Sl
ud

ge
 P

um
ps

 (1
6)

Di
ge

st
er

s 
(1

1)

Se
co

nd
ar

y 
Cl

ar
ifi

er
s (

12
)

Re
ac

to
r B

as
in

s 
(8

)

O
xy

ge
n 

Pr
od

uc
tio

n 
Pl

an
t

G
ra

vi
ty

 B
el

t T
hi

ck
en

er
s 

(3
)

Sl
ud

ge
 

W
el

l
Ce

nt
rif

ug
e 

 
Fe

ed
 

Pu
m

ps
 (5

)

D
ew

at
er

in
g 

Ce
nt

rif
ug

es
 (5

)

Sl
ud

ge
 S

to
ra

ge
 

H
op

pe
rs

 (3
)

W
et

 W
ea

th
er

 M
id

-P
la

nt
 

Pu
m

p 
Bo

os
te

r S
ta

tio
n

5 
pu

m
ps

 @
 8

5 
M

G
D

 e
ac

h
PW

W
F 

= 
42

5 
M

G
D

5 
@

 1
06

 M
G

D
 e

ac
h

M
ix

 o
f 6

m
m

 a
nd

 3
/4

" 
Cl

im
be

r B
ar

 S
cr

ee
ns

8 
ta

nk
s 

@
 0

.2
4 

M
G

 e
ac

h
PW

W
F 

= 
42

5 
M

G
D

, 5
3 

M
G

D
 

ea
ch

6 
gr

it 
cl

as
si

fie
rs

18
 g

rit
 h

yd
ro

cy
cl

on
es

G
rit

 P
um

ps
 

(1
6)

16
 p

um
ps

 @
 

30
0,

 5
00

 g
pm

PW
W

F 
= 

32
0 

M
G

D
; 1

6 
ta

nk
s 

@
 2

0 
M

G
D

 e
ac

h
AD

W
F 

= 
  7

2 
M

G
D;

  9
 ta

nk
s 

@
 8

 M
G

D 
ea

ch
H

LR
 =

 5
00

 -
1,

30
0 

gp
d/

ft
2

3 
pu

m
ps

84
 M

G
D

 e
ac

h
PW

W
F 

= 
16

8 
M

G
D

 

G
ra

vi
ty

 S
lu

dg
e 

Th
ic

ke
ne

rs
 (2

)

2 
@

 0
.4

7 
M

G
 e

ac
h

H
LR

 =
 4

00
 g

pd
/f

t2
SL

R 
= 

16
 lb

/d
-f

t2

12
 T

an
ks

 @
 1

.6
1 

M
G

 e
ac

h,
 P

er
im

et
er

 F
ee

d
PW

W
F 

= 
16

8 
M

G
D

; 1
2 

ta
nk

s 
@

 1
4 

M
G

D
 e

ac
h

AD
W

F 
= 

  7
0 

M
G

D
; 1

0 
ta

nk
s 

@
 7

 M
G

D
 e

ac
h

P
W

W
F

P
e

a
k 

W
et

-W
e

a
th

e
r 

F
lo

w
R

A
S

R
et

u
rn

 A
ct

iv
a

te
d

 S
lu

d
ge

S
L

R
S

o
lid

s 
L

o
a

di
n

g
 R

a
te

S
R

T
S

o
lid

s 
R

e
si

de
n

ce
 T

im
e

W
A

S
W

a
st

e
 A

ct
iv

a
te

d 
S

lu
d

g
e

Ca
ke

 
Pu

m
ps

 
(5

)

3 
@

 1
50

 g
pm

, 2
 @

 3
00

 g
pm

2.
2 

-2
.9

%
 fe

ed
 s

ol
id

s
2 

-3
 D

T 
fe

ed
 p

er
 h

ou
r o

ve
ra

ll

T
o

ta
l s

to
ra

g
e

 =
 4

6
0

 y
d3

2
20

 K
lb

s 
e

a
ch

3 
be

lts
 @

 1
,1

00
 g

pm
 e

ac
h

3 
m

et
er

s 
lo

ng
 x

 2
 m

et
er

s 
w

id
e

66
,7

50
 g

al

8 
ta

nk
s 

@
 1

.5
8 

M
G

 e
ac

h
PW

W
F 

= 
16

8 
M

G
D

; 8
 ta

nk
s 

@
 2

1 
M

G
D 

ea
ch

AD
W

F 
= 

70
 M

G
D;

 5
 ta

nk
s 

@
 1

2 
M

G
D 

ea
ch

  

RA
S 

Pu
m

ps
 (4

)
W

AS
 P

um
ps

 
(3

)

Ce
nt

ra
te

 to
 P

rim
ar

y 
In

flu
en

t C
ha

nn
el

Fi
ltr

at
e 

to
 S

ec
on

da
ry

 In
flu

en
t C

ha
nn

el

So
di

um
 

H
yp

oc
hl

or
ite

-o
r-

Fe
rr

ic
 C

hl
or

id
e

So
di

um
 

H
yp

oc
hl

or
ite

Po
ly

m
er

F
er

ri
c 

C
h

lo
ri

de

La
nd

fil
l (

AD
C)

 (5
0 

-7
0%

)
La

nd
 A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
(3

0 
-5

0%
)

8 
Tr

uc
ks

/d
ay

 a
vg

.
24

-2
6 

W
et

 T
on

s/
lo

ad

Po
ly

m
er

4 
pu

m
ps

 @
 2

0 
M

G
D

 e
ac

h 
 

3 
pu

m
ps

 @
 1

00
0 

gp
m

 e
ac

h 
 

O
2

So
di

um
 

H
yp

oc
hl

or
ite

N
aO

Cl
In

te
rc

ep
to

rs
In

ta
ke

1st
St

ag
e:

 

2nd
St

ag
e:

Ca
ke

: 2
0 

-2
4%

TS

Po
ly

m
er

5 
ea

ch
6"

 M
an

ua
l  

Ba
r 

Sc
re

en
s

Vo
rt

ex
 G

rit
 

Ch
am

be
rs

 (2
)

G
rit

 P
um

ps
 (2

)
3 

pu
m

ps
 @

 2
75

 g
pm

Ef
flu

en
t P

um
ps

 (4
)

4 
pu

m
ps

 @
 1

07
 M

G
D

 e
ac

h:
  P

W
W

F 
= 

32
0 

M
G

D

So
di

um
 

H
yp

oc
hl

or
ite

S
od

iu
m

 
B

is
ul

fit
e

H
ig

h 
St

re
ng

th
 R

ec
ei

vi
ng

 S
ta

tio
ns

TW
AS

 P
um

ps
 (3

)
3 

pu
m

ps
 @

 2
50

 g
pm

 e
ac

h 
 

M
ic

ro
fil

tr
at

io
n

St
or

ag
e

1.
5 

M
G

0.
1 

m
ic

ro
n

20
00

 g
pm

2.
88

 M
G

D

Re
cy

cl
ed

 W
at

er
 

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n
56

0 
-1

74
0 

gp
m

0.
8 

-2
.5

 M
G

D

SF
 B

ay

Pl
an

t U
til

ity
 W

at
er

:
Se

al
 W

at
er

Po
ly

m
er

 D
ilu

tio
n

G
al

le
ry

 H
os

in
g

4 
st

ag
es

:  
 1

 d
ee

p-
m

ix
 a

no
xi

c 
zo

ne
3 

su
rf

ac
e 

ae
ra

tio
n 

zo
ne

s

2 
Pl

an
ts

 @
 8

5 
TP

D
 e

ac
h

Pl
an

t U
til

ity
 W

at
er

:
Ta

nk
 H

os
in

g
Li

ne
 F

lu
sh

in
g

Ex
te

rn
al

 C
us

to
m

er
s:

La
nd

sc
ap

in
g

D
us

t C
on

tr
ol

16
 ta

nk
s 

@
 0

.5
 M

G
 e

ac
h

La
nd

fil
l

La
nd

fil
l

Se
pt

ag
e 

Re
ce

iv
in

g

N
aO

Cl

St
or

ag
e 

Ba
sin

11
 M

G
, 5

 c
om

pa
rt

m
en

ts
PW

W
F 

= 
95

 M
G

D
Sc

um
 C

on
ce

nt
ra

to
rs

 (2
)

O
ve

rf
lo

w
 L

iq
ui

d 
to

 
H

ea
dw

or
ks

La
nd

fil
l

Fl
ar

es
 (4

)

3 
ea

ch
 @

 2
15

0 
KW

Co
m

pr
es

si
on

 ig
ni

tio
n 

bi
og

as
/d

ie
se

l e
ng

in
es

Po
w

er
 (n

et
) t

o 
Pl

an
t o

r G
rid

14
3 

M
W

h/
da

y 
av

g.
16

8 
M

W
h/

da
y 

pe
ak

Po
w

er
 D

em
an

d:
 1

14
 M

W
h/

da
y 

av
g.

  1
26

%
 o

f D
em

an
d 

m
et

Bo
ile

r
H

ot
 W

at
er

 S
en

d

H
ot

 W
at

er
 R

et
ur

n

H
ea

t E
xc

ha
ng

er
s 

(1
1)

2.
8 

M
cf

 B
io

ga
s/

da
y 

Co
m

bu
st

ed

En
gi

ne
 

Co
ol

in
g 

W
at

er

C.
 W

ei
r, 

06
/0

8/
14

C.
 W

ei
r, 

07
/1

8/
08

V.
 D

e 
La

ng
e,

 1
1/

01
/0

2

To Primary Influent

So
lid

s 
Bl

en
di

ng
Ta

nk
s 

(2
)

FO
G

Fo
od

 S
cr

ap
 a

nd
 

So
lid

 O
rg

an
ic

s

Li
qu

id
 O

rg
an

ic
s

8 
Dr

af
t-

tu
be

 m
ix

ed
, f

ix
ed

-c
ov

er
, w

af
fle

-b
ot

to
m

ed
 D

ig
es

te
rs

 
w

ith
 c

on
st

an
t p

re
-h

ea
te

d 
fe

ed
 v

ia
 fe

ed
 lo

op
. E

xc
es

s 
fe

ed
 

re
tu

rn
ed

 to
 th

e 
Bl

en
d 

Ta
nk

s
3 

U
nm

ix
ed

, f
lo

at
in

g 
or

 D
ys

to
r c

ov
er

ed
, c

on
e-

bo
tt

om
ed

 
D

ig
es

te
rs

 w
ith

 c
on

st
an

t f
ee

d 
fr

om
 1

st
St

ag
e 

Di
ge

st
er

s 
vi

a 
Bo

tt
om

 D
ra

w
 o

r O
ve

rf
lo

w
 S

ta
nd

pi
pe

s.

11
 D

ig
es

te
rs

 T
ot

al
 @

 1
.8

3 
M

G
 e

ac
h

W
et

 W
ea

th
er

 
Bl

en
d 

Ch
an

ne
l t

o 
Ef

flu
en

t P
um

ps
PW

W
F 

= 
15

2 
M

G
D

 

So
di

um
 

H
yp

oc
hl

or
ite

3 
Li

qu
id

 B
ay

s 
-2

6,
70

0 
ga

l
2 

So
lid

 B
ay

s 
-2

0,
00

0 
ga

l
2 

pu
m

ps
 @

 3
50

 g
pm

1 
pu

m
p 

@
 1

50
 g

pm
2 

re
ci

rc
 p

um
ps

 @
 2

50
 g

pm

2 
Ta

nk
s 

@
 3

2,
00

0 
ga

l
3 

pu
m

ps
 @

 5
60

 g
pm

, v
ar

ia
bl

e
2 

re
ci

rc
 p

um
ps

 @
 8

00
 g

pm
Co

nc
en

tr
ic

 T
ub

e 
H

XR
 P

re
he

at
 to

 8
5F

 u
si

ng
 

re
si

du
al

 h
ea

t a
ft

er
 D

ig
es

te
r H

ea
tin

g

2 
Ta

nk
s

@
 1

80
,0

00
 g

al
 e

ac
h

2 
re

ci
rc

 p
um

ps
@

 8
00

 g
pm

 e
ac

h
Sp

ira
l H

XR
 P

re
he

at
 

to
 8

5F

A
b

b
re

vi
a

tio
n

s:
A

D
C

A
lte

rn
a

tiv
e 

D
a

ily
 C

o
ve

r
A

D
W

F
A

ve
ra

g
e 

D
ry

-W
e

a
th

er
 F

lo
w

H
L

R
H

yd
ra

u
lic

 L
o

a
d

in
g 

R
a

te
H

X
R

H
ea

t 
E

xc
h

a
ng

e
r

1 
ea

ch
 @

 4
60

0 
KW

Re
cu

pe
ra

tin
g 

Tu
rb

in
e

Tu
rb

in
e 

Co
ol

in
g 

W
at

er

Po
ly

m
er

An
d/

or
Fe

rr
ic

 C
hl

or
id

eFe
ed

 
Lo

op

St
an

dp
ip

e

0.
5 

%
TS

 in
5.

0 
%

TS
 o

ut

2 
Ch

am
be

rs
 R

at
ed

 
at

 3
5 

M
G

D 
ea

ch

34

89



Fairfield-Suisun Sewer District Order No. R2-2020-0012 
Fairfield-Suisun Wastewater Treatment Plant NPDES No. CA0038024 

Attachment C – Process Flow Diagram C-1

C C

Inlet Pump Station

Headworks / 
Influent Screening

Primary 
Sedimentation 

Basins

Oxidation 
Towers

Intermediate 
Clarifiers

Gravity Belt 
Thickeners

Ultraviolet 
Disinfection

Tertiary 
Fil ters

Secondary 
Clarifiers

Aeration 
Basins

Anaerobic 
Digesters

Combined Influent Flow 
15 MGD

Tertiary 
Fil ter Flow 
15 MGD

Total Flow to GBT

Waste Activated 
Sludge Flow

Intermediate 
Sludge Flow

Primary 
Sludge Flow

GBT Sludge Flow

Anaerobic Digester
Sludge Flow

Screw Press 
Sludge to Lystek

Screw Press
Recycle Flow

E-001 Flow

GBT Recycle Flow

Plant Drain Flow
<1 MGD

Influent Flow from 
Cordelia, Central, and 

Suisun PS
13 MGD

Equalization 
Clarifier

Utility/Outfall 
Pump Station

Recycled 
Water

Legend

Metered 
Flow

Redundant & Backup 
Power Sources

Emergency Generator

Energy Recovery 

Portable

Sludge Holding
Tanks

Inlet Pump Station Flow 
2 MGD

Boynton Slough Flow 
14 MGD

Utility Pump 
Station Flow 

1 MGD

In Plant 
Utility Water Flow

Process 
Waste Flow

In Plant 
Pump Station

Adjusted Influent Flow 
14 MGD

E-002 Flow E-003 Flow

E-005 Flow

Fairfield-Suisun Wastewater Treatment Plant
Wastewater Plant Flow Schematic

Balancing 
Ponds 

(Optional)

Effluent
Holding
Ponds 

(Optional)

Treatment 
Units

Screw Press

Sludge 
Drying Beds

Hauled in 
Anaerobically 

Digestible 
Material

Diverted Flow

Returned Flow

3590



36

91



In
flu

en
t 

IN
F-

00
1A

W
e

s
t 

S
id

e
 P

u
m

p
S

ta
ti

o
n

C
o

a
rs

e
 B

a
r

S
c

re
e

n
s

F
in

e
 B

a
r

S
c

re
e

n
s

G
ri

tR
e

m
o

va
l

A
e

ra
ti

o
n

B
a

s
in

s
P

ri
m

a
ry

C
la

ri
fi

e
rs

S
e

c
o

n
d

ar
y

C
la

ri
fi

e
rs

O
c

e
a

n
O

u
tf

a
ll

G
ra

vi
ty

 B
e

lt
T

h
ic

ke
n

er
s

T
P

A
S

T
a

n
k

T
h

e
rm

o
p

h
ili

c
D

ig
e

s
te

rs
M

e
s

o
p

h
ili

c
D

ig
e

s
te

r
S

c
re

w
P

re
s

s

C
yc

lo
n

e
C

la
s

s
if

ie
r

L
o

a
d

in
g

B
a

y

R
o

ta
ry

 D
ru

m
S

c
re

e
n

G
a

s
H

o
ld

in
g

E
n

g
in

e
s

B
o

il
e

rs
F

la
re

s

B
io

s
o

lid
s

W
a

te
rR

e
tu

rn
G

ri
t 

 
S

c
re

e
n

in
g

s

S
c

u
m

S
c

u
m

R
A

S
P

S

T
P

A
S

B
S

B
io

g
as

P
o

ly
m

e
r

M
e

s
o

H
o

ld

S
c

ru
b

b
e

rW
A

S

S
c

re
w

 P
re

s
s

F
il

tr
a

te

A
B

B
R

E
V

IA
T

IO
N

S
P

S
  

R
A

S
  

W
A

S
  

T
P

A
S

  
B

S
H

e
x

P
ri

m
a

ry
S

lu
d

g
e

R
e

tu
rn

 A
c

ti
va

te
 S

lu
d

g
e

  
W

a
s

te
 A

c
ti

va
te

d
S

lu
d

g
e

T
h

ic
k

e
n

ed
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 A
c

ti
va

te
d

 S
lu

d
g

e 
 

B
le

n
d

e
d

S
lu

d
g

e
H

e
a

tE
x

c
h

a
n

g
e

r

B
io

g
as

F
e

rr
ic

C
h

lo
ri

d
e

  
G

ri
t

P
o

ly
m

e
r 

 
S

c
re

e
n

in
g

s
  

S
c

u
m

  
S

o
li

d
s

W
a

te
r:

 R
e

tu
rn

, D
ra

in
  

W
a

te
r:

 T
re

a
tm

e
n

t P
ro

c
e

s
s

  
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
P

o
in

t

O
C

E
A

N
S

ID
E

 P
R

O
C

E
S

S
S

C
H

E
M

A
T

IC

A
g

ri
c

u
lt

u
re

L
a

n
d

fi
ll

C
o

m
p

o
st

F
e

C
l 3

R
e

c
ir

c

F
e

e
d

D
ra

w

P
u

m
p

C
o

m
b

in
ed

S
ew

er
s

H
e

a
te

d
W

a
te

r

H
e

x

W
at

er
T

re
at

m
en

t  
S

lu
d

g
e

T
re

as
u

re
Is

la
n

d
  

P
S

 &
S

S

A
T

TA
C

H
M

E
N

T
C

P
la

n
t 

P
ro

c
es

s 
S

ch
e

m
at

ic
  

O
c

e
an

si
d

e 
W

a
te

r 
P

o
llu

ti
o

n
 C

o
n

tr
o

lP
la

n
t

Bi
os

ol
id

s

37

Bi
os

ol
id

s

92



3
8

93



39

94



M
el

 L
eo

ng
 I
nd

us
tr

ia
l W

at
er

 T
re

at
m

en
t 

Pl
an

t 
at

 S
an

 F
ra

nc
is

co
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l A

irp
or

t
40

95



C
it

y 
of

 S
an

 J
os

e,
 C

it
y 

of
 S

an
ta

 C
la

ra
T

en
ta

ti
ve

 O
rd

er
N

o.
 R

2-
20

20
-X

X
X

X
Sa

n 
Jo

se
-S

an
ta

 C
la

ra
 R

eg
io

na
l W

as
te

w
at

er
 F

ac
ili

ty
an

d 
C

ol
le

ct
io

n 
Sy

st
em

s 
N

PD
E

S 
N

o.
 C

A
00

37
84

2

A
tt

ac
hm

en
tC

– 
P

ro
ce

ss
 F

lo
w

 D
ia

gr
am

C
-1

 

C
 

41

96



4
2

A
T

T
A

C
H

M
E

N
T

 D
 

P
la

n
t 

P
ro

c
e

ss
 S

c
h

em
a

ti
c 

S
o

u
th

ea
st

 W
a

te
r 

P
o

ll
u

ti
o

n
 C

o
n

tr
o

l P
la

n
t

97



A
na

er
ob

ic
  D

ig
es

te
rs

P
ri

m
ar

y 
C

la
ri

fi
er

s 
in

si
de

 b
ui

ld
in

g
R

aw
 

S
ew

ag
e

S
cr

ee
ni

ng
s

W
as

te
 a

ct
iv

at
ed

 s
lu

dg
e 

(W
A

S
)  

P
re

th
ic

ke
ne

r 
   

   
 G

ra
vi

ty
 b

el
t 

th
ic

ke
ne

r

D
eg

ri
tt

er
G

ra
vi

ty
 

Th
ic

ke
ne

r

A
ir

R
et

ur
n 

A
ct

iv
at

ed
 S

lu
dg

e

S
ec

on
da

ry
C

la
ri

fi
er

s
C

ov
er

ed
 A

er
at

io
n 

B
as

in
s

To
 H

ay
w

ar
d 

M
ar

sh
 &

 
E

B
D

A

S
ec

on
da

ry
  

D
ig

es
te

rs

To
 L

an
d 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

1
2

3
4

5
6

To
 L

an
df

ill

To
 L

an
df

ill
W

as
te

A
ct

iv
at

ed
 

S
lu

dg
e M

Tr
an

sf
er

 
Ta

nk

U
ni

on
 S

an
it

ar
y 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
A

lv
ar

ad
o 

W
as

te
w

at
er

 T
re

at
m

en
t 

Fa
ci

lit
y 

D
ig

es
te

r 
S

lu
dg

e 
Fe

ed
in

g 
D

et
ai

l

N
ov

em
be

r 
2

0
0

5

C
en

tr
if

ug
e 

D
ew

at
er

in
g

M

D
is

in
fe

ct
io

n 
w

it
h 

   
  

S
od

iu
m

 H
yp

oc
hl

or
it

e
H

ea
dw

or
ks

43

98



Ex
ist

in
g 

Pr
oc

es
s Se

c 
Tr

ea
tm

en
t 

Re
cy

cl
e 

PS

Se
co

nd
ar

y 
Cl

ar
ifi

er
s

Ae
ra

tio
n 

Ta
nk

s

Bi
ot

ow
er

s

PS
 +

 W
AS

Fl
ow

 S
pl

it 
St

ru
ct

ur
e 

4

Ch
lo

rin
e 

Co
nt

ac
t 

Ta
nk

s
(C

CT
 B

)

M
ar

e 
Is

la
nd

 
Ef

flu
en

t P
S

Ba
r S

cr
ee

ns
Fl

ow
 S

pl
it 

St
ru

ct
ur

e 
1

G
rit

 
Ch

am
be

rs
 2

 &
 

3

Pr
im

ar
y 

Cl
ar

ifi
er

s 
9 

-1
2

Pr
im

ar
y 

Cl
ar

ifi
er

s 
1 

-8

Fl
ow

 S
pl

it 
St

ru
ct

ur
e 

3

Ju
nc

tio
n 

Bo
x 

3

Ca
rq

ui
ne

z
St

ra
ig

ht
 

Ef
flu

en
t P

S 
(W

et
 

W
ea

th
er

)

Ch
lo

rin
e 

Co
nt

ac
t 

Ta
nk

s (
CC

T 
C)

G
rit

 
Ch

am
be

r 1

Fl
ow

 S
pl

it 
St

ru
ct

ur
e 

2
In

flu
en

t 
PS

4
4

99



Figure 1
Biosolids Process Flowchart 

45100



46101



T
ab

le
 B

-1
5

.  
P

er
-

an
d

 P
o

ly
fl

u
o

ro
al

k
yl

 S
u

b
s

ta
n

c
es

 (
P

F
A

S
) 

U
s

in
g

 L
iq

u
id

 C
h

ro
m

at
o

g
ra

p
h

y 
T

a
n

d
em

 M
as

s 
S

p
ec

tr
o

m
et

ry
 

(L
C

/M
S

/M
S

) 
W

it
h

 Is
o

to
p

e 
D

il
u

ti
o

n
 o

r 
In

te
rn

al
 S

ta
n

d
ar

d
 Q

u
a

n
ti

fi
c

at
io

n
 in

 M
at

ri
c

es
 O

th
er

 T
h

a
n

 D
ri

n
ki

n
g

 W
a

te
r

Q
C

 C
h

e
c

k
M

in
im

u
m

 F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y

A
c

c
e

p
ta

n
c

e
 C

ri
te

ri
a

C
o

rr
e

c
ti

ve
 A

c
ti

o
n

F
la

g
g

in
g

 C
ri

te
ri

a
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

A
q

u
e

o
u

s
 S

a
m

p
le

 
P

re
p

a
ra

ti
o

n
E

a
ch

 s
am

p
le

 a
n

d 
a

ss
o

ci
a

te
d 

b
at

ch
 Q

C
 

sa
m

p
le

s.
 

S
o

lid
 P

h
a

se
 E

xt
ra

ct
io

n 
(S

P
E

) 
m

u
st

 b
e

 u
se

d
 

u
n

le
ss

 s
am

p
le

s 
ar

e
 

kn
o

w
n

 t
o

 c
on

ta
in

 h
ig

h 
P

F
A

S
 c

o
nc

e
nt

ra
tio

ns
 

(e
.g

.,
 A

qu
e

ou
s 

F
ilm

 
F

o
rm

in
g

 F
o

am
 (

A
F

F
F

) 
fo

rm
ul

a
tio

n
s)

. 
In

lin
e 

S
P

E
 

is
 a

cc
e

p
ta

b
le

. 

E
n

tir
e

 s
am

p
le

 p
lu

s 
bo

tt
le

 
ri

n
sa

te
 m

u
st

 b
e 

e
xt

ra
ct

e
d

 
u

si
ng

 S
P

E
. 

K
n

o
w

n
 h

ig
h

 P
F

A
S

 
co

nc
e

n
tr

a
tio

n
 s

a
m

pl
es

 
re

q
u

ire
 s

er
ia

l d
ilu

tio
n

 b
e

 
p

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

 in
 d

u
p

lic
at

e
. 

D
o

cu
m

e
n

te
d

 p
ro

je
ct

 
a

p
p

ro
va

l i
s 

n
e

ed
e

d
 fo

r 
sa

m
p

le
s 

p
re

p
a

re
d 

b
y 

se
ri

al
 d

ilu
tio

n 
a

s 
o

p
p

os
ed

 
to

 S
P

E
. 

N
A

. 
N

A
. 

S
a

m
p

le
s 

w
ith

 >
 1

%
 s

o
lid

s 
m

a
y 

re
q

ui
re

 
ce

n
tr

ifu
ga

tio
n

 p
rio

r 
to

 
S

P
E

 e
xt

ra
ct

io
n

. 

P
re

-s
cr

e
e

ni
n

g
 o

f s
e

p
a

ra
te

 
a

liq
u

o
ts

 o
f a

qu
eo

u
s 

sa
m

p
le

s 
is

 
re

co
m

m
en

d
ed

. 

S
o

li
d

 S
a

m
p

le
 

P
re

p
a

ra
ti

o
n

E
a

ch
 s

am
p

le
 a

n
d 

a
ss

o
ci

a
te

d 
b

at
ch

 Q
C

 
sa

m
p

le
s.

 

E
n

tir
e

 s
am

p
le

 r
e

ce
iv

e
d

 b
y 

th
e

 la
b

o
ra

to
ry

 m
us

t 
be

 
h

o
m

og
e

ni
ze

d 
p

rio
r 

to
 

su
bs

a
m

p
lin

g.
 

N
A

. 
N

A
. 

N
A

. 

B
io

ta
 S

a
m

p
le

 
P

re
p

a
ra

ti
o

n
E

a
ch

 s
am

p
le

 a
n

d 
a

ss
o

ci
a

te
d 

b
at

ch
 Q

C
 

sa
m

p
le

s.
 

S
a

m
p

le
 p

re
p

ar
ed

 a
s 

d
e

fin
e

d
 b

y 
th

e 
p

ro
je

ct
 

(e
.g

.,
 w

h
o

le
 fi

sh
 v

e
rs

us
 

fil
le

te
d

 fi
sh

).
 

N
A

. 
N

A
. 

N
A

. 

47

102



T
ab

le
 B

-1
5

.  
P

er
-

an
d

 P
o

ly
fl

u
o

ro
al

k
yl

 S
u

b
s

ta
n

c
es

 (
P

F
A

S
) 

U
s

in
g

 L
iq

u
id

 C
h

ro
m

at
o

g
ra

p
h

y 
T

a
n

d
em

 M
as

s 
S

p
ec

tr
o

m
et

ry
 

(L
C

/M
S

/M
S

) 
W

it
h

 Is
o

to
p

e 
D

il
u

ti
o

n
 o

r 
In

te
rn

al
 S

ta
n

d
ar

d
 Q

u
a

n
ti

fi
c

at
io

n
 in

 M
at

ri
c

es
 O

th
er

 T
h

a
n

 D
ri

n
ki

n
g

 W
a

te
r

Q
C

 C
h

e
c

k
M

in
im

u
m

 F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y

A
c

c
e

p
ta

n
c

e
 C

ri
te

ri
a

C
o

rr
e

c
ti

ve
 A

c
ti

o
n

F
la

g
g

in
g

 C
ri

te
ri

a
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

A
F

F
F

 a
n

d
 A

F
F

F
 

M
ix

tu
re

 S
a

m
p

le
s

 
P

re
p

a
ra

ti
o

n

E
a

ch
 s

am
p

le
 a

n
d 

a
ss

o
ci

a
te

d 
b

at
ch

 Q
C

 
sa

m
p

le
s.

 

E
a

ch
 fi

e
ld

 s
a

m
pl

e
 m

u
st

 
b

e
 p

re
p

a
re

d 
in

 d
u

pl
ic

a
te

 
(e

q
u

iv
a

le
n

t 
to

 m
a

tr
ix

 
d

u
p

lic
a

te
).

 

S
e

ri
a

l d
ilu

tio
ns

 m
us

t 
be

 
p

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

 to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 t

h
e

 
lo

w
e

st
 L

O
Q

 p
o

ss
ib

le
 fo

r 
e

a
ch

 a
n

al
yt

e
. 

N
A

. 
N

A
. 

A
d

so
rp

tio
n 

o
n

to
 b

o
ttl

e
 is

 
n

e
g

lig
ib

le
 c

om
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 

sa
m

p
le

 c
o

nc
en

tr
a

tio
n

 s
o

 
su

bs
a

m
p

lin
g 

is
 a

llo
w

e
d

. 

M
u

lti
p

le
 d

ilu
tio

ns
 w

ill
 m

os
t 

lik
el

y 
h

a
ve

 to
 b

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 
in

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 th

e
 

lo
w

e
st

 L
O

Q
 p

os
si

b
le

 fo
r 

e
a

ch
 a

n
al

yt
e

. 
S

a
m

p
le

 C
le

a
n

u
p

 
P

ro
c

e
d

u
re

E
a

ch
 s

am
p

le
 a

n
d 

a
ss

o
ci

a
te

d 
b

at
ch

 Q
C

 
sa

m
p

le
s.

 

N
o

t 
a

p
pl

ic
a

b
le

 t
o

 A
F

F
F

 
a

n
d

 A
F

F
F

 M
ix

tu
re

 
S

a
m

p
le

s.
 

E
N

V
I-

C
a

rb
T

M
 o

r 
e

q
u

iv
a

le
nt

 m
us

t 
b

e 
u

se
d

 
o

n
 e

ac
h

 s
am

p
le

 a
n

d 
b

a
tc

h
 Q

C
 s

am
p

le
. 

N
A

. 
F

la
g

gi
n

g
 is

 n
o

t 
a

p
p

ro
p

ria
te

. 
C

le
a

n
up

 s
h

o
u

ld
 r

e
du

ce
 

b
ia

s 
fr

om
 m

a
tr

ix
 

in
te

rf
e

re
nc

e
s.

 

M
a

s
s 

C
a

li
b

ra
ti

o
n

In
st

ru
m

en
t 

m
u

st
 h

av
e

 a
 

va
lid

 m
a

ss
 c

al
ib

ra
tio

n
 p

rio
r 

to
 a

n
y 

sa
m

pl
e 

an
a

ly
si

s.
 

M
a

ss
 c

a
lib

ra
tio

n
 is

 v
e

rif
ie

d 
a

ft
e

r 
ea

ch
 m

as
s 

ca
lib

ra
tio

n,
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 in
iti

a
l 

ca
lib

ra
tio

n 
(I

C
A

L
).

 

C
a

lib
ra

te
 t

he
 m

a
ss

 s
ca

le
 

o
f 

th
e

 M
S

 w
ith

 c
a

lib
ra

tio
n

 
co

m
p

o
u

nd
s 

a
nd

 
p

ro
ce

d
u

re
s 

d
es

cr
ib

ed
 b

y 
th

e
 m

a
n

u
fa

ct
ur

e
r.

 

M
a

ss
 c

a
lib

ra
tio

n
 r

a
n

g
e 

m
u

st
 b

ra
ck

et
 th

e
 io

n 
m

a
ss

es
 o

f i
n

te
re

st
. 

T
h

e
 

m
o

st
 r

e
ce

n
t m

a
ss

 
ca

lib
ra

tio
n 

m
us

t 
b

e 
u

se
d

 
fo

r 
e

ve
ry

 a
cq

u
is

iti
o

n
 in

 a
n 

a
n

a
ly

tic
a

l r
u

n
. 

M
a

ss
 c

a
lib

ra
tio

n
 m

us
t 

b
e 

ve
ri

fie
d

 to
 b

e
 ±

0.
5

 a
m

u
 o

f 
th

e
 t

ru
e

 v
a

lu
e,

 b
y 

a
cq

ui
ri

ng
 a

 fu
ll 

sc
a

n
 

co
n

tin
u

um
 m

as
s 

sp
ec

tr
um

 o
f a

 P
F

A
S

 
st

o
ck

 s
ta

nd
a

rd
. 

If
 t

h
e

 m
as

s 
ca

lib
ra

tio
n 

fa
ils

, 
th

e
n

 r
e

ca
lib

ra
te

. 
If 

it 
fa

ils
 a

ga
in

, c
on

su
lt 

m
a

n
uf

a
ct

u
re

r 
in

st
ru

ct
io

ns
 

o
n

 c
o

rr
e

ct
iv

e
 m

ai
n

te
n

an
ce

. 

F
la

g
gi

n
g

 is
 n

o
t 

a
p

p
ro

p
ria

te
. 

P
ro

b
le

m
 m

u
st

 b
e

 
co

rr
ec

te
d.

 N
o

 s
am

pl
es

 
m

a
y 

b
e

 a
n

a
ly

ze
d

 u
n

d
e

r 
a

 
fa

ili
n

g
 m

a
ss

 c
a

lib
ra

tio
n

. 

T
h

e
 m

a
ss

 c
a

lib
ra

tio
n

 is
 

u
p

d
a

te
d

 o
n

 a
n

 a
s-

n
e

e
de

d
 

b
a

si
s 

(e
.g

.,
 Q

C
 fa

ilu
re

s,
 

io
n

 m
a

ss
es

 fa
ll 

ou
ts

id
e

 o
f 

th
e

 ±
0

.5
 a

m
u

 o
f t

h
e 

tr
u

e
 

va
lu

e
, m

a
jo

r 
in

st
ru

m
e

n
t 

m
a

in
te

n
an

ce
 is

 
p

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

, o
r 

th
e

 
in

st
ru

m
en

t 
is

 m
o

ve
d

).
 

48

103



T
ab

le
 B

-1
5

.  
P

er
-

an
d

 P
o

ly
fl

u
o

ro
al

k
yl

 S
u

b
s

ta
n

c
es

 (
P

F
A

S
) 

U
s

in
g

 L
iq

u
id

 C
h

ro
m

at
o

g
ra

p
h

y 
T

a
n

d
em

 M
as

s 
S

p
ec

tr
o

m
et

ry
 

(L
C

/M
S

/M
S

) 
W

it
h

 Is
o

to
p

e 
D

il
u

ti
o

n
 o

r 
In

te
rn

al
 S

ta
n

d
ar

d
 Q

u
a

n
ti

fi
c

at
io

n
 in

 M
at

ri
c

es
 O

th
er

 T
h

a
n

 D
ri

n
ki

n
g

 W
a

te
r

Q
C

 C
h

e
c

k
M

in
im

u
m

 F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y

A
c

c
e

p
ta

n
c

e
 C

ri
te

ri
a

C
o

rr
e

c
ti

ve
 A

c
ti

o
n

F
la

g
g

in
g

 C
ri

te
ri

a
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

M
a

s
s 

S
p

e
c

tr
al

 
A

c
q

u
is

it
io

n
 R

a
te

E
a

ch
 a

n
a

ly
te

, E
xt

ra
ct

e
d

 
In

te
rn

al
 S

ta
n

d
ar

d
 (

E
IS

) 
A

n
a

ly
te

. 

A
 m

in
im

um
 o

f 
1

0
 s

pe
ct

ra
 

sc
an

s 
a

re
 a

cq
ui

re
d

 
a

cr
os

s 
e

a
ch

 
ch

ro
m

a
to

g
ra

ph
ic

 p
e

ak
. 

N
A

. 
F

la
g

gi
n

g
 is

 n
o

t 
a

p
p

ro
p

ria
te

. 
N

A
. 

C
a

li
b

ra
ti

o
n

, 
C

a
li

b
ra

ti
o

n
 

V
e

ri
fi

c
a

ti
o

n
, 

a
n

d
 

S
p

ik
in

g
 S

ta
n

d
ar

d
s

A
ll 

a
na

ly
te

s.
 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s 
co

n
ta

in
in

g
 

b
o

th
 b

ra
nc

h
ed

 a
n

d 
lin

e
a

r 
is

om
e

rs
 m

us
t b

e
 u

se
d

 
w

h
e

n
 c

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

lly
 

a
va

ila
bl

e
. 

P
F

A
S

 m
e

th
o

d
 a

na
ly

te
s 

m
a

y 
co

n
si

st
 o

f b
ot

h
 

b
ra

n
ch

e
d 

an
d

 li
ne

a
r 

is
om

e
rs

, 
b

u
t q

ua
n

tit
a

tiv
e

 
st

a
nd

a
rd

s 
th

at
 c

o
n

ta
in

 th
e

 
lin

ea
r 

a
nd

 b
ra

nc
he

d
 

is
om

e
rs

 d
o

 n
o

t e
xi

st
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

m
e

th
o

d
 a

n
al

yt
es

. 

F
o

r 
P

F
A

S
 t

ha
t 

do
 n

o
t 

h
a

ve
 a

 q
u

a
nt

ita
tiv

e
 

b
ra

n
ch

e
d 

an
d

 li
ne

a
r 

st
a

nd
a

rd
, i

d
en

tif
y 

th
e

 
b

ra
n

ch
e

d 
is

o
m

e
rs

 b
y 

a
n

a
ly

zi
n

g 
a

 q
ua

lit
a

tiv
e

 
st

a
nd

a
rd

 th
a

t i
n

cl
u

de
s 

b
o

th
 li

n
ea

r 
a

nd
 b

ra
n

ch
e

d
 

is
om

e
rs

 a
n

d 
d

e
te

rm
in

e 
re

te
n

tio
n

 ti
m

es
, 

tr
a

n
si

tio
n

s 
a

nd
 tr

a
ns

iti
o

n
 

io
n

 r
at

io
s.

 Q
u

an
tit

at
e

 
sa

m
p

le
s 

b
y 

in
te

gr
at

in
g

 
th

e
 t

o
ta

l r
e

sp
o

n
se

 (
i.e

.,
 

a
cc

o
u

n
tin

g 
fo

r 
pe

a
ks

 t
ha

t 
a

re
 id

e
n

tif
ie

d
 a

s 
lin

e
a

r 
a

n
d

 b
ra

n
ch

e
d

 is
o

m
e

rs
) 

a
n

d
 r

el
yi

n
g 

on
 t

he
 in

iti
a

l 
ca

lib
ra

tio
n 

th
a

t u
se

s 
th

e
 

lin
ea

r 
is

o
m

e
r 

q
ua

n
tit

a
tiv

e
 

st
a

nd
a

rd
. 

N
A

. 
F

la
g

gi
n

g
 is

 n
o

t 
a

p
p

ro
p

ria
te

. 
S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s 

co
nt

a
in

in
g

 
b

o
th

 b
ra

nc
h

ed
 a

n
d 

lin
e

a
r 

is
om

e
rs

 a
re

 to
 b

e
 u

se
d

 
d

u
ri

n
g 

m
et

h
o

d 
va

lid
a

tio
n

 
a

n
d

 w
h

e
n

 r
e

es
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 

re
te

n
tio

n
 ti

m
es

, t
o

 e
n

su
re

 
th

e
 t

o
ta

l r
e

sp
o

n
se

 is
 

q
u

a
n

tit
a

te
d 

fo
r 

th
a

t 
a

n
a

ly
te

. 

T
e

ch
n

ic
a

l g
ra

d
e

 
st

a
nd

a
rd

s 
ca

n
no

t 
b

e
 u

se
d

 
fo

r 
q

u
an

tit
a

tiv
e 

an
a

ly
si

s.
 

49

104



T
ab

le
 B

-1
5

.  
P

er
-

an
d

 P
o

ly
fl

u
o

ro
al

k
yl

 S
u

b
s

ta
n

c
es

 (
P

F
A

S
) 

U
s

in
g

 L
iq

u
id

 C
h

ro
m

at
o

g
ra

p
h

y 
T

a
n

d
em

 M
as

s 
S

p
ec

tr
o

m
et

ry
 

(L
C

/M
S

/M
S

) 
W

it
h

 Is
o

to
p

e 
D

il
u

ti
o

n
 o

r 
In

te
rn

al
 S

ta
n

d
ar

d
 Q

u
a

n
ti

fi
c

at
io

n
 in

 M
at

ri
c

es
 O

th
er

 T
h

a
n

 D
ri

n
ki

n
g

 W
a

te
r

Q
C

 C
h

e
c

k
M

in
im

u
m

 F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y

A
c

c
e

p
ta

n
c

e
 C

ri
te

ri
a

C
o

rr
e

c
ti

ve
 A

c
ti

o
n

F
la

g
g

in
g

 C
ri

te
ri

a
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

S
a

m
p

le
 P

F
A

S
 

Id
e

n
ti

fi
ca

ti
o

n
 

A
ll 

a
na

ly
te

s 
d

e
te

ct
e

d
 in

 a
 

sa
m

p
le

. 
T

h
e

 c
h

em
ic

a
l d

e
ri

va
tio

n
 

o
f 

th
e

 io
n 

tr
an

si
tio

ns
 m

u
st

 
b

e
 d

oc
um

e
n

te
d

. 
A

 
m

in
im

um
 o

f t
w

o 
io

n
 

tr
a

n
si

tio
n

s 
(

q
u

a
n

t i
o

n 
a

nd
 p

re
cu

rs
o

r 
co

n
fir

m
a

tio
n

 io
n)

 a
nd

th
e

 io
n

 t
ra

n
si

tio
n

s 
ra

tio
p

e
r 

a
na

ly
te

 a
re

 r
e

qu
ir

ed
fo

r 
co

n
fir

m
a

tio
n

.
E

xc
e

p
tio

n
 is

 m
ad

e
 fo

r
a

n
a

ly
te

s 
w

h
e

re
 t

w
o

tr
a

n
si

tio
n

s 
d

o 
no

t 
e

xi
st

(P
F

B
A

 a
n

d
 P

F
P

e
A

).

D
o

cu
m

e
n

ta
tio

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

p
ri

m
a

ry
 a

n
d

 c
on

fir
m

a
tio

n
 

tr
a

n
si

tio
n

s 
a

nd
 th

e
 io

n
 

ra
tio

 is
 r

e
q

ui
re

d
. 

In
-h

o
us

e
 a

cc
e

pt
an

ce
 

cr
ite

ria
 fo

r 
e

va
lu

a
tio

n
 o

f 
io

n
 r

at
io

s 
m

u
st

 b
e 

u
se

d
 

a
n

d
 m

u
st

 n
ot

 e
xc

e
e

d
 5

0
-

1
5

0
%

. 

S
ig

n
a

l t
o

 N
oi

se
 R

a
tio

 
(S

/N
) 

m
u

st
 b

e 
io

n
s 

u
se

d
 fo

r 
q

u
a

n
tif

ic
a

tio
n

 a
n

d
 m

u
st

 
b

e
 

co
n

fir
m

at
io

n.
 

Q
u

a
n

t 
io

n
 a

n
d 

co
n

fir
m

at
io

n 
io

n 
m

us
t b

e
 

p
re

se
n

t 
an

d
 m

u
st

 
m

a
xi

m
iz

e
 s

im
u

lta
n

eo
u

sl
y 

(±
2

 s
ec

o
n

ds
).

 

N
A

. 
P

F
A

S
 id

e
nt

ifi
e

d
 w

ith
 I

on
 

ra
tio

s 
th

at
 fa

il 
a

cc
e

p
ta

n
ce

 
cr

ite
ria

 m
u

st
 b

e
 fl

ag
g

e
d.

 

A
n

y 
q

u
a

n
tit

a
tio

n
 io

n
 p

e
ak

 
th

a
t 

do
e

s 
n

o
t m

ee
t 

th
e

 
m

a
xi

m
iz

a
tio

n 
cr

ite
ri

a 
sh

a
ll 

b
e

 in
cl

ud
e

d
 in

 th
e

 s
u

m
m

ed
 

in
te

g
ra

tio
n

 a
nd

 t
he

 
re

su
lti

n
g 

d
at

a 
fla

g
g

ed
 a

s  

F
o

r 
e

xa
m

p
le

: 
Io

n
 R

at
io

 =
 

(q
u

a
n

t i
o

n 
a

bu
n

d
an

ce
/ 

co
n

fir
m

 io
n 

ab
u

nd
a

nc
e

) 

C
a

lc
ul

a
te

 th
e

 a
ve

ra
g

e
 

ra
tio

 (
A

) 
a

n
d

 s
ta

nd
a

rd
 

d
e

vi
a

tio
n

 (
S

D
) 

u
si

ng
 th

e
 

IC
A

L
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s.

 A
n

 
a

cc
e

p
ta

n
ce

 r
a

ng
e

 o
f 

ra
tio

 
co

u
ld

 b
e 

w
ith

in
 A

 ±
3

S
D

 
fo

r 
co

n
fir

m
a

tio
n

 o
f 

d
e

te
ct

io
n

. 

50

105



T
ab

le
 B

-1
5

.  
P

er
-

an
d

 P
o

ly
fl

u
o

ro
al

k
yl

 S
u

b
s

ta
n

c
es

 (
P

F
A

S
) 

U
s

in
g

 L
iq

u
id

 C
h

ro
m

at
o

g
ra

p
h

y 
T

a
n

d
em

 M
as

s 
S

p
ec

tr
o

m
et

ry
 

(L
C

/M
S

/M
S

) 
W

it
h

 Is
o

to
p

e 
D

il
u

ti
o

n
 o

r 
In

te
rn

al
 S

ta
n

d
ar

d
 Q

u
a

n
ti

fi
c

at
io

n
 in

 M
at

ri
c

es
 O

th
er

 T
h

a
n

 D
ri

n
ki

n
g

 W
a

te
r

Q
C

 C
h

e
c

k
M

in
im

u
m

 F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y

A
c

c
e

p
ta

n
c

e
 C

ri
te

ri
a

C
o

rr
e

c
ti

ve
 A

c
ti

o
n

F
la

g
g

in
g

 C
ri

te
ri

a
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

Io
n

 T
ra

n
si

ti
o

n
s 

(P
re

c
u

rs
o

r-
>

P
ro

d
u

c
t)

E
ve

ry
 f

ie
ld

 s
a

m
pl

e
, 

st
a

nd
a

rd
, b

la
nk

, a
n

d
 Q

C
 

sa
m

p
le

. 

In
 o

rd
er

 t
o

 a
vo

id
 b

ia
si

n
g 

re
su

lts
 h

ig
h 

d
u

e
 to

 k
n

o
w

n
 

in
te

rf
e

re
nc

e
s 

fo
r 

so
m

e
 

tr
a

n
si

tio
n

s,
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g

 
tr

a
n

si
tio

n
s 

m
us

t b
e

 u
se

d
 

fo
r 

th
e 

q
u

an
tif

ic
at

io
n

 o
f 

th
e

 f
ol

lo
w

in
g

 a
n

a
ly

te
s:

 

P
F

O
A

: 
 3

6
9 

P
F

O
S

: 
 8

0 
P

F
H

xS
: 

 3
9

9
 

 8
0 

P
F

B
S

: 
 8

0 
4

:2
 F

T
S

: 
3

2
7 

 3
07

 
6

:2
 F

T
S

: 
4

2
7 

 4
07

 
8

:2
 F

T
S

: 
 5

07
 

N
E

tF
O

S
A

A
: 

 4
1

9 
N

M
e

F
O

S
A

A
: 

5
7

0
 

4
19

 

If
 t

h
es

e
 t

ra
ns

iti
o

n
s 

a
re

 n
o

t 
u

se
d,

 t
h

e 
re

as
on

 m
us

t 
be

 
te

ch
n

ic
a

lly
 ju

st
ifi

ed
 a

nd
 

d
o

cu
m

e
nt

e
d

 (
e.

g
., 

a
lte

rn
a

te
 t

ra
n

si
tio

n
 w

a
s 

u
se

d 
d

u
e 

to
 o

bs
er

ve
d

 
in

te
rf

e
re

nc
e

s)
. 

N
A

. 
F

la
g

gi
n

g
 is

 n
o

t a
p

p
ro

p
ri

at
e  

N
A

. 

51

106



T
ab

le
 B

-1
5

.  
P

er
-

an
d

 P
o

ly
fl

u
o

ro
al

k
yl

 S
u

b
s

ta
n

c
es

 (
P

F
A

S
) 

U
s

in
g

 L
iq

u
id

 C
h

ro
m

at
o

g
ra

p
h

y 
T

a
n

d
em

 M
as

s 
S

p
ec

tr
o

m
et

ry
 

(L
C

/M
S

/M
S

) 
W

it
h

 Is
o

to
p

e 
D

il
u

ti
o

n
 o

r 
In

te
rn

al
 S

ta
n

d
ar

d
 Q

u
a

n
ti

fi
c

at
io

n
 in

 M
at

ri
c

es
 O

th
er

 T
h

a
n

 D
ri

n
ki

n
g

 W
a

te
r

Q
C

 C
h

e
c

k
M

in
im

u
m

 F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y

A
c

c
e

p
ta

n
c

e
 C

ri
te

ri
a

C
o

rr
e

c
ti

ve
 A

c
ti

o
n

F
la

g
g

in
g

 C
ri

te
ri

a
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

In
it

ia
l C

al
ib

ra
ti

o
n

 
(I

C
A

L
)

A
t 

in
st

ru
m

e
n

t s
et

-u
p

 a
n

d
 

a
ft

e
r 

IC
V

 o
r 

C
C

V
 f

a
ilu

re
, 

p
ri

o
r 

to
 s

a
m

pl
e

 a
n

a
ly

si
s.

 

T
h

e
 is

o
to

p
ic

al
ly

 la
b

el
e

d
 

a
n

a
lo

g
 o

f a
n 

a
n

a
ly

te
 

(E
xt

ra
ct

e
d

 In
te

rn
a

l 
S

ta
n

d
a

rd
 A

n
al

yt
e

) 
m

u
st

 
b

e
 u

se
d

 fo
r 

q
ua

n
tit

a
tio

n
 if

 
co

m
m

e
rc

ia
lly

 a
va

ila
b

le
 

(I
so

to
p

e
 D

ilu
tio

n
 

Q
u

a
n

tit
at

io
n

).
 

C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l P

F
A

S
 

st
a

nd
a

rd
s 

a
va

ila
b

le
 a

s 
sa

lts
 a

re
 a

cc
e

pt
a

bl
e

 
p

ro
vi

d
in

g
 th

e 
m

ea
su

re
d

 
m

a
ss

 is
 c

o
rr

ec
te

d
 to

 th
e

 
n

e
u

tr
al

 a
ci

d
 

co
nc

e
n

tr
a

tio
n

. R
es

u
lts

 
sh

a
ll 

b
e 

re
po

rt
e

d
 a

s 
th

e
 

n
e

u
tr

al
 a

ci
d

 w
ith

 
a

p
p

ro
p

ria
te

 C
A

S
 n

um
b

e
r.

 

If
 a

 la
b

e
le

d
 a

n
a

lo
g

 is
 n

o
t 

co
m

m
e

rc
ia

lly
 a

va
ila

b
le

, 
th

e
 E

xt
ra

ct
e

d
 In

te
rn

a
l 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

 A
n

al
yt

e
 w

ith
 t

h
e

 
cl

os
e

st
 r

e
te

n
tio

n
 t

im
e

 o
r 

ch
em

ic
a

l s
im

ila
ri

ty
 t

o
 th

e
 

a
n

a
ly

te
 m

us
t b

e 
u

se
d

 fo
r 

q
u

a
n

tit
a

tio
n

. 
(I

n
te

rn
a

l 
S

ta
n

d
a

rd
 Q

u
a

nt
ita

tio
n

) 

A
n

a
ly

te
s 

m
us

t 
be

 w
ith

in
 

7
0

-1
3

0%
 o

f t
h

ei
r 

tr
ue

va
lu

e
 f

o
r 

e
ac

h
 c

a
lib

ra
tio

n
st

a
nd

a
rd

.

(c
o

n
tin

u
ed

 n
ex

t p
a

g
e

)

C
o

rr
e

ct
 p

ro
b

le
m

, t
h

en
 

re
p

e
a

t I
C

A
L

. 
F

la
g

gi
n

g
 is

 n
o

t 
a

p
p

ro
p

ria
te

. 
N

o
 s

am
p

le
s 

sh
al

l b
e 

a
n

a
ly

ze
d

 u
nt

il 
IC

A
L

 h
as

 
p

a
ss

e
d

.  

E
xt

e
rn

a
l C

a
lib

ra
tio

n 
is

 n
o

t 
a

llo
w

e
d

 f
o

r 
a

n
y 

a
na

ly
te

. 

C
a

lib
ra

tio
n 

ca
n

 b
e 

lin
e

a
r 

(m
in

im
um

 o
f 5

 s
ta

nd
a

rd
s)

 
o

r 
q

u
ad

ra
tic

 (
m

in
im

um
 o

f 
6

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s)
; w

e
ig

ht
in

g 
is

 
a

llo
w

e
d

. 

52

107



T
ab

le
 B

-1
5

.  
P

er
-

an
d

 P
o

ly
fl

u
o

ro
al

k
yl

 S
u

b
s

ta
n

c
es

 (
P

F
A

S
) 

U
s

in
g

 L
iq

u
id

 C
h

ro
m

at
o

g
ra

p
h

y 
T

a
n

d
em

 M
as

s 
S

p
ec

tr
o

m
et

ry
 

(L
C

/M
S

/M
S

) 
W

it
h

 Is
o

to
p

e 
D

il
u

ti
o

n
 o

r 
In

te
rn

al
 S

ta
n

d
ar

d
 Q

u
a

n
ti

fi
c

at
io

n
 in

 M
at

ri
c

es
 O

th
er

 T
h

a
n

 D
ri

n
ki

n
g

 W
a

te
r

Q
C

 C
h

e
c

k
M

in
im

u
m

 F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y

A
c

c
e

p
ta

n
c

e
 C

ri
te

ri
a

C
o

rr
e

c
ti

ve
 A

c
ti

o
n

F
la

g
g

in
g

 C
ri

te
ri

a
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

In
it

ia
l 

C
al

ib
ra

ti
o

n
 

(I
C

A
L

)
(C

o
n

tin
ue

d
)

IC
A

L
 m

us
t m

e
e

t o
n

e 
o

f 
th

e
 t

w
o

 o
p

tio
n

s 
b

el
o

w
: 

O
p

tio
n

 1
: 

T
h

e
 R

S
D

 o
f 

th
e

 
R

F
s 

fo
r 

a
ll 

a
na

ly
te

s 
m

us
t 

 2
0%

. 

O
p

tio
n

 2
: 

L
in

e
a

r 
o

r 
n

on
- 

lin
ea

r 
ca

lib
ra

tio
n

s 
m

us
t 

h
a

ve
 r

2
 

a
n

a
ly

te
. 

R
e

te
n

ti
o

n
 T

im
e

 
w

in
d

o
w

 p
o

s
it

io
n

 
e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

en
t

O
n

ce
 p

e
r 

IC
A

L 
an

d
 a

t 
th

e 
b

e
g

in
n

in
g

 o
f t

h
e

 a
n

al
yt

ic
al

 
se

q
ue

n
ce

.  

P
o

si
tio

n
 s

h
al

l b
e

 s
e

t 
u

si
ng

 t
he

 m
id

po
in

t 
st

a
nd

a
rd

 o
f 

th
e 

IC
A

L 
cu

rv
e

 w
h

e
n

 I
C

A
L 

is
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
e

d
. 

O
n

 d
a

ys
 w

h
e

n 
IC

A
L 

is
 

n
o

t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

, t
h

e 
in

iti
a

l 
C

C
V

 is
 u

se
d

. 

 N
A

. 
  

N
A

. 
C

a
lc

ul
a

te
d

 f
o

r 
e

ac
h

 
a

n
a

ly
te

 a
n

d 
E

IS
. 

 R
e

te
n

ti
o

n
 T

im
e

(R
T

) 
w

in
d

o
w

 w
id

th
E

ve
ry

 f
ie

ld
 s

a
m

pl
e

, 
st

a
nd

a
rd

, b
la

nk
, a

n
d

 Q
C

 
sa

m
p

le
. 

R
T

 o
f 

e
a

ch
 a

na
ly

te
 a

n
d 

E
IS

 a
n

a
ly

te
 m

us
t f

a
ll 

w
ith

in
 0

.4
 m

in
ut

es
 o

f t
h

e
 

p
re

d
ic

te
d 

re
te

nt
io

n
 t

im
es

 
fr

o
m

 th
e

 d
a

ily
 c

a
lib

ra
tio

n
 

ve
ri

fic
at

io
n 

o
r,

 o
n

 d
a

ys
 

w
h

e
n

 I
C

A
L

 is
 p

er
fo

rm
e

d,
 

fr
o

m
 th

e
 m

id
po

in
t 

st
a

nd
a

rd
 o

f 
th

e 
IC

A
L.

  

A
n

a
ly

te
s 

m
us

t 
el

u
te

 
w

ith
in

 0
.1

 m
in

ut
es

 o
f t

h
e

 
a

ss
o

ci
a

te
d 

E
IS

. T
h

is
 

cr
ite

rio
n

 a
pp

lie
s 

o
nl

y 
to

 
a

n
a

ly
te

 a
nd

 la
be

le
d 

a
n

a
lo

g
 p

ai
rs

. 

C
o

rr
e

ct
 p

ro
b

le
m

 a
n

d
 

re
a

n
a

ly
ze

 s
a

m
p

le
s.

 
N

A
. 

C
a

lc
ul

a
te

d
 f

o
r 

e
ac

h
 

a
n

a
ly

te
 a

n
d 

E
IS

. 53

108



T
ab

le
 B

-1
5

.  
P

er
-

an
d

 P
o

ly
fl

u
o

ro
al

k
yl

 S
u

b
s

ta
n

c
es

 (
P

F
A

S
) 

U
s

in
g

 L
iq

u
id

 C
h

ro
m

at
o

g
ra

p
h

y 
T

a
n

d
em

 M
as

s 
S

p
ec

tr
o

m
et

ry
 

(L
C

/M
S

/M
S

) 
W

it
h

 Is
o

to
p

e 
D

il
u

ti
o

n
 o

r 
In

te
rn

al
 S

ta
n

d
ar

d
 Q

u
a

n
ti

fi
c

at
io

n
 in

 M
at

ri
c

es
 O

th
er

 T
h

a
n

 D
ri

n
ki

n
g

 W
a

te
r

Q
C

 C
h

e
c

k
M

in
im

u
m

 F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y

A
c

c
e

p
ta

n
c

e
 C

ri
te

ri
a

C
o

rr
e

c
ti

ve
 A

c
ti

o
n

F
la

g
g

in
g

 C
ri

te
ri

a
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

In
s

tr
u

m
e

n
t 

S
e

n
s

it
iv

it
y 

C
h

e
c

k 
(I

S
C

)

P
ri

o
r 

to
 a

n
al

ys
is

 a
n

d 
a

t 
le

a
st

 o
nc

e
 e

ve
ry

 1
2

 h
ou

rs
. 

A
n

a
ly

te
 c

o
nc

e
nt

ra
tio

n
s 

m
u

st
 b

e
 a

t 
LO

Q
; 

co
nc

e
n

tr
a

tio
n

s 
m

us
t 

be
 

w
ith

in
 ±

3
0

%
 o

f t
he

ir
 t

ru
e

 
va

lu
e

s.
 

C
o

rr
e

ct
 p

ro
b

le
m

, r
e

ru
n

 
IS

C
. 

If
 p

ro
b

le
m

 p
e

rs
is

ts
, 

re
p

e
a

t I
C

A
L

. 

F
la

g
gi

n
g

 is
 n

o
t 

a
p

p
ro

p
ria

te
. 

N
o

 s
am

p
le

s 
sh

al
l b

e 
a

n
a

ly
ze

d
 u

nt
il 

IS
C

 h
as

 
m

e
t 

ac
ce

p
ta

n
ce

 c
rit

e
ria

. 

IS
C

 c
a

n
 s

e
rv

e
 a

s 
th

e 
in

iti
a

l d
a

ily
 C

C
V

. 
In

it
ia

l 
C

al
ib

ra
ti

o
n

 
V

e
ri

fi
c

a
ti

o
n

 (
IC

V
)

O
n

ce
 a

fte
r 

e
a

ch
 IC

A
L,

 
a

n
a

ly
si

s 
o

f 
a 

se
co

n
d 

so
u

rc
e

 s
ta

nd
ar

d
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 
sa

m
p

le
 a

n
al

ys
is

. 

A
n

a
ly

te
 c

o
nc

e
nt

ra
tio

n
s 

m
u

st
 b

e
 w

ith
in

 ±
3

0
%

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 t

ru
e

 v
al

u
e

. 

C
o

rr
e

ct
 p

ro
b

le
m

, r
e

ru
n

 
IC

V
. 

If
 p

ro
b

le
m

 p
e

rs
is

ts
, 

re
p

e
a

t I
C

A
L

. 

F
la

g
gi

n
g

 is
 n

o
t 

a
p

p
ro

p
ria

te
. 

N
o

 s
am

p
le

s 
sh

al
l b

e 
a

n
a

ly
ze

d
 u

nt
il 

ca
lib

ra
tio

n
 

h
a

s 
b

e
e

n 
ve

rif
ie

d
. 

C
o

n
ti

n
u

in
g

 
C

a
li

b
ra

ti
o

n
 

V
e

ri
fi

c
a

ti
o

n
 (

C
C

V
)

P
ri

o
r 

to
 s

am
p

le
 a

na
ly

si
s,

 
a

ft
e

r 
e

ve
ry

 1
0 

fie
ld

 
sa

m
p

le
s,

 a
n

d
 a

t t
h

e 
e

n
d 

o
f 

th
e

 a
na

ly
tic

a
l s

e
qu

e
nc

e
. 

C
o

n
ce

nt
ra

tio
n

 o
f a

n
a

ly
te

s  
m

u
st

 r
a

ng
e

 f
ro

m
 th

e
 L

O
Q

 
to

 t
h

e
 m

id
-l

e
ve

l 
ca

lib
ra

tio
n

 c
on

ce
n

tr
a

tio
n

. 

A
n

a
ly

te
 c

o
nc

e
nt

ra
tio

n
s 

m
u

st
 b

e
 w

ith
in

 ±
3

0
%

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 t

ru
e

 v
al

u
e

. 

Im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 a
na

ly
ze

 t
w

o
 

a
d

d
iti

o
na

l c
on

se
cu

tiv
e

 
C

C
V

s.
 I

f 
bo

th
 p

a
ss

, 
sa

m
p

le
s 

m
a

y 
b

e
 r

e
po

rt
ed

 
w

ith
o

u
t 

re
an

al
ys

is
. 

If 
e

ith
e

r 
fa

ils
, 

o
r 

if 
tw

o 
co

n
se

cu
tiv

e
 

C
C

V
s 

ca
nn

o
t b

e
 r

u
n,

 
p

e
rf

o
rm

 c
o

rr
e

ct
iv

e
 

a
ct

io
n

(s
) 

a
nd

 r
e

p
ea

t 
C

C
V

 
a

n
d

 a
ll 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 s

am
pl

e
s 

si
nc

e
 la

st
 s

uc
ce

ss
fu

l C
C

V
.  

A
lte

rn
at

e
ly

, 
re

ca
lib

ra
te

 if
 

n
e

ce
ss

a
ry

; 
th

en
 r

e
an

a
ly

ze
 

a
ll 

as
so

ci
a

te
d

 s
am

pl
e

s 
si

nc
e

 th
e

 la
st

 a
cc

e
p

ta
b

le
 

C
C

V
. 

If
 r

e
a

na
ly

si
s 

ca
n

no
t 

be
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
e

d
, d

a
ta

 m
us

t b
e

 
q

u
a

lif
ie

d
 a

nd
 e

xp
la

in
ed

 in
 

th
e

 C
as

e
 N

a
rr

at
iv

e.
 

A
p

p
ly

 Q
-f

la
g

 to
 a

ll 
re

su
lts

 
fo

r 
th

e 
sp

e
ci

fic
 a

n
al

yt
e

(s
) 

in
 a

ll 
sa

m
pl

es
 s

in
ce

 t
he

 
la

st
 a

cc
e

p
ta

bl
e

 c
a

lib
ra

tio
n

 
ve

ri
fic

at
io

n.
 

R
e

su
lts

 m
a

y 
n

ot
 b

e
 

re
p

o
rt

ed
 w

ith
o

u
t 

va
lid

 
C

C
V

s.
 

In
st

ru
m

en
t 

S
e

ns
iti

vi
ty

 
C

h
e

ck
 (

IS
C

) 
ca

n
 s

er
ve

 a
s 

a
 b

ra
ck

e
tin

g 
C

C
V

. 

54

109



T
ab

le
 B

-1
5

.  
P

er
-

an
d

 P
o

ly
fl

u
o

ro
al

k
yl

 S
u

b
s

ta
n

c
es

 (
P

F
A

S
) 

U
s

in
g

 L
iq

u
id

 C
h

ro
m

at
o

g
ra

p
h

y 
T

a
n

d
em

 M
as

s 
S

p
ec

tr
o

m
et

ry
 

(L
C

/M
S

/M
S

) 
W

it
h

 Is
o

to
p

e 
D

il
u

ti
o

n
 o

r 
In

te
rn

al
 S

ta
n

d
ar

d
 Q

u
a

n
ti

fi
c

at
io

n
 in

 M
at

ri
c

es
 O

th
er

 T
h

a
n

 D
ri

n
ki

n
g

 W
a

te
r

Q
C

 C
h

e
c

k
M

in
im

u
m

 F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y

A
c

c
e

p
ta

n
c

e
 C

ri
te

ri
a

C
o

rr
e

c
ti

ve
 A

c
ti

o
n

F
la

g
g

in
g

 C
ri

te
ri

a
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

In
s

tr
u

m
e

n
t 

B
la

n
k

s
Im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 f

ol
lo

w
in

g
 th

e
 

h
ig

h
es

t s
ta

n
d

ar
d 

a
n

al
yz

e
d

 
a

n
d

 d
a

ily
 p

rio
r 

to
 s

am
pl

e
 

a
n

a
ly

si
s.

 

C
o

n
ce

nt
ra

tio
n

 o
f e

ac
h

 

L
O

Q
. 

In
st

ru
m

en
t 

B
la

n
k 

m
us

t 
co

n
ta

in
 E

IS
 to

 e
n

a
bl

e
 

q
u

a
n

tit
a

tio
n

 o
f 

co
n

ta
m

in
at

io
n

. 

If
 a

cc
e

p
ta

nc
e 

cr
ite

ria
 a

re
 

n
o

t 
m

e
t 

a
fte

r 
th

e
 h

ig
h

es
t 

ca
lib

ra
tio

n 
st

an
d

a
rd

, 
ca

lib
ra

tio
n 

m
us

t 
b

e 
p

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

 u
si

n
g

 a
 lo

w
e

r 
co

nc
e

n
tr

a
tio

n
 fo

r 
th

e
 

h
ig

h
es

t s
ta

n
d

ar
d 

u
n

til
 

a
cc

e
p

ta
n

ce
 c

rit
e

ria
 is

 m
et

. 

If
 s

am
p

le
 c

o
nc

e
n

tr
at

io
n

s 
e

xc
e

e
d

 t
h

e 
hi

g
he

st
 

a
llo

w
e

d
 s

ta
nd

a
rd

 a
n

d
 th

e
 

sa
m

p
le

(s
) 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 

e
xc

e
e

d
 t

h
is

 a
cc

ep
ta

nc
e

 
cr

ite
ria

 (
>

1
/2

 L
O

Q
),

 t
h

e
y 

m
u

st
 b

e
 r

e
a

na
ly

ze
d

. 

F
la

g
gi

n
g

 is
 o

n
ly

 
a

p
p

ro
p

ria
te

 in
 c

as
es

 w
h

e
n

 
th

e
 s

a
m

pl
e

 c
an

n
o

t b
e

 
re

a
n

a
ly

ze
d

 a
n

d
 w

h
e

n
 

th
e

re
 is

 n
o

 m
o

re
 s

am
p

le
 

le
ft

. 

N
o

 s
am

p
le

s 
sh

al
l b

e 
a

n
a

ly
ze

d
 u

nt
il 

in
st

ru
m

e
n

t 
b

la
nk

 h
as

 m
e

t 
a

cc
e

p
ta

n
ce

 c
rit

e
ria

. 

N
o

te
: 

S
uc

ce
ss

fu
l a

n
al

ys
is

 
fo

llo
w

in
g

 th
e 

hi
g

he
st

 
st

a
nd

a
rd

 a
n

al
yz

e
d

 
d

e
te

rm
in

es
 th

e
 h

ig
h

es
t 

co
nc

e
n

tr
a

tio
n

 th
a

t 
ca

rr
yo

ve
r 

d
o

es
 n

ot
 o

cc
u

r.
 

W
he

n
 th

e
 h

ig
he

st
 

st
a

nd
a

rd
 a

n
a

ly
ze

d
 is

 n
o

t 
p

a
rt

 o
f t

h
e 

ca
lib

ra
tio

n
 

cu
rv

e
, 

it 
ca

n
n

ot
 b

e
 u

se
d

 
to

 e
xt

e
n

d
 o

ut
 th

e
 

ca
lib

ra
tio

n 
ra

n
g

e,
 it

 is
 

u
se

d 
o

n
ly

 to
 d

oc
um

e
n

t a
 

h
ig

h
e

r 
co

n
ce

n
tr

a
tio

n
 a

t 
w

h
ic

h
 c

a
rr

yo
ve

r 
st

ill
 d

oe
s 

n
o

t 
oc

cu
r.

 

55

110



T
ab

le
 B

-1
5

.  
P

er
-

an
d

 P
o

ly
fl

u
o

ro
al

k
yl

 S
u

b
s

ta
n

c
es

 (
P

F
A

S
) 

U
s

in
g

 L
iq

u
id

 C
h

ro
m

at
o

g
ra

p
h

y 
T

a
n

d
em

 M
as

s 
S

p
ec

tr
o

m
et

ry
 

(L
C

/M
S

/M
S

) 
W

it
h

 Is
o

to
p

e 
D

il
u

ti
o

n
 o

r 
In

te
rn

al
 S

ta
n

d
ar

d
 Q

u
a

n
ti

fi
c

at
io

n
 in

 M
at

ri
c

es
 O

th
er

 T
h

a
n

 D
ri

n
ki

n
g

 W
a

te
r

Q
C

 C
h

e
c

k
M

in
im

u
m

 F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y

A
c

c
e

p
ta

n
c

e
 C

ri
te

ri
a

C
o

rr
e

c
ti

ve
 A

c
ti

o
n

F
la

g
g

in
g

 C
ri

te
ri

a
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

E
x

tr
a

c
te

d
 In

te
rn

a
l 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

 (
E

IS
)

A
n

a
ly

te
s

E
ve

ry
 f

ie
ld

 s
a

m
p

le
, 

st
a

nd
a

rd
, b

la
nk

, a
n

d
 Q

C
 

sa
m

p
le

. 

A
d

d
e

d
 to

 s
o

lid
 s

a
m

pl
e

 
p

ri
o

r 
to

 e
xt

ra
ct

io
n

. 
A

d
de

d
 

to
 a

q
ue

o
us

 s
a

m
pl

es
, 

in
to

 
th

e
 o

rig
in

a
l c

o
n

ta
in

e
r,

 
p

ri
o

r 
to

 e
xt

ra
ct

io
n

. 

F
o

r 
a

qu
e

o
us

 s
am

p
le

s 
p

re
p

a
re

d
 b

y 
se

ri
al

 d
ilu

tio
n

 
in

st
e

a
d

 o
f S

P
E

, a
d

d
ed

 t
o

 
fin

a
l d

ilu
tio

n
 o

f s
am

pl
e

s 
p

ri
o

r 
to

 a
na

ly
si

s.
 

E
xt

ra
ct

e
d

 In
te

rn
a

l 
S

ta
n

d
a

rd
 A

n
al

yt
e

 
re

co
ve

rie
s 

m
us

t 
b

e 
w

ith
in

 
5

0
%

 t
o 

1
50

%
 o

f I
C

A
L 

m
id

po
in

t s
ta

nd
a

rd
 a

re
a

 o
r 

a
re

a
 m

e
as

u
re

d 
in

 th
e

 
in

iti
a

l C
C

V
 o

n
 d

ay
s 

w
h

e
n

 
a

n
 I

C
A

L
 is

 n
o

t 
pe

rf
o

rm
e

d
. 

C
o

rr
e

ct
 p

ro
b

le
m

. I
f 

re
q

u
ire

d
, r

e
-e

xt
ra

ct
 a

n
d 

re
a

n
a

ly
ze

 a
ss

o
ci

a
te

d 
fie

ld
 

a
n

d
 Q

C
 s

am
pl

e
s.

 

If
 r

e
co

ve
ri

es
 a

re
 

a
cc

e
p

ta
b

le
 fo

r 
Q

C
 

sa
m

p
le

s,
 b

u
t 

no
t 

fie
ld

 
sa

m
p

le
s,

 t
he

 f
ie

ld
 s

am
p

le
s 

m
u

st
 b

e
 r

e
-e

xt
ra

ct
e

d
 a

nd
 

a
n

a
ly

ze
d

 (
g

re
a

te
r 

d
ilu

tio
n

 
m

a
y 

b
e

 n
e

e
de

d
).

 

S
a

m
p

le
s 

m
a

y 
b

e 
re

-
e

xt
ra

ct
e

d
 a

nd
 a

na
ly

ze
d

 
o

u
ts

id
e

 o
f 

ho
ld

 ti
m

e
s,

 a
s 

n
e

ce
ss

a
ry

 f
o

r 
co

rr
ec

tiv
e

 
a

ct
io

n
 a

ss
o

ci
at

e
d 

w
ith

 Q
C

 
fa

ilu
re

. 

A
p

p
ly

 Q
-f

la
g

 a
n

d
 d

is
cu

ss
 

in
 t

he
 C

a
se

 N
a

rr
a

tiv
e

 o
nl

y 
if 

re
an

a
ly

si
s 

co
n

fir
m

s 
fa

ilu
re

s 
in

 e
xa

ct
ly

 t
he

 
sa

m
e

 m
a

n
n

e
r.

 

F
a

ili
n

g
 a

n
al

yt
es

 s
h

a
ll 

b
e 

th
o

ro
ug

h
ly

 d
oc

um
e

n
te

d
 in

 
th

e
 C

as
e

 N
a

rr
at

iv
e.

 

E
IS

 s
h

ou
ld

 b
e

 9
6

%
 (

o
r 

g
re

a
te

r)
 p

ur
ity

. W
he

n
 t

h
e 

im
p

u
rit

y 
co

n
si

st
s 

o
f t

h
e

 
u

n
la

be
le

d
 a

na
ly

te
, 

th
e

 
E

IS
 c

a
n

 r
e

su
lt 

in
 a

 
b

a
ck

g
ro

un
d 

a
rt

ifa
ct

 in
 

e
ve

ry
 s

a
m

pl
e

, s
ta

nd
a

rd
 

a
n

d
 b

la
nk

, 
if 

th
e 

E
IS

 is
 

fo
rt

ifi
e

d
 a

t 
e

xc
e

ss
iv

e
 

co
nc

e
n

tr
a

tio
n

s.
 

M
e

th
o

d
 B

la
n

k
 (

M
B

)
O

n
e

 p
e

r 
p

re
p

a
ra

to
ry

 b
a

tc
h

. 
N

o
 a

n
a

ly
te

s 
d

e
te

ct
e

d
 >

½
 

L
O

Q
 o

r 
>

 1
/1

0th
 th

e
 

a
m

o
un

t m
e

as
ur

e
d 

in
 a

n
y 

sa
m

p
le

 o
r 

1
/1

0
th

 th
e

 
re

g
u

la
to

ry
 li

m
it,

 
w

h
ic

h
e

ve
r 

is
 g

re
at

e
r.

 

C
o

rr
e

ct
 p

ro
b

le
m

. I
f 

re
q

u
ire

d
, r

e
-e

xt
ra

ct
 a

n
d 

re
a

n
a

ly
ze

 M
B

 a
n

d
 a

ll 
Q

C
 

sa
m

p
le

s 
a

nd
 f

ie
ld

 s
am

p
le

s 
p

ro
ce

ss
e

d
 w

ith
 t

he
 

co
n

ta
m

in
a

te
d

 b
la

nk
. 

S
a

m
p

le
s 

m
a

y 
b

e 
re

-
e

xt
ra

ct
e

d
 a

nd
 a

na
ly

ze
d

 
o

u
ts

id
e

 o
f 

ho
ld

 ti
m

e
s,

 a
s 

n
e

ce
ss

a
ry

 f
o

r 
co

rr
ec

tiv
e

 
a

ct
io

n
 a

ss
o

ci
at

e
d 

w
ith

 Q
C

 
fa

ilu
re

. 

E
xa

m
in

e
 th

e 
p

ro
je

ct
-

sp
ec

ifi
c 

re
q

u
ire

m
en

ts
. 

C
o

n
ta

ct
 t

h
e 

cl
ie

nt
 a

s 
to

 
a

d
d

iti
o

na
l m

e
as

u
re

s 
to

 b
e

 
ta

ke
n

. 

If
 r

e
a

na
ly

si
s 

ca
n

no
t 

be
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
e

d
, d

a
ta

 m
us

t b
e

 
q

u
a

lif
ie

d
 a

nd
 e

xp
la

in
ed

 in
 

th
e

 C
as

e
 N

a
rr

at
iv

e.
 

A
p

p
ly

 B
-f

la
g

 t
o

 a
ll 

re
su

lts
 

fo
r 

th
e 

sp
e

ci
fic

 a
n

al
yt

e
(s

) 
in

 a
ll 

sa
m

pl
es

 in
 t

h
e

 
a

ss
o

ci
a

te
d 

p
re

pa
ra

to
ry

 
b

a
tc

h
. 

R
e

su
lts

 m
a

y 
n

ot
 b

e
 

re
p

o
rt

ed
 w

ith
ou

t a
 v

a
lid

 
M

B
. 

F
la

g
gi

n
g

 is
 o

n
ly

 
a

p
p

ro
p

ria
te

 in
 c

as
es

 
w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

 s
am

pl
e

s 
ca

n
no

t 
be

 r
e

an
a

ly
ze

d
. 

56

111



T
ab

le
 B

-1
5

.  
P

er
-

an
d

 P
o

ly
fl

u
o

ro
al

k
yl

 S
u

b
s

ta
n

c
es

 (
P

F
A

S
) 

U
s

in
g

 L
iq

u
id

 C
h

ro
m

at
o

g
ra

p
h

y 
T

a
n

d
em

 M
as

s 
S

p
ec

tr
o

m
et

ry
 

(L
C

/M
S

/M
S

) 
W

it
h

 Is
o

to
p

e 
D

il
u

ti
o

n
 o

r 
In

te
rn

al
 S

ta
n

d
ar

d
 Q

u
a

n
ti

fi
c

at
io

n
 in

 M
at

ri
c

es
 O

th
er

 T
h

a
n

 D
ri

n
ki

n
g

 W
a

te
r

Q
C

 C
h

e
c

k
M

in
im

u
m

 F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y

A
c

c
e

p
ta

n
c

e
 C

ri
te

ri
a

C
o

rr
e

c
ti

ve
 A

c
ti

o
n

F
la

g
g

in
g

 C
ri

te
ri

a
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

L
a

b
o

ra
to

ry
 C

o
n

tr
o

l 
S

a
m

p
le

 (
L

C
S

)
O

n
e

 p
e

r 
p

re
p

a
ra

to
ry

 b
a

tc
h

. 
B

la
n

k 
sp

ik
ed

 w
ith

 a
ll 

a
n

a
ly

te
s 

a
t a

 
 

-le
ve

l c
a

lib
ra

tio
n

 
co

nc
e

n
tr

a
tio

n
. 

A
 la

b
o

ra
to

ry
 m

us
t u

se
 

th
e

 D
o

D
/D

O
E

 Q
S

M
 

A
p

p
e

n
di

x 
C

 L
im

its
 f

o
r 

b
a

tc
h

 c
on

tr
o

l i
f p

ro
je

ct
 

lim
its

 a
re

 n
o

t 
sp

ec
ifi

e
d

. 

If
 t

h
e

 a
n

al
yt

e
(s

) 
ar

e
 n

o
t 

lis
te

d
, u

se
 in

-h
o

u
se

 L
C

S
 

lim
its

 if
 p

ro
je

ct
 li

m
its

 a
re

 
n

o
t 

sp
e

ci
fie

d
. 

C
o

rr
e

ct
 p

ro
b

le
m

, t
h

en
 r

e
-

e
xt

ra
ct

 a
n

d 
re

a
n

al
yz

e
 t

h
e

 
L

C
S

 a
n

d
 a

ll 
sa

m
pl

e
s 

in
 t

he
 

a
ss

o
ci

a
te

d 
p

re
pa

ra
to

ry
 

b
a

tc
h

 f
o

r 
fa

ile
d

 a
n

a
ly

te
s 

if 
su

ff
ic

ie
n

t s
am

p
le

 m
at

e
ri

al
 

is
 a

va
ila

bl
e.

 

S
a

m
p

le
s 

m
a

y 
b

e 
re

-
e

xt
ra

ct
e

d
 a

nd
 a

na
ly

ze
d

 
o

u
ts

id
e

 o
f 

ho
ld

 ti
m

e
s,

 a
s 

n
e

ce
ss

a
ry

 f
o

r 
co

rr
ec

tiv
e

 
a

ct
io

n
 a

ss
o

ci
at

e
d 

w
ith

 Q
C

 
fa

ilu
re

. 

E
xa

m
in

e
 th

e
 p

ro
je

ct
-

sp
ec

ifi
c 

re
q

u
ire

m
en

ts
. 

C
o

n
ta

ct
 t

h
e 

cl
ie

nt
 a

s 
to

 
a

d
d

iti
o

na
l m

e
as

u
re

s 
to

 b
e

 
ta

ke
n

. 

If
 r

e
a

na
ly

si
s 

ca
n

no
t 

be
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
e

d
, d

a
ta

 m
us

t b
e

 
q

u
a

lif
ie

d
 a

nd
 e

xp
la

in
ed

 in
 

th
e

 C
as

e
 N

a
rr

at
iv

e.
 

A
p

p
ly

 Q
-f

la
g

 to
 s

p
ec

ifi
c 

a
n

a
ly

te
(s

) 
in

 a
ll 

sa
m

pl
e

s 
in

 
th

e
 a

ss
o c

ia
te

d
 p

re
pa

ra
to

ry
 

b
a

tc
h

. 

R
e

su
lts

 m
a

y 
n

ot
 b

e
 

re
p

o
rt

ed
 w

ith
ou

t a
 v

a
lid

 
L

C
S

. 

F
la

g
gi

n
g

 is
 o

n
ly

 
a

p
p

ro
p

ria
te

 in
 c

as
es

 
w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

 s
am

pl
e

s 
ca

n
no

t 
be

 r
e

an
a

ly
ze

d
. 

M
a

tr
ix

 S
p

ik
e

 (
M

S
)

O
n

e
 p

e
r 

p
re

p
a

ra
to

ry
 b

a
tc

h
. 

N
o

t 
re

q
ui

re
d

 fo
r 

aq
u

e
ou

s 
sa

m
p

le
s 

p
re

p
a

re
d 

b
y 

se
ri

a
l 

d
ilu

tio
n

 in
st

e
ad

 o
f 

S
P

E
. 

S
a

m
p

le
 s

p
ik

ed
 w

ith
 a

ll 
a

n
a

ly
te

s 
a

t a
 

-le
ve

l c
a

lib
ra

tio
n

 
co

nc
e

n
tr

a
tio

n
. 

A
 la

b
o

ra
to

ry
 m

us
t u

se
 

th
e

 D
o

D
/D

O
E

 Q
S

M
 

A
p

p
e

n
di

x 
C

 L
im

its
 f

o
r 

b
a

tc
h

 c
on

tr
o

l i
f p

ro
je

ct
 

lim
its

 a
re

 n
o

t 
sp

ec
ifi

e
d

. 

If
 t

h
e

 a
n

al
yt

e
(s

) 
ar

e
 n

o
t 

lis
te

d
, u

se
 in

-h
o

u
se

 L
C

S
 

lim
its

 if
 p

ro
je

ct
 li

m
its

 a
re

 
n

o
t 

sp
e

ci
fie

d
. 

E
xa

m
in

e
 th

e 
p

ro
je

ct
- 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

re
q

u
ire

m
en

ts
. 

C
o

n
ta

ct
 t

h
e 

cl
ie

nt
 a

s 
to

 
a

d
d

iti
o

na
l m

e
as

u
re

s 
to

 b
e

 
ta

ke
n

. 

F
o

r 
th

e 
sp

e
ci

fic
 a

n
al

yt
e

(s
) 

in
 t

he
 p

a
re

nt
 s

a
m

p
le

, 
a

pp
ly

 
J-

fla
g

 if
 a

cc
e

p
ta

n
ce

 c
rit

e
ria

a
re

 n
o

t m
et

 a
n

d 
e

xp
la

in
 in

th
e

 C
as

e
 N

a
rr

at
iv

e.

F
o

r 
m

at
ri

x 
e

va
lu

a
tio

n
 

o
n

ly
. 

If
 M

S
 r

e
su

lts
 a

re
 

o
u

ts
id

e
 th

e
 li

m
its

, 
th

e 
d

a
ta

 s
h

al
l b

e
 e

va
lu

a
te

d
 t

o
 

d
e

te
rm

in
e 

th
e 

so
u

rc
e

(s
) 

o
f 

d
iff

e
re

nc
e 

(i.
e

., 
m

at
ri

x 
e

ff
e

ct
 o

r 
a

n
al

yt
ic

a
l e

rr
o

r)
. 

57

112



T
ab

le
 B

-1
5

.  
P

er
-

an
d

 P
o

ly
fl

u
o

ro
al

k
yl

 S
u

b
s

ta
n

c
es

 (
P

F
A

S
) 

U
s

in
g

 L
iq

u
id

 C
h

ro
m

at
o

g
ra

p
h

y 
T

a
n

d
em

 M
as

s 
S

p
ec

tr
o

m
et

ry
 

(L
C

/M
S

/M
S

) 
W

it
h

 Is
o

to
p

e 
D

il
u

ti
o

n
 o

r 
In

te
rn

al
 S

ta
n

d
ar

d
 Q

u
a

n
ti

fi
c

at
io

n
 in

 M
at

ri
c

es
 O

th
er

 T
h

a
n

 D
ri

n
ki

n
g

 W
a

te
r

Q
C

 C
h

e
c

k
M

in
im

u
m

 F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y

A
c

c
e

p
ta

n
c

e
 C

ri
te

ri
a

C
o

rr
e

c
ti

ve
 A

c
ti

o
n

F
la

g
g

in
g

 C
ri

te
ri

a
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

M
a

tr
ix

 S
p

ik
e

 
D

u
p

li
c

a
te

 (
M

S
D

) 
o

r 
M

a
tr

ix
 D

u
p

li
c

a
te

 
(M

D
)

F
o

r 
M

S
D

: 
O

n
e

 p
e

r 
p

re
p

a
ra

to
ry

 b
at

ch
. 

F
o

r 
M

D
: 

E
a

ch
 a

q
ue

ou
s 

sa
m

p
le

 p
re

pa
re

d
 b

y 
se

ria
l 

d
ilu

tio
n

 in
st

e
ad

 o
f 

S
P

E
. 

F
o

r 
M

S
D

: 
S

a
m

p
le

 s
pi

ke
d

 
w

ith
 a

ll 
a

na
ly

te
s 

a
t a

 

- le
ve

l c
a

lib
ra

tio
n

 
co

nc
e

n
tr

a
tio

n
. 

A
 la

b
o

ra
to

ry
 m

us
t u

se
 

th
e

 D
o

D
/D

O
E

 Q
S

M
 

A
p

p
e

n
di

x 
C

 L
im

its
 f

o
r 

b
a

tc
h

 c
on

tr
o

l i
f p

ro
je

ct
 

lim
its

 a
re

 n
o

t 
sp

ec
ifi

e
d

. 

If
 t

h
e

 a
n

al
yt

e
(s

) 
ar

e
 n

o
t 

lis
te

d
, u

se
 in

-h
o

u
se

 L
C

S
 

lim
its

 if
 p

ro
je

ct
 li

m
its

 a
re

 
n

o
t 

sp
e

ci
fie

d
. 

a
n

d
 M

S
D

 o
r 

sa
m

pl
e

 a
n

d
 

M
D

).
 

E
xa

m
in

e
 th

e 
p

ro
je

ct
- 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

re
q

u
ire

m
en

ts
. 

C
o

n
ta

ct
 t

h
e 

cl
ie

nt
 a

s 
to

 
a

d
d

iti
o

na
l m

e
as

u
re

s 
to

 b
e

 
ta

ke
n

. 

F
o

r 
th

e 
sp

e
ci

fic
 a

n
al

yt
e

(s
) 

in
 t

he
 p

a
re

nt
 s

a
m

p
le

, 
a

pp
ly

 
J-

fla
g

 if
 a

cc
e

p
ta

nc
e

 c
rit

e
ria

a
re

 n
o

t m
et

 a
n

d 
e

xp
la

in
 in

th
e

 C
as

e
 N

a
rr

at
iv

e.

T
h

e
 d

a
ta

 s
h

a
ll 

be
 

e
va

lu
a

te
d

 t
o 

d
e

te
rm

in
e

 
th

e
 s

o
u

rc
e

 o
f d

iff
e

re
nc

e
. 

F
o

r 
S

a
m

p
le

/M
D

: R
P

D
 

cr
ite

ria
 o

n
ly

 a
pp

ly
 t

o
 

a
n

a
ly

te
s 

w
h

o
se

 
co

nc
e

n
tr

a
tio

n
 in

 t
h

e 
sa

m
p

le
 

 L
O

Q
. 

T
h

e
 M

D
 is

 a
 s

ec
on

d
 

a
liq

u
o

t 
of

 th
e 

fie
ld

 s
am

p
le

 
th

a
t 

ha
s 

b
e

en
 p

re
pa

re
d 

b
y 

se
ri

al
 d

ilu
tio

n
. 

P
o

s
t 

S
p

ik
e

 S
a

m
p

le
O

n
ly

 a
p

p
lie

s 
to

 a
q

u
e

ou
s 

sa
m

p
le

s 
p

re
p

a
re

d 
b

y 
se

ri
a

l 
d

ilu
tio

n
 in

st
e

ad
 o

f 
S

P
E

 th
a

t 
h

a
ve

 r
e

p
or

te
d

 v
a

lu
e

 o
f 

  
  

<
 L

O
Q

 f
o

r 
a

na
ly

te
(s

).
 

S
p

ik
e 

a
ll 

a
na

ly
te

s 
re

p
o

rt
ed

 a
s 

<
 L

O
Q

 in
to

 
th

e
 d

ilu
tio

n
 th

a
t t

h
e

 r
e

su
lt 

fo
r 

th
at

 a
na

ly
te

 is
 

re
p

o
rt

ed
 f

ro
m

. T
h

e
 s

p
ik

e
 

m
u

st
 b

e
 a

t 
th

e
 L

O
Q

 
co

nc
e

n
tr

a
tio

n
 to

 b
e

 
re

p
o

rt
ed

 f
o

r 
th

is
 s

a
m

pl
e

 
a

s 
<

 L
O

Q
. 

W
he

n
 a

n
a

ly
te

 
co

nc
e

n
tr

a
tio

n
s 

a
re

 
ca

lc
u

la
te

d 
a

s 
<

 L
O

Q
, 

th
e 

p
o

st
 s

pi
ke

 fo
r 

th
a

t 
an

a
ly

te
 

m
u

st
 r

e
co

ve
r 

w
ith

in
 7

0
-

1
3

0
%

 o
f 

its
 t

ru
e

 v
a

lu
e

. 

W
he

n
 a

n
a

ly
te

 
co

nc
e

n
tr

a
tio

n
s 

a
re

 
ca

lc
u

la
te

d 
as

 <
 L

O
Q

, 
a

n
d 

th
e

 s
p

ik
e

 r
e

co
ve

ry
 d

o
es

 
n

o
t 

m
e

e
t 

th
e 

ac
ce

p
ta

n
ce

 
cr

ite
ria

, 
th

e 
sa

m
p

le
, 

sa
m

p
le

 d
u

pl
ic

a
te

, a
n

d
 p

os
t 

sp
ik

e
 s

a
m

p
le

 m
us

t 
be

 
re

a
n

a
ly

ze
d

 a
t 

co
ns

e
cu

tiv
e

ly
 h

ig
h

e
r 

d
ilu

tio
ns

 u
n

til
 th

e
 c

ri
te

ri
a 

is
 

m
e

t.
 

F
la

g
gi

n
g

 is
 n

o
t 

a
p

p
ro

p
ria

te
. 

W
he

n
 a

n
a

ly
te

 
co

nc
e

n
tr

a
tio

n
s 

a
re

 
ca

lc
u

la
te

d 
a

s 
<

 L
O

Q
, 

re
su

lts
 m

a
y 

n
o

t b
e

 
re

p
o

rt
ed

 w
ith

ou
t 

a
cc

e
p

ta
b

le
 p

o
st

 s
p

ik
e

 
re

co
ve

rie
s.

 

58

113



DRAFT AGENDA 

BACWA Nutrient Strategy Team Meeting 

Thursday December 3, 2020 

10:00 am – 12:00 pm  

 

1. Summary of Discussions with the Water Board 

 

2. Load Caps in the 3rd Watershed Permit 

a. The argument for performance-based load caps 

b. Features of load caps (e.g., compliance schedules, incentives for early 

action and multibenefit projects, consideration of variability) 

 

3. Timing considerations for the 3rd Watershed Permit 

a. Pros and cons of a permit extension 

b. Science needs prior to 3rd Watershed Permit adoption 

 

4. Subembayment designation and trading 

a. Alternatives for subembayment designation 

b. Paul Stacey presentation to BACWA Executive Board 12/18 on LIS 

Trading program 

 

5. Support for a long-term science program 

a. Potential future load reduction requirements based on science 

b. Long-term science funding level 

c. Future of the NMS 

 

6. Next steps – develop BACWA key tenets document  

 

7. Adjourn 

 

114



CLIMATE CHANGE INFO REQUEST FOR REGION 2 POTWS 
SEPTEMBER 23, 2020 DRAFT 

 

Dear Discharger: 

We request that you provide information that describes how you will ensure operations 
at your facility are not disrupted by existing and future climate conditions. Climate 
change is shifting precipitation and temperature patterns, exacerbating extreme weather 
events, and causing sea level rise. These conditions have significant implications for 
wastewater collection, treatment, and discharge operations.  

Your organization recently contributed to the Bay Area Clean Water Agencies’ Nutrient 
Reduction Study,1 which compiled preliminary sea level rise results (see Figures 4 
and 5 of the report, shown below). Now, either independently or in coordination with 
others such as the Bay Area Clean Water Agencies, we ask that you provide the 
following information by [date]: 

1. Vulnerability Assessment. Assess the vulnerability of your collection, 
treatment, and discharge systems to the following: (1) sea level rise, 
(2) groundwater level rise, (3) changing climate and weather, and (4) power 
outages and wildfires. To assess your vulnerability to sea level rise, we consider 
the Ocean Protection Council’s Sea-Level Rise Guidance2 to be the most 
authoritative source supporting planning for sea level rise in California. You may 
wish to consider an additional factor of safety to account for higher storm surges. 

a. Sea Level Rise. If your facility is currently within the FEMA 100-year flood 
plain but not protected by a FEMA-accredited levee3 (see large red dots 
on Figures 4 and 5), explain how you manage your existing flooding risks 
(e.g., protective measures already in place, planned, or proposed).  
 
If your facility is currently within the FEMA 100-year flood plain but not 
protected by a FEMA-accredited levee or if your facility is projected to be 
affected by sea level rise within 50 years4 (see small orange and pink dots 
on Figures 4 and 5), explain how you intend to manage future flooding 
risks over a 50-year time horizon (e.g., ongoing planning efforts and 
protective measures already in place, planned, or proposed). If you have 
not yet established a plan, explain your process and timeline for doing so 
in your response to item 2, below. 

b. Groundwater Level Rise. If your facility is susceptible to groundwater level 
rise or if your facility is projected to be affected by groundwater level rise 

 
1 https://bacwa.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/06/BACWA_Final_Nutrient_Reduction_Report.pdf 
2 https://opc.ca.gov/webmaster/ftp/pdf/agenda_items/20180314/Item3_Exhibit-A_OPC_SLR_Guidance-rd3.pdf 
3 City of Benicia, Central Contra Costa Sanitation District, Central Marin Sanitation Agency, City of Millbrae, Napa 
Sanitation District, Oro Loma/Castro Valley Sanitary District, City of Palo Alto, City of Pinole, Rodeo Sanitation 
District, Cities of San Jose and Santa Clara, City of San Leandro, Sausalito-Marin city Sanitary District, City of 
Sunnyvale, Union Sanitary District, Vallejo Sanitation and Flood Control District, West County Wastewater District. 
4 City of Burlingame, San Francisco International Airport, Cities of South San Francisco and San Bruno, Treasure 
Island. 

115

about:blank
about:blank
about:blank


CLIMATE CHANGE INFO REQUEST FOR REGION 2 POTWS 
SEPTEMBER 23, 2020 DRAFT 

 

within 50 years5 (circles in Figure 4 containing red or orange wedges6), 
explain how you intend to manage future flooding risks over a 50-year 
time horizon (e.g., ongoing planning efforts and protective measures 
already in place, planned, or proposed). If you have not yet established a 
plan, explain your process and timeline for doing so in your response to 
item 2, below. 

c. Changing Climate and Weather. Assess how increased temperatures, 
greater rainfall intensity, and longer and drier summers may affect your 
collection, treatment, and discharge systems. For example, under drought 
conditions, wastewater treatment plants are expected to face numerous 
challenges related to conveying and treating wastewater.7 Explain how 
you intend to manage future risks. If you have not yet established a plan, 
explain your process and timeline for doing so in your response to item 2, 
below. 

d. Power Outages and Wildfires. Assess critical equipment and any need for 
additional back-up power. This may be necessary due to increasing stress 
on the power grid from more extreme heat waves and expanded public 
safety power shutoffs to your service area due to wildfires. Explain how 
you intend to manage future risks. If you have not yet established a plan, 
explain your process and timeline for doing so in your response to item 2, 
below. 

2. Adaptation Strategies. Based on the vulnerabilities of your collection, treatment 
and discharge systems, identify mitigation and control measures needed to 
maintain, protect, and improve your wastewater infrastructure under existing and 
possible future conditions.  

a. Regional Collaboration. Document how you plan to work with regional 
stakeholders to address sea level rise and groundwater level rise in your 
area. A regional approach may best provide cost-effective ways to 
manage sea level rise and groundwater level rise, while ensuring that the 
actions of one party do not adversely affect the adaptation plans of other 
parties. 

 
5 Ellis Creek (City of Petaluma), Sonoma Valley, Novato, Ryder Street (Vallejo Sanitation and Flood Control District), 
City of Benicia, Mt. View Sanitary District, Central Marin Sanitation Agency, City of San Leandro, Oro Loma/Castro 
Valley Sanitary District, City of Hayward, Alvarado (Union Sanitary District), Cities of South San Francisco and San 
Bruno, San Francisco International Airport, City of Millbrae, City of San Mateo, Silicon Valley Clean Water, City of 
Sunnyvale, Cities of San Jose and Santa Clara. 
6 Hummel, M., M. Berry, and M. Stacey. 2018. Sea Level Rise Impacts on Wastewater Treatment Systems Along the 
US Coasts. Earth’s Future 6 (4): 622–633). 
7 California Urban Water Agencies. 2017. Adapting to Change: Utility Systems and Declining Flows. 

116



CLIMATE CHANGE INFO REQUEST FOR REGION 2 POTWS 
SEPTEMBER 23, 2020 DRAFT 

 

b. Time-Critical Measures. If time-critical mitigation and control measures are 
identified, propose an implementation schedule to complete them.  

c. Design Modifications and Improvements. Address how you will modify 
infrastructure identified as vulnerable to sea level rise or groundwater level 
rise in the future. For example, it may be necessary to relocate critical 
equipment above projected flood levels or waterproof facilities at risk of 
flooding. As sea level rises, increasing your pumping capacity may also be 
necessary to ensure you can discharge treated wastewater under an 
increased hydraulic pressure head.  

d. Monitoring. Describe monitoring plans to assess the need to change how 
you manage your collection, treatment, and discharge systems. For 
example, influent monitoring may be necessary to assess wastewater 
strength and the need to modify treatment processes (e.g., by increasing 
chemical use or aeration intensity). If drought conditions result in reduced 
influent flows, increased residence times in the collection system could 
cause corrosion if wastewater turns septic, and increased salinity levels 
could impair your ability to beneficially reuse treated wastewater. Identify 
key parameters (e.g., biochemical oxygen demand, total suspended 
solids, ammonia, salinity, and hydrogen sulfide) and thresholds that may 
affect the design flow and integrity of your treatment system.   

e. Emergency Response Planning. Describe actions you will take to keep 
your facilities operating, or to return to operation as quickly as practicable, 
if flooding occurs. Your emergency response plan should also address 
how you will ensure the health and safety of your employees under such 
conditions. 

3. Financing. Describe financing needed to pay for necessary mitigation and 
control measures, and how your organization will likely to arrange needed 
financing. 

We hope your organization has already initiated some of this work, and you may rely on 
existing planning, to the extent that it is relevant, to comply with this request. If you have 
any questions, please contact [who]? 

117



CLIMATE CHANGE INFO REQUEST FOR REGION 2 POTWS 
SEPTEMBER 23, 2020 DRAFT 

 

 

118



CLIMATE CHANGE INFO REQUEST FOR REGION 2 POTWS 
SEPTEMBER 23, 2020 DRAFT 

 

 

119



CASA’s Remaining Issues in Brief 

Issue #1: The toxicity provisions include an automatic implementation date for imposition of numeric limits (MMEL) for the 
ceriodaphnia dubia (cerio) reproduction test, despite a lack of knowledge regarding the design or results of the 
impending cerio study intended to increase the performance and comparability of the test. 

Requested Action: Include a specific decision point for the State Water Board before December 31, 2023 to considers the findings 
in the cerio study and accept public comment before implementing an MMEL for those with cerio as their most sensitive species.  

Toxicity Provision Reference: Section IV.B.2.e.i on p. 28 of the final draft provisions. 

Supporting Rationale: The State Water Board has agreed to pursue a cerio reproduction study to analyze issues associated with 
this test, and potentially improve the results and eliminate variability. The data demonstrates that the cerio reproduction test 
appears to have an high rate of variability, sometimes leading to inaccurate determinations of toxicity. When paired with numeric 
limits, this could result in violations of numeric water quality limits and potential enforcement liability, third party lawsuits, and 
public perception issues associated with labeling effluent as “toxic.” Allowing automatic implementation of this test without 
further consideration of additional data being generated by the study is not appropriate.  

Recommendation: We recommend adding provisions for a specific decision point by the State Water Board, which would take 
place in 2022 or 2023 when the study is completed, to exercise its authority and discretion over the full range of options available 
based on the findings of the research. The Board will be informed at that time by the study results. 

Requested Language: The attached draft language for section IV.B.2.e.i provides the Board multiple options for a decision. 

 

Issue #2: Recent revisions to the toxicity provisions now include a provision requiring the Regional Boards to document the basis 
for determining that that an MMEL using cerio is not required by federal law. This provision as written is overly broad, undercuts 
statewide consistency, and could represent a very fundamental change to our understanding of the provisions. 

Requested Action: Clarify that this language is only relevant or applicable to those dischargers that fall under “Scenario 3” in the 
cerio options table, which is those that already have numeric limits. This should address any backsliding or anti-degradation 
concerns raised by USEPA and appropriately limit its applicability.  

Toxicity Provision Reference: Section IV.B.2.e on p. 28 of the final draft provisions: “The PERMITTING AUTHORITY may choose to 
include Option B in the NPDES permit if it determines that an MMEL using Ceriodaphnia dubia is not required by federal law.  The 
PERMITTING AUTHORITY shall document the basis for this determination in the NPDES fact sheet (or equivalent document).”  

Supporting Rationale: Concerns expressed by USEPA regarding backsliding and anti-degradation requirements only potentially 
apply to those dischargers described in Scenario 3. Numeric toxicity limits (MMELs) are not required by federal law, and if there is 
a concern that converting from a numeric limit (MMEL) for another species to a trigger (MMET) isn’t consistent with federal law, 
that should be sorted it out at the policy level, not the individual permit level.  

 

Other issues 

1. Test Timing: Many dischargers (particularly smaller dischargers) are concerned they will not be able to initiate three 
tests within a Calendar Month timeframe for routine monitoring tests. CVCWA and Regional San have and will discuss 
this issue in more depth, but we are supportive of their concerns and approaches.  
 

2. Targets for those with No RP: The revised provisions include numeric “targets” for permittees who do not have 
reasonable potential. The prior language was actually preferable in this case and we recommend the Board consider the 
proposals submitted by both CVCWA and Regional San to address this.  

 

 

 

 

 

 
120

https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/state_implementation_policy/docs/provisions.pdf
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/state_implementation_policy/docs/provisions.pdf


Attached Language for Issue #1 

On or before [date], the State Water Board will reopen this Section, based on new information, to specify one of the following:  

• Require that permits renewed, reissued or reopened on or after December 31, 2023 shall include the MDEL indicated in 
Section IV.B.2.e.iii and the MMEL indicated in Section IV.B.2.e.iv.  

• Revise Section IV.B.2.e.i. to extend the time period that Section IV.B.2.e.i is operative.  

• Revise Section IV.B.2.e.i to specify that where C. dubia is the most sensitive species, permits may include either (1) 
monthly median trigger (MMET) and a maximum daily effluent limit (MDEL) using C. dubia or (2) a monthly median 

effluent limit (MMEL) and an MDEL using the next most sensitive species.1  

 

FN 1: The revised provision Revised Section IV.B.2.e.i would read as follows:  

For NON-STORMWATER NPDES DISCHARGERS when the MOST SENSITIVE SPECIES identified by the PERMITTING 
AUTHORITY is not Ceriodaphnia dubia, the PERMITTING AUTHORITY shall include the MDEL indicated in Section 
IV.B.2.e.iii and the MMEL indicated in Section IV.B.2.e.iv using the MOST SENSITIVE SPECIES.  

For NON-STORMWATER NPDES DISCHARGERS when the MOST SENSITIVE SPECIES identified by the PERMITTING 
AUTHORITY is Ceriodaphnia dubia, the PERMITTING AUTHORITY shall include either (1) the MDEL indicated in Section 
IV.B.2.e.iii and the MMET indicated in Section IV.B.2.g.ii using Ceriodaphnia dubia as the MOST SENSITIVE SPECIES or (2) 
the MDEL indicated in Section IV.B.2.e.iii and the MMEL indicated in Section IV.B.2.e.iV using the next applicable species 
as the MOST SENSITIVE SPECIES.  

121



 

Executive Board Special Meeting Agenda 
SF Bay Regional Water Board / BACWA Executive Board 

Joint Meeting 

Monday, November 30, 2020, 10am to 12pm 

 

 

ROLL CALL AND INTRODUCTIONS – 10:00 

PUBLIC COMMENT – 10:05 

DISCUSSION/OTHER BUSINESS- 10:10  

Topic Goal Time 

1. COVID-19 Response • Roundtable from BACWA and Regulators about 

impacts and management strategies 

10:15 

2. Nutrients • Discussion of load cap implementation 

• 3rd Watershed Permit timeline alternatives 

• Long-term nutrient science plan 

10:35 

3. PFAS  • Update on Regional Special Study, Phase I 

• Discussion of what Phase II may include 

• Update on potential PFAS legislation 

11:10 

4. Chlorine Residual Basin Plan 

Amendment 
• Blanket permit amendment timing, staffing needs, 

and prerequisites 

11:25 

5. Toxicity • Update on adoption, changes from previous draft 

• Discussion of NPDES implementation in Region 2 

11:35 

6. Alternate Monitoring 

Requirements overhaul 
• Update on BACWA efforts to identify monitoring 

and reporting elements for reduction 

• Update on Statewide efforts on CECs and any 

impacts on RMP CEC budget 

11:40 

7. Climate Change Adaptation • Update on efforts to solicit information from 

BACWA members on Climate change planning 

11:50 

  
ADJOURNMENT  

 

122



 

1 

BAAQMD-BACWA AIR Committee 
Quarterly Meeting Agenda 

 
Date: December ##, 2020   

Time: 2-hour time slot 

BAAQMD:  Greg Nudd, Damian Breen 

BACWA: Amit Mutsuddy (City of San Jose – BACWA Chair), Lorien Fono (BACWA ED), 
Mary Cousins (BACWA), Sarah Deslauriers, Courtney Mizutani 

Virtual Mtg Link: Access Link in Meeting Invite 

Call-in: Included in Meeting Invite 

 

1) Introductions 

2) Discussion of Common Air Quality Goals  

a) Methane Reduction 

i) BAAQMD Regulation 13 

ii) SB 1383 Implementation - Organic Waste Diversion 

b) Air Toxics Reporting/Reduction 

i) CARB Regulation 617 Reporting Protocol / AB 2588 Compound List Updates 

ii) Emission Factor Development (statewide wastewater sector effort) 

iii) BAAQMD Rule 11-18 Risk Assessments Using Updated Emission Factors 

3) Standardize Permit Conditions for WWTPs 

4) Standardize Enforcement Priorities and Actions 

5) Next Meeting 

123



PO Box 24055, MS 59 • Oakland, CA 94623 • (925) 765-9616• www.bacwa.org 
Central Contra Costa Sanitary District • East Bay Dischargers Authority • City of San Jose • East Bay Municipal Utility District • City & County of San Francisco 

 

 
 

 

November 11, 2020 

 

 

Dr. Mark Gold, Executive Director 

California Ocean Protection Council   

1416 Ninth Street, Suite 1311  

Sacramento, CA 95814 

  

 

RE: Letter of Support for Proposition 68 Coastal Resilience proposal “Bay Adaptation Hub: Connecting 

Communities with Opportunities Across the Bay”  

 

Dear Dr. Gold,  

 

I am writing to express the Bay Area Clean Water Agencies’ (BACWA’s) strong support of the proposal 

entitled “Bay Adaptation Hub: Connecting Communities with Opportunities Across the Bay,” which will 

better connect disadvantaged communities with sea level rise adaptation projects and funding opportunities, 

through online tools and technical capacity building, to increase equitable shoreline resilience in the San 

Francisco Bay.  

 
BACWA is a joint powers agency, formed under the California Government Code by the five largest 

wastewater treatment agencies in the San Francisco Bay Area. Our members include the many municipalities 

and special districts that provide sanitary sewer services to more than 7.1 million people. BACWA is 

dedicated to working with our members, state and federal regulatory agencies, and non-governmental 

organizations to improve and enhance the San Francisco Bay environment. 

 

The proposed project addresses several critical gaps for climate adaption planning throughout the San 

Francisco Bay. Engaging local communities, particularly disadvantaged communities, in all stages of 

adaptation planning and implementation has been highlighted as critical for ensuring equitable outcomes of 

adaptation. The data and tool development proposed as part of this project will support this goal by creating 

a centralized hub of information related to existing and planned adaptation projects and local community-

based organizations (CBOs). This need has been articulated by frontline community organizations 

participating in BCDC’s recent Environmental Justice Bay Plan Amendment, and in Bay Adapt, an ongoing 

initiative seeking regional agreement on priority sea level rise actions. It has also been championed by local 

governments. The innovative approach described in the project, directly involving CBOs in the co-

development of these data and tools while building technical capacity, will ensure that the project results in a 

resource that meets community needs, has long term sustainability, and advances regional adaptation to sea 

level rise.  

 

Many of BACWA’s member agencies own infrastructure that is vulnerable to sea level rise and other 

impacts of climate change. BACWA supports regional solutions to climate change adaptation, and 

increasing coordination among regional entities is a key first step. Having a resource to quickly identify 

potentially aligned projects will be useful to the BACWA member agencies, and will provide a needed link 

to communities that are impacted by future projects.  

 

 

 

124

about:blank


 
 

 

 

 

BACWA supports BCDC’s grant proposal, and looks forward to continue participating in Bay Adapt. Please 

do not hesitate to contact us with any additional questions or concerns regarding our support. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 
 

Lorien J. Fono,  

BACWA Executive Director 

 

lfono@bacwa.org 

125



 

 
2020 STRATEGIC PLAN - DRAFT 
Bay Area Clean Water Agencies  

 

BACWA’s Mission 

BACWA provides an effective regional voice for clean water agencies’ stewardship of 
the Bay’s ecological, community, and economic resources. 
 
 
BACWA’s Vision 

Public clean water agencies are leaders in protecting and enhancing the San Francisco 
Bay ecosystem. 
 
 
BACWA’s Values 

• Environmental stewardship 

• Leadership 

• Science-based decision making 

• Collaboration  

• Fiscal responsibility 

• Watershed-based solutions 

 

BACWA’s Goals 

• Advocate for regulation based on science  

• Foster collaboration and relationship building with regulators and other 

stakeholders  

• Pursue regional, multi-benefit approaches to environmental solutions  

• Exemplify service and responsiveness to members and public  

• Practice good governance  

 

126



2020 Strategic Plan - DRAFT 

2  

GOAL 1: ADVOCATE FOR REGULATION BASED ON SCIENCE 

Strategy 1 – Advocate for nutrient permitting based on science  

• Objective 1 – Establish a Nutrient Technical Team made up of BACWA and member 

agency staff.to engage with the San Francisco Bay Nutrient Management Strategy 

(NMS) by reviewing their work products and participating in the Assessment 

Framework process.  

• Objective 2 – Solicit and contract consultant support for review and interpretation of 

NMS Work Products and review of the Assessment Framework process. 

• Objective 3 – Convene BACWA’s Nutrient Strategy Team to plan BACWA position on 

3rd Nutrient Watershed Permit. 

• Objective 4 – Phase payments to the NMS to optimize scientific study workflow and 

timing that will inform management actions. 

Strategy 2 – Advocate for air regulation based on science 

• Objective 1 – Meet frequently with Bay Area Air Quality Management District 

(BAAQMD) staff to communicate clean water agencies’ perspective and capabilities. 

Support BAAQMD staff by providing technical information during development of 

regulations for short-lived climate pollutants and air toxics. 

• Objective 2 – Collaborate with CASA and other clean water agencies statewide on 

projects to inform California Air Resources Board regulations, such as the AB 2588 

compound list update and emission factor development. 

Strategy 3 – Advocate for biosolids management regulations based on science 

• Objective 1 – Work with local and state regulators to support sustainable biosolids 

reuse alternatives. 

• Objective 2 – Collaborate with Bay Area Biosolids Coalition in supporting initiatives 

aimed at establishing the safety and benefits of biosolids reuse.  

 

Strategy 4 – Advocate for emerging water quality regulations to be based on 
science. 

• Objective 1 – Provide support for Constituents of Emerging Concern (CEC) pollution 

prevention and pesticides control by state and federal agencies.  

127



2020 Strategic Plan - DRAFT 

3  

• Objective 2 – Engage in State Water Board and Ocean Protection Council initiatives, 

such as the reconvening of the Science Advisory Panel on CECs in Aquatic 

Ecosystems and the Microplastic Strategy. 

• Objective 3 – Continue to participate actively in Regional Monitoring Program (RMP) 

technical and steering committees. 

• Objective 4 – Demonstrate to regulators that BACWA can effectively implement 

solutions through regional projects, such as conducting the PFAS Regional Study in 

lieu of being compelled via a 13267 Order. 

Strategy 5 – Advocate for the update of existing water quality regulations based 
on science. 

• Objective 1 – Support Basin Plan amendments and triennial reviews of the Basin 

Plan through cooperation with the Regional Water Board. 

• Objective 2 – Work with Regional Water Board to adopt blanket permit amendment to 

incorporate Chlorine Residual Basin Plan Amendment into NPDES Permits. 

• Objective 3 – Work with regulators to reduce required monitoring of low priority 

constituents in exchange for increased funding for RMP CEC studies. 

 

 

 

 

 

  

128



2020 Strategic Plan - DRAFT 

4  

GOAL 2: FOSTER COLLABORATION AND RELATIONSHIP-BUILDING 
WITH REGULATORS AND OTHER STAKEHOLDERS  

Strategy 1 - Maintain and broaden collaboration with regulators by engaging on 
existing regulatory initiatives and emerging issues. 

• Objective 1 - Continue constructive engagement with regulators to communicate 

clean water agencies’ challenges and opportunities related to projects of 

environmental benefit, so that these factors will be considered when developing new 

regulations and implementing existing regulations. 

• Objective 2 – Collaborate with regulators on emerging initiatives such as sea level 

rise adaptation planning, development of incentives for climate change mitigation, 

identification of feasible biosolids reuse strategies, and exploration of other resource 

recovery opportunities. 

• Objective 3 – Work with Summit Partners to provide educational opportunities to 

State Water Board/Ocean Protection Council members and staff regarding clean 

water agencies’ challenges and opportunities. Identify and develop a common 

understanding of mutual priorities. 

• Objective 4 – Work with BAAQMD staff to reduce permitting hurdles that impede the 

implementation of projects of environmental benefit. 

Strategy 2 - Monitor legislative efforts that impact BACWA members. 

• Objective 1 – Work with industry associations and individual members to inform their 

efforts on legislative advocacy. 

• Objective 2 – Consider a BACWA policy or position on how to engage in targeted 

legislative advocacy. 

Strategy 3 - Maintain industry leadership by collaborating with other Clean Water 
Associations. 

• Objective 1 – Work with Summit Partners to define issues of importance on a 

statewide basis. 

• Objective 2 – Inform, learn from, and jointly advocate with Clean Water Associations. 

 
 

129



2020 Strategic Plan - DRAFT 

5  

GOAL 3: PURSUE REGIONAL, MULTI-BENEFIT APPROACHES TO 
ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS 

Strategy 1 - Promote integrated approach to a healthy Bay. 

• Objective 1 – Identify and establish effective collaborations with Drinking Water and 

Stormwater communities to further the One Water concept and/or other multi-benefit 

project types. 

• Objective 2 – Identify and establish collaborators to implement integrated approaches 

to sea level rise adaptation. 

• Objective 3 – Identify and implement effective pollution prevention strategies in 

partnership with regulators and partners. 

• Objective 4 – Work with members and other regional entities to maximize grant 

funding for projects benefiting the region. 

Strategy 2 - Support innovation to better address ecological, community, and 
economic challenges. 

• Objective 1 – Provide membership with information on technology pilot opportunities. 

• Objective 2 – Establish and continue partnerships with universities and other 

research institutions and initiatives to develop collaborative approaches to issues of 

importance to the clean water community. 

• Objective 3 – Support existing coalitions and agencies that are pursuing regional 

solutions to challenges impacting the San Francisco Bay ecosystem and community. 

Strategy 3 - Provide value to members with regional solutions. 

• Objective 1 – Continue to provide joint compliance activities on behalf of members, 

and report via the Annual NPDES compliance letter to the Regional Water Board. 

• Objective 2 – Continue to support and report compliance with Mercury/PCB and 

Nutrient Watershed Permits. 

• Objective 3 – Engage with regulators on behalf of individual member agencies when 

issues of regional importance arise.  

• Objective 4 – Coordinate regional solutions to comply with new Environmental 

Laboratory Accreditation Program (ELAP) regulations.  

• Objective 5 – Support members’ biosolids programs via data-gathering, reporting, 

and information exchange related to biosolids management. 

130



2020 Strategic Plan - DRAFT 

6  

GOAL 4: EXEMPLIFY SERVICE AND RESPONSIVENESS TO 
MEMBERS AND PUBLIC 

Strategy 1 - Ensure members are knowledgeable about critical issues and 
activities 

• Objective 1 – Communicate timely regulatory and technical information and events 

via committees, the BACWA Bulletin newsletter, and emails to members. 

• Objective 2 – Ensure that BACWA contact lists are up-to-date. 

Strategy 2 - Provide education and outreach to members and the public. 

• Objective 1 – Provide support for pollution prevention messaging to the public via 

BAPPG. 

• Objective 2 – Explore ways to support members’ public communication on nutrients 

and other issues. 

Strategy 3 - Provide forum to hear all member voices. 

• Objective 1 – Conduct outreach to less engaged members to inform them about 

opportunities for participation via committees and other events. 

• Objective 2 – Ensure that each member agency is engaged and understands the 

negotiations for the 3rd Nutrient Watershed Permit. 

• Objective 3 – Provide forums and opportunities for information-sharing between 

members on issues of importance. 

• Objective 4 – Use technology to maximize member participation in committee 

meetings. 

Strategy 4 - Provide support for Projects of Special Benefit to assist membership. 

• Objective 1 – Continue to support the Bay Area Biosolids Coalition (BABC). 

• Objective 2 – Take over administration of the Bay Area Chemical Consortium (BACC) 

from DSRSD. 

• Objective 3 – Support Bay Area Consortium for Water/Wastewater Education 

(BACWWE) as they transition to a scholarship-based system and continue 

collaboration with BAYWORK.  

131



2020 Strategic Plan - DRAFT 

7  

• Objective 4 – Consider any new requests for BACWA support based on members’ 

benefit and potential costs to BACWA. 

 

GOAL 5: PRACTICE GOOD GOVERNANCE 

Strategy 1 - Ensure BACWA Policies and Procedures conform to applicable laws 
and best practices. 

• Objective 1 – Continue review and update of BACWA Policies and Procedures. 
 

Strategy 2 - Enhance fiscal transparency. 

• Objective 1 – Work with EBMUD to improve readability and transparency of 

treasurer’s reports in Executive Board Packet. 

• Objective 2 – Continue to update 5-Year Plan to ensure BACWA can strategically 

plan its financial status and has capacity for future initiatives. 

• Objective 3 – Continue to improve transparency and security of authorizations and 

invoice approval process. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

132



DRAFT Agenda 
BACWA Power Supply Reliability Infoshare meeting 

January 2020 - tbd 
 

1. Presentations on power supply reliability plans 
o Central San? 
o SJ? 
o SFPUC? 

 
2. Do agencies have different strategies for specific scenarios?  

o Stage 3 emergency shutdowns 
o Public Safety Power Shutoff 
o Temporary Substation power loss  
o Planned power shutdowns 
o Natural disaster loss of regional power (Storm, earthquake, fire) 
o Do strategies differentiate between average dry weather flow and peak wet weather 

flow conditions?  
 

3. What consequences are the strategies focused on preventing? 
o Staff life / safety 
o SSOs/street and home backups 
o Discharges of untreated/partially treated sewage to the Bay 
o Loss of secondary treatment process biology  
o Loss of biosolids process biology 

 
4. Treatment plant power backup strategies, which combo do agencies use? 

o Dual PGE power feeds (automatic transfer v. PG&E transfer; determination of fault 
location)  

o Cogen (automatic transfer, responding to trips after PG&E outage)  
o Emergency backup generation (size & fuel storage) 
o Battery 
o Temporary Influent storage or mid-treatment storage 

 
5. Collection system power supply strategies  

o Definition of “critical” load 
o Full v. H&S on-site generators  
o Portable generators 
o Portable pumps, bypass piping, and hauling sewage 

 
6. What trainings/drills do agencies do?  How frequently? 

 
7. What documents codify their strategies?   

o Contingency plan 
o PS process SOPs 
o Emergency Ops plans 
o Other? 

 

133



POLICY # POLICIES PROCEDURE # STAFF PROCEDURES (if needed) DATE FOR INITIAL REVIEW APPROVAL DATE

BAP 1.01 BACWA Representation 101 Nov-18 Dec-18

BFP 2.04 Reserve Policy 204 Nov-18 Dec-18

BFP 2.03 Contracting Policy (11/13) 203 Entering into Contracts Dec-18 Feb-19

BAP 1.06 Succession Planning 106 Updating Succession Plan Feb-19 Mar-19

BFP 2.01 Category of Membership Policy (12/16) 201 Requesting Membership Feb-19 Mar-19

BFP 2.05 Budgeting 205 Preparation of Budget Documents Feb-19 Mar-19

BAP 1.08 Website Policies 108 Updating Web Site Nov-20 Dec-20

BAP 1.02 Committees 102 Committee Responsibilities

BAP 1.03 Conflict of Interest 103 Submittal of Conflict of Interest Forms

BAP 1.05 Access by Professionals and Vendors 105 Communication with Membership

BFP 2.02 Investment Policy (10/07) 202 Coordinatiion with EBMUD Accounting

BAP 1.07 Travel Policies (6/07) 107 Expense Reimbursement

BAP 1.04 Document Retention Policy 104 Filing and Purging of Documents

SOP # Description Target Date for Completion

SOP 1 Processing Invoices

SOP 2 Admin Calendar

SOP 3 Review of Monthly Financial Reports

SUMMARY OF PROPOSED BOARD POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

134



 
 

BACWA BOARD POLICIES 

 

 
POLICY NUMBER:   BAP – 1.08 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
NAME OF POLICY:  Website Policy 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
DATE APPROVED:    
 
LAST REVISED:   
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PURPOSE: To provide direction on development, use, and maintenance of a website for the 
organization. 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
POLICY: BACWA shall develop and maintain a website for the benefit of its members and to assist in 
completing its mission.  At a minimum the website should contain the following key information or 
categories which can be searched for information: 
 

• agendas and packets for BACWA Executive Board Meetings 

• documents produced by BACWA 

• calendar of meeting and events 

• announcements 

• BACWA committee information 

• general information about BACWA 

• key contact information 
 

The goal is to keep the website current and informative to foster use by the BACWA members. 
The website should be available to the public but may have one or more member-only sections, 
requiring a password to access.  The website should contain information of benefit to the BACWA 
membership including information on regulatory, technical, and public education issues. The 
website will not contain any advertising materials for third-party entities.  The BACWA Executive 
Director or their designee will serve as the Administrator of the website. 
 
The website and its contents will be maintained so as to comply with open meeting laws and other 
applicable statute. 
 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

135



  

TIME DESCRIPTION SPEAKER

9:00 am - 9:15 am Welcome/Introduction and Year in Review Amit Mutsuddy

9:15 am - 10:30 am BAAQMD/EPA/SWRCB/RWQCB/ Priorities

Bay Area Air Quality Management District Jack Broadbent - invited

State Water Resources Control Board member Sean McGuire - confirmed

San Francisco Water Board  member Jim McGrath - invited

San Francisco Water Board  staff Mike Montgomery - confirmed

Q&A

10:30 am - 10:45 am Break

10:45 am - 12:00pm BACWA Hot Topics

PFAS Study Diana Lin - confirmed

SARS-CoV-2 Monitoring Kara Nelson/Sasha Harris-Lovitt - confirmed

Biosolids

Toxicity

Chlorine Residual BPA

12:00 pm - 12:45 pm Lunch Breakout rooms

12:45 pm - 12:55 pm BACWA Leadership Recognition

BACWA Hot Topics

12:55 pm - 1:25 pm AIR Issues Sarah Deslauriers -confirmed

climate change vulnerability planning/regional collaborations

1:25 pm - 1:35 pm Nutrients - Overview

 Overview of 2nd WS Permit/Governance Update Lorien Fono

1:35 pm - 2:20 pm Nutrients - Regulatory Update

2021 Group Annual Report Mike Falk - confirmed

Nature Based Solutions Study Ian Wren - confirmed

Regional Recycled Water Report Mike Falk - confirmed

Q & A

2:20 pm - 2:55 pm Nutrients - Technical Update Dave Senn - invited

Update on the Science Plan and Findings

2:55 pm - 3:00 pm Annual Meeting Wrap-Up

BAY AREA CLEAN WATER AGENCIES
ANNUAL MEETING DRAFT PROGRAM

February 19, 2021
Webinar

136



Committee Request for Board Action:  none 

33 attendees (via teleconference only) representing 20 member agencies  
 

Regional PFAS Study 
Diana Lin (SFEI) presented a conceptual draft sampling plan for the 13 Bay Area agencies that will be 
participating in the regional PFAS study. The proposed sampling plan is to collect influent and effluent grabs 
at all 13 facilities, plus composite samples at 3 agencies (FSSD, SFO, and CCCSD). Agencies will receive 
shipments of sample bottles and PFAS-free water, and agencies will be responsible for return shipment of 
samples back to Axys. The sampling plan will identify procedures for protecting samples from cross-
contamination, emphasizing the use of direct sampling into sample containers to the extent feasible. The final 
sampling plan will be developed over the next few weeks so that it can be distributed to agencies prior to the 
November sample event. 
 
COVID Updates 
Committee was briefed by the BACWA ED on COVID surveillance monitoring efforts at two local universities: 

• A project involving Stanford faculty is focusing on sampling influent solids, which have higher viral load 
than aqueous samples. In their study, wastewater sampling showed peaks ahead of community 
caseloads. Results are under peer review. 
https://www.medrxiv.org/content/10.1101/2020.09.14.20194472v1 

• The Covid-WEB project at UC Berkeley will be conducting surveillance in October at no cost to local 
wastewater agencies; about 30 agencies have signed up to participate.  

 
Several members reported that their agencies are ending staggered shifts and restoring normal work 
schedules.   

 
Announcements 

• ELAP regulations have been submitted to the Office of Administrative Law (OAL) and will come 
into effect January 1, 2021.  

• The CWEA Annual Conference sessions of interest for laboratory committee members were 
discussed; most will occur on Thursday, October 22nd. The fees for attending the conference 
vary depending on how long afterwards you want access to the conference. CEUs are available 
for watching live or for the recorded sessions. The next annual conference is scheduled for April 
2020 and it will either be virtual or in San Diego. 

 
Next meeting: December 8, 2020  

 

Laboratory Committee –  
Report to BACWA Board 

Laboratory committee meeting on: October 13 2020 
Executive Board Meeting Date: November 20, 2020 
Committee Chair:  Dan Jackson (Union Sanitary District)  
 

137

https://www.medrxiv.org/content/10.1101/2020.09.14.20194472v1
https://www.covid-web.org/


BACWA PERMITS OCTOBER 2020 REPORT TO THE BOARD PAGE 1 OF 2 

Permits Committee –  
Report to BACWA Board 

Permits Committee Meeting on: 10/13/2020 
Executive Board Meeting Date: 11/20/2020 
Committee Chair:   Mary Lou Esparza, CCCSD 

Committee Request for Board Action:   

• Approve graphics showing BACWA member and staff participation in various committees related to the Nutrient 
Management Strategy. 

• Provide input on level of involvement by BACWA in responding to climate change survey from Regional Water 
Board (see 10/16/2020 Board Meeting, Agenda Item #10) 

31 attendees by teleconference, representing 17 member agencies.  Action items shown in red. 

RWQCB (RWQCB) Report 
o Bill Johnson reported on RWQCB operations. One NPDES case manager has been re-assigned to contact 

tracing, and staff have been asked to take off 2 days/month. RWQCB will be starting in-person inspections soon, 
with new safety protocols in place. Virtual and desktop inspections will also continue. Pretreatment program 
inspections will be limited due to limited external support (EPA support is phasing out, and State Water Board 
support has not yet ramped up). RWQCB staff are trying to write pretreatment program reports more concisely. 

RWQCB Calendar 
October: USD Old Alameda Creek and Yountville, plus a presentation on biosolids management. 
November:       Chlorine Basin Plan Amendment 

Statewide Toxicity Provisions 
o On October 30th, a revised draft version of the statewide toxicity provisions will be released for State Water Board 

consideration at their December 1st meeting.  
o Surveillance monitoring is a concept not in the draft toxicity provisions that has been floated by Region 2 staff as 

a way of monitoring toxicity in higher-concentration effluent samples (10:1) with a lower risk of incurring a TST 
“Fail.” Details to be worked out are whether the surveillance monitoring is optional or mandatory, and whether it 
would use a point estimate of toxicity (i.e., using a dilution series) or the TST. 

o RWQCB staff will be invited to the December Permits Committee meeting to discuss Region 2 implementation.  

Climate Change Surveys Planned by State Water Board and Regional Water Board 
o The State Water Board’s draft survey involves check-boxes rather than narrative answers. It will be distributed to 

POTWs and collection system agencies. Timing is uncertain. 
o The RWQCB’s draft survey is open-ended and more in-depth. It will be distributed to POTWs only, not collection 

system agencies (they will be covered by the revised SSO-WDR at a later date). BACWA may be involved to 
ensure written responses provide comparable levels of detail, pending input from the BACWA Board. 

o The committee discussed possibly having two agencies (one large, one small) “test drive” the survey to provide 
an example regarding the amount of detail. BACWA staff will help identify volunteers for this test drive.  

o The RWQCB is particularly interested in regional cooperative efforts, so one idea put forth was separate the 
regional solutions part of the survey from the individual vulnerability assessments. BACWA may be involved in 
preparing this information, pending input from the BACWA Board. 

Chlorine Basin Plan Amendment 
o RWQCB staff were open to BACWA’s comments regarding monitoring and reporting; less so for comments 

related to the Minimum Level (ML). Per Bill, MLs are typically found in regulatory documents other than Attach. G. 
o Member agencies strongly advocated rollout via a blanket permit amendment. The amendment would need to 

identify appropriate dilution credits for each applicable agency. 

Nutrients 
o Subembayment delineation was the focus of the 9/11 Nutrient Management Strategy Steering Comm. meeting.  
o BACWA will be convening a new group to review and provide input on scientific work products, and BACWA will 

also be hiring a consultant to assist with this task. 
o Committee members requested a chart illustrating the various nutrient-related committees in which BACWA is 

participating. This chart should be circulated with the invitation to participate. 
o Committee members requested a summary of the Pardee nutrient discussion be circulated to the Permits 

committee. 

Alternate Monitoring Program (Order No. R2-2016-0008) 
o The Alternate Monitoring Program will require adjustments upon implementation of the new statewide toxicity 

provisions because the screening requirements will be mandated at the state level. 
o The RWQCB proposes to roll over other, non-toxicity-related sections of the Alternate Monitoring Program into a 

new blanket permit amendment. Additional edits to monitoring requirements could be included as a way of freeing 

138

https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/state_implementation_policy/docs/2020_toxicity_provisions.docx
https://bacwa.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/10/BACWA-Comment-on-Chlorine-BPA-2020-10-02.pdf
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/sanfranciscobay/board_decisions/adopted_orders/2016/R2-2016-0008.pdf


BACWA PERMITS OCTOBER 2020 REPORT TO THE BOARD PAGE 2 OF 2 

up more funding for CECs monitoring.  
o BACWA will solicit member ideas regarding NPDES permit requirements to include in the proposed amendment 

for discussion at the December Permits Committee meeting. 

Announcements 
o BACWA is preparing an updated Strategic Plan; a draft will be shared with members soon. 
o Reconvening of CEC Ecosystems Panel: Oct 12-15 (will be recorded) 

Next BACWA Permits Committee Meeting: December 8, 2020. Look for a survey regarding the holiday social. 
 

139

https://www.sccwrp.org/about/research-areas/emerging-contaminants/cec-ecosystems-panel/


1 
 

  Executive Director’s Report to the Board  

   October 2020  
 

  

NUTRIENTS:   

Completed a variety of tasks and activities associated with BACWA’s interests on nutrients and 

collaborating with the Water Board including: 

• Attended and drafted summary of 10/7 NMS Planning Subcommittee meeting 

• Discussed NMS issues with Science Manager 

• Discussed NMS and nutrient permitting issues with individual Executive Board members 

• Updated and posted draft RFP for NMS technical review 

• Discussed RFP with potential proposers 

• Participated in 10/30 NBS meeting 

 

EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETING AND SUPPORT 

• Edited minutes and action items from 9/17-9/18 “Online Pardee” meeting 

• Worked with BACWA staff to plan and manage 10/16 Executive Board meeting 

• Worked with BACWA staff to plan and manage 10/26 Special Executive Board meeting to 

approve two contracts 

• Conducted the Executive Board meeting agenda review with the BACWA Chair 

• Researched and implemented digital tools for strategic planning 

• Continued to track all action items to completion 

• Developed draft Strategic Plan based on input from Strategic Plan meeting Part 1  

• Planned and led 10/9 Strategic Planning Meeting Part 2 

• Discussed Power Supply Reliability Infoshare meeting with Executive Board member 

 

COVID-19: 

• Participated in 10/14 COVID-WEB Steering Committee meeting 

 

COMMITTEES: 

• Participated in 10/13 Lab Committee meeting 

• Reviewed agenda and participated in 10/13 Permits Committee meeting 

• Sent out doodle to plan next Managers Roundtable meeting 

• Participated in pesticide letter submission SOP call 

 

REGULATORY: 

• Discussed budgeting and PFAS sample plan with SFEI, and contract for analysis with SFEI and 

SGS AXYS, attended SFEI SAP webinar with participating agencies 

• Participated in CASA calls on State Toxicity Provisions 

• Participated in Summit Partners calls on potential PFAS interlaboratory comparability study and 

meeting with State Water Board staff 

• Discussed sea level rise planning information request with Regional Water Boar staff 

• Discussed about RMP funding for CECs with RMP manager 

• Attended CEC presentations from SWB/OPC CECs in Aquatic Ecosystems panel 

140



2 
 

FINANCE: 

• Reviewed the monthly BACWA financial reports, summary, and budget to actual tracking sheet 

for August 2020 

• Reviewed and approved invoices 

• Reviewed FY20 Financial Statement from auditor 

• Developed Contract and authorization for SGS AXYS Analytical support of PFAS Study 

 

COLLABORATIONS: 

• Discussed and provided letter of support support for Hazen proposal to WRF: Linking Nutrient 

Reductions to Receiving Water Response 

• Participated in One Water Reuse workshop 

• Planned, developed slides and presented on codigestion impact on nutrient loading at ReNUWIt 

IAB meeting on 10/14 

• Discussed support for potential WRF proposal by LBNL  

• Participated in 10/6 RMP Annual Meeting 

• Prepared for and moderated session in Summit Partners PFAS Workshop Part 2 on 10/28 

• Participated in CASA RWG meeting 10/15 

• Participated in CASA Microplastic call 10/22 

 

ASC 

• Reviewed materials sent via email by ASC ED 

 

BABC:  

• Discussed and reviewed BABC presentation to Regional Water Board with BABC Program 

Manager 

• Developed contract for UCD to perform PFAS plant uptake study 

 

BACC: 

• Participated in kickoff meeting with DSRSD staff 

• Reviewed materials and email to BACC members 

 

ADMINISTRATION:   

• Planned for and conducted the monthly BACWA staff meeting to prepare for the Board Meeting 

and to coordinate and prioritize activities. 

• Signed off on invoices, reviewed correspondence, prepared for upcoming Board meetings, 

responded to inquiries on BACWA efforts, oversaw updating of web page and provided general 

direction to BACWA staff.   

• Worked with the RPM in the preparation of the monthly BACWA Bulletin. 

• Developed and responded to numerous emails and phone calls as part of the conduct of 

BACWA business on a day-to-day basis. 

• Discuss website updates with web consultant 

• Continued onboarding of new RPM 

 

MISCELLANEOUS MEETINGS/CALLS:   

• Worked with BACWA Chair and Committee Chairs on items that arose during the month 

• Other miscellaneous calls and inquiries regarding BACWA activities  

• Responded to Board members requests for information 

141



 
 

Board Calendar 
December 2020 – February 2021 Meetings 

 

 

DATE AGENDA ITEMS 

November 30, 2020 
Online meeting 

BACWA Executive Board & Regional Water Board 
Meeting 10-12pm 

December 18, 2020 
Online Meeting 

Policy / Strategic Discussion:  
• Paul Stacy Presentation 
• David Senn SFEI Presentation  

 
Operational:  

• Annual Meeting Agenda  
• FY22 Budget Schedule & Key Issues 

 
January 15, 2021 
Online Meeting 

Policy / Strategic Discussion: 
 

Operational: 
• Annual Meeting Final Agenda 
• FY22 Budget Schedule & Key Issues 

 
February 19, 2021 
Annual Members Meeting 9-3pm 
Online Meeting 
 

• Policy / Strategic Discussion: 
 

• Operational: 

142



BACWA ACTION ITEMS

Number Subject Task Responsibiity Deadline Status

Action Items from October 16, 2020 BACWA Executive Board Meeting resp. deadline status
2021.10.11 Doodle poll BACWA ED to determine when next NST meeting will be ED 10/30/2020 complete
2021.11.12 Nutrients group BACWA ED to move forward with creating new group ED 11/13/2020 complete
2021.11.13 Interface between nutrient science and nutrient science regulation BACWA ED to share meeting with board ED 11/20/2020 complete
2021.11.14 Vulnerability Assessment for climate change BACWA staff to work with Regional Water Board on tempate to gather information ED/RPM 10/30/2020 complete

Action Items Remaining from Previous BACWA Executive Board Meetings
2019.12.46 Risk reduction Reach out to cities with public health clinics to work with CIEA RPM 2/29/2020 Completed
2019.8.12 BAAQMD Permit Backlog Set up separate meeting to discuss with Air District management RPM/ED 11/30/2019 completed
2019.7.05 Sewer Rate Survey Post as Google Sheet, and publicize update RPM 8/31/2019 pending
2018.4-93 Website Policy Add reference to regulatory requirements for Agency websites ED 10/30/2020 Complete 
FY21: 14 of 14 Action items completed
FY20:  67 of 70  Action Items completed
FY19: 109 of 110 action Items completed
FY18: 66 of 66  Action Items completed
FY17: 90 of 90 Action Items completed

143



 

NUTRIENTS:  Coordinated with BACWA ED and AED regarding RFP for assistance with Nutrient 

Technical Review. 

BACWA BULLETIN: Circulated October Bulletin and investigated MailChimp authentication 

requirements.   

CHLORINE RESIDUAL:  Finalized and coordinated with AED for submittal of comment letter on 

Chlorine Basin Plan Amendment.   

CECs: Coordinated with SFEI and BACWA members regarding PFAS sampling plan; reviewed 

sampling plan and provided comments. Attended webinars regarding PFAS, CECs and 

microplastics. 

BIOSOLIDS REPORTS: Began preparation of 2020 Solano County Biosolids Report and 2018 

Biosolids Survey Report. 

STRATEGIC PLAN: Attended Strategic Planning workshop #2. 

COMMITTEE SUPPORT:   

AIR – Prepared Board report from September committee meeting. 

BABC – Assisted with review of draft presentation for Regional Water Board’s October 14th meeting. 

BAPPG – Attended meeting, prepared meeting summary and Board report, and scheduled next 

virtual meeting. 

Laboratory – Attended meeting, prepared Board report, and scheduled next virtual meeting. 

Permits – Attended meeting, prepared Board report, and scheduled next virtual meeting. 

Responded to member question regarding chronic toxicity screening. Began compiling monitoring 

requirements to develop survey and proposal for replacement to current Alternative Monitoring 

Reporting Program (Order No. R2-2016-0008). Circulated draft survey to Permits committee, Lab 

committee, and Pretreatment committee leadership, and circulated final survey to members. 

Recycled Water – Reviewed draft template for Nutrient Removal Study; compiled comments and 

transmitted to HDR. 

Executive Board – Attended Executive Board meeting and reported on Chlorine Basin Plan 

Amendment comment letter and PFAS study. 

  

ADMINISTRATION/STAFF MEETING – Participated in monthly staff meeting. 

  

BACWA MEETINGS ATTENDED:   

BAPPG (10/7) 

Strategic Planning Workshop (10/9) 

Lab Committee (10/13) 

Permits Committee (10/13) 

Executive Board (10/16) 

 

EXTERNAL EVENTS ATTENDED: 

Bay Area One Water Network (10/1) 

Regional Monitoring Program Annual Meeting (10/6) 

CASA Toxicity Subgroup (10/7) 

CEC Expert Panel (10/12, 10/13) 

Regional Water Board Meeting (10/14) 

CASA Regulatory Work Group (10/15) 

Microplastics Expert Panel (10/19, 10/26) 

CWEA Covid Webinar (10/27) 

Summit Partners PFAS Webinar (10/28) 

 

    Regulatory Program Manager’s  

Report to the Board 

October 2020 

 

  

            
  

    

144



1

Lorien Fono

From: Collectionwg <collectionwg-bounces@lists.casaweb.org> on behalf of Jared Voskuhl via 
Collectionwg <collectionwg@lists.casaweb.org>

Sent: Tuesday, November 3, 2020 1:27 PM
Subject: [Collectionwg] [Regulatory] CASA November 2020 Regulatory Update
Attachments: ATT00001.txt

To help protect your privacy, Microsoft Office prevented automatic download of this picture from the Internet.

  

 

Good Morning, 
 

Please find below regulatory water updates from October and for November. Our next 
workgroup meetings will be through Zoom on November 19. Please pass along any items 
you would like agendized, and let us know if you are unable to access the hyperlinked 
materials. 
 

Thank you, 
The RWG Team 

 

 

WATER QUALITY 
 

 

SWB Releases Final Draft Toxicity Provisions – Response to Comments Forthcoming 

On October 30, the State Water Resources Control Board (State Water Board/SWB) released the 
final drafts of the toxicity provisions and staff report. A pdf of the final provisions is available here, 
and a redlined version, here. The staff report pdf is here, and the redlined version of it is here.  
 
The Response to Comments has not been published yet, but it will be soon. (CASA’s comment 
letter was submitted in August.) With regard to the cerio study, the SWB also released a quality 
assurance recommendations document, which includes a schedule of tasks and deliverables on 
the final page. The provisions are scheduled for adoption on December 1.   
 

Data for 2024 Integrated Reports – SWB Outreach for Supplemental Information 

On October 16, data submissions for the 2024 integrated reports were due to the State Water 
Board. If your agency submitted data, please reach out to Jared Voskuhl. State Water Board staff 
are seeking to collaborate with CASA to identify members in Regions 2, 4, and 8 who would like 
their CIWQS data assessed for the 2024 Integrated Report and also to identify agencies who 
submitted their data to CEDEN, in order to avoid duplicating data on the assessment side. Again, 
please reach out to Jared Voskuhl if you submitted data earlier this month so that the State Water 
Board may obtain the supplemental information. 
 

Summit Partners’ PFAS Workshops Available Online 

On October 28, the Clean Water Summit Partners (BACWA, CASA, CVCWA, CWEA, and SCAP) 
hosted their second workshop on the SWB’s investigative order of PFAS at public owned 

145



2

treatment works. Presentation slide decks and videos are available here, where you will also find 
materials from the first workshop on September 16. 
 

R9 Basin Plan Amendments with Biological Objectives Scheduled for Adoption on 11/19 

On November 19, the San Diego Regional Water Quality Control Board is scheduled to adopt its 
Basin Plan Amendments to incorporate a water quality objective for biological condition. The final 
draft resolution is here, and the Response to Comments here. CVCWA and CASA submitted a 
comment letter in September on the proposal. Additional written comments for the meeting are 
unallowed, but oral testimony will be entered. The public documents are all available here. Please 
reach out to Jared Voskuhl if you have questions. 
 

San Diego Coastkeepers File Notice of Intent to Sue the County of San Diego 

San Diego Coastkeeper and Coastal Environmental Right Foundation recently filed a notice of 
intent to sue the County of San Diego over violations of the Clean Water Act. The notice is based 
on a San Diego river contamination study by San Diego State University to increase preparedness 
in the watershed for potential contamination. CASA’s Collection Systems Workgroup will discuss 
this item at their meeting on November 10. Reach out to Jared Voskuhl with comments. 
 

SCCWRP Hosts CECs and Microplastics Management Symposiums for SWB and OPC 

The week of October 12, the Southern California Coastal Water Research Project (SCCWRP), a 
joint‐powers authority in Orange County, hosted the reconvened scientific advisory panel for 
contaminants of emerging concern in aquatic ecosystems. Virtual opening remarks from state 
regulators, including Jonathan Bishop from the State Water Board (@ 8:40) and Mark Gold of the 
Ocean Protection Council (@17:45), are available here. Of most interest may be Claire Waggoner’s 
presentation on the SWB’s new CEC’s program, which begin at 1:24:00, and in which she describes 
how new contaminants may be processed for identification, monitoring, and regulation at the 
SWB. 
 
Additionally, on October 19, SCCWRP commenced a 5‐wk microplastics’ health effects series of 
Monday morning panels. Mark Gold’s opening remarks for this series are available here @ 41:05. 
Over the coming weeks, an international group of experts will convene to discuss several 
emerging issues with microplastics, especially as it pertains to management strategies. Please 
connect with Jared Voskuhl to get involved with CASA’s microplastics subgroup. 
 

SWB Hears Informational Item on PFAS and Releases PFAS Sampling Guidelines 

On October 7, the State Water Board received an informational update from staff and comments 
from the public on their statewide investigation of PFAS. The meeting is archived here, and Steve 
Jepsen’s remarks were carried in Bloomberg Law: “We can’t treat our way out of this problem.”  
 
As a reminder, in September, the SWB released PFAS sampling guidelines for non‐drinking water 
matrices to assist POTWs’ collection of samples, as well as this FAQ (9/2/20 version). A sector‐
wide SLAP template will become available in the coming weeks, so please keep an eye out for it.  
 
Finally, on August 27, after the first year of sampling by public water systems under Phase 1 of the 
investigation, the SWB released a General Order to over 900 recipients for continued monitoring. 
 

OEHHA Announces 2‐Day Climate Change Symposium for December 
On December 2 and 3, CalEPA’s Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment (OEHHA) 
will host a climate change symposium exploring the latest scientific evidence for the 
interconnectedness of climate change and its impacts. The agenda is here, and you may 

146



3

register here. Please reach out to Sarah Deslauriers, CASA’s Climate Change Program 
Manager, for further information. 
 

CASA Submits Letter on US EPA’s Proposed 2020 Financial Capability Assessment 
On October 19, CASA submitted a letter supporting NACWA’s comments on the EPA’s proposed 
2020 financial capability for water services in disadvantaged communities. In September, the EPA 
had released a federal register notice with an updated draft guidance document on financial 
capability assessments (FCA) in order to move past the 1997 FCA Guidance and the 2014 FCA 
Framework. A 2019 report by NACWA, AWWA, and WEF that was submitted to US EPA, new 
metrics were outlined that are partially included in the new proposal. Please reach out to Adam 
Link if you have questions. 
  
US EPA Releases COVID‐19 Financial Impact Tool and Water Workforce Initiative 

On October 6, US EPA announced two new efforts. The first is a tool for water utilities to assess 
the financial impact of COVID‐19, and the second is a water workforce initiative. 
 
The financial impact resource leads water utilities through questions that can determine how their 
revenues, expenses, and cashflow have been affected by the COVID‐19 pandemic, automatically 
calculating the changes for a utility’s revenues and expenses by looking at current 2020 monthly 
financials versus the average monthly financials of the utility’s 2019 audited financial statement.  
 
The water workforce initiative lays out a number of actions EPA and other federal agencies will be 
taking in the coming years. It has been a two‐year effort involving many partners across the water 
sector and signals a call to action for these stakeholders to come together and collaboratively 
address the major challenges facing the water workforce sector. 
 

SWB Meeting Agendas & Executive Director’s Reports 
Here are recent State Water Board agendas for their meetings on October 6 & 7 (PFAS, 
Perchlorate DLR), October 20 (303(d) listing), and November 4 (SAFR). The State Water Board’s 
agenda for their November 17 meeting has not been released. The Executive Director report is 
available for October (reconvened CEC’s panel, volumetric annual reporting of wastewater and 
recycled water). 

 

 
 

  

 

Dates 
 

 

Nov. 4 
 

SWB Meeting 
 

 
  

  

 

Nov. 5  
 

SCCWRP CTAG 
 

 
  

  

 

Nov. 9 
 

SCCWRP Microplastics Series (Week 4 of 5) 
 

147



4

 
  

  

 

Nov. 10 
 

CASA Collection Systems Workgroup 
 

 
  

  

 

Nov. 12 
 

CASA Air Quality, Climate Change, and Energy Workgroup 
 

 
  

  

 

Nov. 16 
 

SCCWRP Microplastics Series (Week 5 of 5) 
 

 
  

  

 

Nov. 17 
 

SWB Meeting 
 

 
  

  

 

Nov. 19 CASA Regulatory Workgroup 

 
  

  

 

Dec. 1 
 

SWB Meeting (Toxicity Adoption) 
 

 
  

  

 

Dec. 2 & 3 
 

OEHHA Climate Change Symposium 
 

 
  

  

 

Dec. 3 
 

CA Water Quality Monitoring Council Meeting 
 

 
  

  

 

Dec. 4 
 

SCCWRP Commission Meeting 
 

 
  

 
  

  

148



5

 
To help protect your privacy, 
Micro so ft Office prevented  
auto matic downlo ad o f this  
picture from the Internet.
Facebook

 

To help protect your privacy, 
Micro so ft Office prevented  
auto matic downlo ad o f this  
picture from the Internet.
Twitter

  

 

 

Visit our website 

  

    

 

  

 

CASA | 1225 8th Street, Suite 595, Sacramento, CA 95814  

To unsubscribe, e-mail: jvoskuhl@casaweb.org 
 

 

 

 
 

149


	+November 20 2020 BACWA Executive Board Meeting Agenda
	Agenda to post

	November 20 2020 BACWA Executive Board Meeting Packet
	+November 20 2020 BACWA Executive Board Meeting Agenda
	Agenda to post

	1 October 16 2020 BACWA Executive Board Meeting Minutes
	2 October 26 2020 BACWA Executive Board Meeting Special Meeting Minutes
	3 Treasurers Report Sept 2020
	1 September 2020 Financial Reports Cover Letter
	2 Sept 2020 Monthly Financial Summary Report
	3 BACWA FY21 Budget Approved 4-17-20 with Actuals thru Sept  2020
	July 2020 Budget to Actual

	4 BACWA Fund Bal Rpt Sept 2020
	BACWA Monthly Summary

	5 BACWA Revenue Detail Report September 2020
	Revenue Summary-BACWA

	6 BACWA  Expense Report September 2020
	Expense Report-BACWA

	7 BACWA Summary and Expense Report September 2020
	Expense Report-PROPs

	8 BACWA Prop Revenue Detail Report September 2020
	PROPs


	4 BAR Approval of FY20 Annual Report to Members
	BAR Approval of FY20 Annual Report to Members
	BACWA Annual Report FY20
	BACWA Annual Report
	Fiscal Year 2019/2020
	List of Accomplishments
	BACWA Staffing
	BACWA Committees
	List of BACWA Members as of June 30, 2020


	5 BAR Approval of FY20 Audited Annual Report
	BAR Approval of FY20 Audited Annual Reports
	BACWA Audit Communication Letter Final 9-8-20
	BACWA Financial Statement FINAL

	6 PFAS SAP_ Draft 2_110220
	8aii July 17, 2020 NST Meeting Agenda
	10 Climate change info request (Formatted for Nov 2020 EB Packet)
	11 Toxicity One-Pager for SWB 11-9-20
	12 Jt RB2 Mtg Agenda Nov 30 2020
	13 Draft BAAQMD-BACWA AIR Committee Mtg Agenda_Dec2020
	15 BACWA Support for BCDC Prop 68 Proposal
	16 2020 Strategic Plan Draft 111220
	17 BACWA Power Supply Reliability Infoshare meeting
	18 BACWA POLICIES & Schedule FY19
	18b Policy 108 Website
	20 BACWA Annual Meeting Agenda 2021
	21a Lab Board Report 2020-10-13
	21b Permits Board Report 2020-10-13
	23 ED Report October 2020
	24 BOD Calendar Jan 2021-March 2021
	BOD Calendar Jan 2021-March 2021
	Board Calendar

	Action Items Tracking from October 16 Meeting
	Sheet1


	25 RPM Report October 2020
	26k CASA Reg Update




